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Letter from the Chairman

Bulgari has further consolidated its reputation of being a
brand which is amongst the most prestigions in the
tuxury world thanks to initiatives and product launches
which have once again emphasised the stylistic figure of
Bulgari creations and the company’s significant links
with culture, art and history.

Due to the re-opening taking place of the magnificent
New York store on Fifth Avenue, for example, and
because of the strength of the stylistic affinity that has
always linked the brand with Greece and Rome, Bulgarni
agreed to support a project for the opening of a new
permanent gallery dedicated to Hellenist, Etruscan and
Roman art in the Metropolitan Museum. This initiative
was met with considerable favour and appreciation from
a media standpoint and was celebrated with a gala dinner
which counted amongst its guests several leading
members of the international jet set. The re-opening of
the New York store additionally coincided with the
largest display of vintage jewellery ever presented in the
United States, selected from the Bulgari historical
archives, demonstrating how the style of the brand has
evolved and the extent of its influence on the
international panorama of twenticth century jewellery.
This vintage jewellery and the Bulgari style also had an
exceptional showcase on the inauguration of the Ginza
Tower in Tokyo, thanks to a display of the brand’s
designs from the end of the nineteenth century to today
and to the production of limited edition articles of
jewellery with the celebmted theme of ancient coins;
Bulgan has always known how to optimise the vatue of
the intrinsic beauty of these items, which are on a par
with precious stenes, by combining history with the
latest designs.

Bulgani’s unique creations were additionally given a
welcome in the splendid setting of Palazzo Pitti in
Florence for an event directed at our best customers, in
which art and jewellery — which for the company is
experienced as an expression of taste and creativity, just
like art — joined together in an evocative union, providing
the guests with an unforgettable expernience.

The link between Bulgan and history also comes alive in
the Efisia collection of jewellery, launched in 2007, in
which the elliptic shape, inspired by architectural motifs

of different eras present in Rome and which had already
successfully distinguished the Bulgari models of the
1970s, is reinterpreted and given emphasis through the
use of cabochon stones and polychromatic enamel, thus
creating highly innovative combinations. The design of
the celebrated Parentesi  collection, another
unmistakeable motif which has acted as a landmark in
the history of Bulgari and jewellery in general, was also
renewed in 2007, with the single modular element being
emphasised, assembled with creativity and rendered even
more elegant and flexible. A further famous creation in
the Bulgari tradition of the 1960s, the bracelet with lion
heads mounted with rubies, sapphires and precious
stones, has been transformed into an emblematic
decorative clement in the Leoni line of bags and small
leather accessories. For Bulgari, though, the skill of
being able to reinvent itself continually while at the same
time maintaining the authoritativeness of its own
distinctive designs also holds good for the lines and
motifs more recently introduced in its watches such as
Assioma, the men’s collection launched so successfully
in 2005 and reinterpreted in a female key in the elegant
and precious Assioma D model presented at the Basel
Fair.

Finally, as the result of their taste and refinement Bulgan
creations have once again been extremely prominent on
society occasions and at award ceremonies and film
premiers,

In the light of this success Bulgari is facing 2008 with an
eternally innovative spirit, thanks to the special strength
of a brand that with its creativity, tradition and age-old
experience manages to be a part of history and at the
samg time projected into the future,

Paolo Bulgari

BULGARI § PA AND BULGARI GROUP
COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2007
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Nicola Bulgari, Vice Presidente
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Letter from the Chief Executive Officer

Dear Sharcholders,

[n 2007 Bulgari once again reported outstanding results
for the sales of all its product categories (up 14% at
comparable exchange rates), despite the uncertain
macro-economic scenario and the high level of volatility
in the financial markets. Jewellery sales performed
excellently (+20%), confirming the success of the new
collections, and watches achieved positive results too
(+8.2%), notwithstanding the difficulties encountered in
obtaining components; Bulgari fragrances continued
with their success and achieved exceptional growth of
15.4%, while there was a limited rise in the sales of
accessories given the previous year’s very high
comparative base and the weakness of the market in
Japan, which for this more recent business is still a key
country for Bulgan. Looking at sales by geographical
area the performance in the United States (+21%) was
sustained while there was positive growth in Europe
(+10.2%) and Italy (+7.6%}. The Asian market continued
to provide great satisfaction and while Japan
substantially closed the year at a stable level (—0.9%),
despite the difficult economic situation in that country,
the rest of Asia confinmed its enormous potential with
extremely buoyant growth of 41.2%.

These results become even more relevant considering that
during the year the Group continued with the development
of important projects which go in two fundamental
directions; the continuation of the vertical integration
process in the watches and gccessories product lines and
the opening of new stores in strategic markets or markets
having a significant potentizl. New launches naturally
accompany these projects for all of the Group’s product
types, in particular the new feminine skincare line
introduced initially only in [taly but which will have a
much wider distribution on an intemational scale over the
coming months.

In terms of the distribution network to quote only a few
of the more important events the Fifih Avenue store in
New York was reopened in April following its renovation
and enlargement, with supporting functions obtaining
considerable attention in the media; and in Tokyo two
magnificent spaces were inaugurated, the |[I-storey
Ginza Tower, the largest Bulgari store in the world, and
the Omotesando rwin store, with the former enhanced by
a restaurant and the latter by a cafe and a top quality
chocolate shop, which in just a short space of time have

become some of the most sought after locations in the
city for shopping and socia! life. Asia and America have
been at the centre of other important openings of a
strategic nature, with the inauguration of 5 new stores in
China and new sales points in American locations having
a great attraction from a tourist and economic standpoint,
such as Costa Mesa in California and Boca Raton in
Florida. Accessories played a leading role in Italy with
the opening of a splendid new store in Via Condotti in
Rome, fully dedicated to this line and close to the
historic flagship store from which the brand started off
its international success more than a century ago. The
commitment to the extension and renovation of the
distribution network was added to the dedication given to
the continuation of vertical integration as the result of the
acquisition of the Swiss company Finger — which
specialises in the creation and production of
sophisticated cases for top range complex watches — and
the purchases of machinery and inteflectual property
from the Swiss machine company Leschot having the
objective of increasing the brand’s expertise in the watch
sector and supporting internal growth in manufacturing.
On the accessories front the acquisition of Pacini in 2005
led to the realisation of a new manufacturing site in
Tuscany which will become fully operational during the
first few months of 2008.

The development of these projects, which play a strategic
role in implementing a product platform and distribution
network, is enabling the Group to become more
integrated, diversified and balanced in the geographical
areas in which it works and consequently more solid, and
better capable of facing the uncertainties which are a
current feature of the international markets, 1 am
therefore convinced that in 2008 Bulgari will further
consolidate the results it has obtained to date and will
successfully continue along its path of growth and
innovation.

Francesco Trapani

BULGARI S P A AND BULGARE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2007
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The Bulgari Group in 2007

Key figures and financial highlights

{million euros)

(million euros)

(miltion euros)

{miltion curos)




{numbers of employees a1 year-end)

{million eutos)

Investment {million euros)

(*)  Excludes IPO.
(**)} |AS/AFRS Comgpliant.
(***) In accordance with our starutory auditors KPMG, please note that some items have been reclassified and restated fur both fiscal years 2006 and 2007:
a) commissions lo distributors (Perfume LJSA) are now deducted from revenues. Previously revenues were presented gross of these commissions which were
included in the variable expettses;
b} withholding taxes are now included in current taxes. Previously the withholding taxes were included in the operating costs,

BULGARI S PA_AND BULGARI GRCUP
CONSOULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER z0ot




(=3



The Bulgari Group in 2007

The Bulgari Group ended 2007 with consolidated net revenues of
1,091.0 million euros, an increase of 13.6% at comparable exchan-
ge rates (+8.2% at current exchange rates). Today Bulgani is one of
the most important Groups operating in the luxury market.

Revenues by product category

Jewels o o 2%
W:;:che.v 7 o R )
hecewories &
Royalties and other B 1%
JWA Division o 78%
Perfume Division 20%
Hotels and other 2%

Revenues by geographical area

Europe 39%
of which:

- laly 13%
Americas o i 1 6:%
Asia 39%
of which: - o o i
— Japan 21%
~ the Rest of Asia 18%
Middle East 4%
Cllher ) 2%
Employees 3675
Ownership

Bulgarni family 51.35%

Paolo Bulgari

Nicola Bulgari

Francesco Trapani

Floating 48.65%

BULGARI SPA AND BULGAR] GROUP
CONSOLIDATED FENANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 11 DECEMBER 2007




The Bulgari Group at
31 December 2007
52 companies

in 24 countries

Bulgari S.p.A.

Is the parent company and owner

of the BVL.GARI brand name, It also
performs coordination activities in
the areas of product development,
marketing, finance and the
management of human resources.
Bulgari S.p.A. is 51.35% owned

by the Bulgari family and since

17 July 1995 has been listed on the
electronic system of the Italian Stock
Exchange. Its shares are also traded
on the London Stock Exchange IRS.

Bulgari {Austria) GmbH

Company that manages the BVLGARI

store in Vienna,

Bulgari { Deatschland) GmbH

Company that manages the BYLGARI

stores in Germany.

Bulgari {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

CompanE that manages the BVLGARI

store in Kuala Lumpur.

Bulgari {Taiwan) Ltd,

Company that manages the BYLGARI

stores in Tajwan,

Bulgari {Thailand) Ltd.

Compang that manages the BVLGARI

store in Bangkok.

Bulgan (UK) Ltd.

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in London,

Bulgari Accessori S.ri.

Company that produces and sells leather

gceessories,

Bulgari Asia Pacific Ltd.

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in Hong Kong.

Butgan Australia Pty. Ltd.

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in Australia.

Bulgari Belgium S.A.

Company that manages the BVLGAR!

stores in Brussels.

Bulgari Collection Internationale S.A.

Co_mlpany that produces high jewellery

articles.

Bulgari Commercial Shanghai Co. Led.

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in the People’s Republic of China.

Bulgari Corporation of Ametrica Inc.

Company that distributes BVLGARI

products in the United States.

Bulgari Espafa S.A. Unipersonal

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in Spain.

Bulgari France SASU

Company that manages the BVLGARI

stores in France.

Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A.

Company that coordinates the produc-

tion of jewels and silver in ltaly,

Bulgari Global Operations S.A.

Company involved in the development,

Broduclion. promotion and marketing of
VLGARI products on an intemational

level.

Bulgari Holding (Thailand) Ltd.

The company that has a shareholding in

Bulgari { Thailand) Ltd..

Bulgari Holding Europe B.V.

Sub-holding company which manages

investments.

Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.l.

Company that mnnqges hotels, resorts

and exclusive residences with the

BVLGARI brand in [1aly.

Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japun Litd.

Company that manages exclusive

BVLGARI brund restaurants in Japan.

Bulgani Hotels & Resorts B.V.

Company that buys companies active in

the hotel industry.

gu\iﬁan‘ International Corporation (BIC)

N,

_Sub-hol_din _company that manages
intemational investments and performs
financial transactions.

Bulgari lalia S.p.A.

Company that manages the BVLGARI
stores in [taly.

Bulgari Japan Lid.

Joint venture company with [tochu and
AOI that manages the BVLGARI stores
in Japan.

Bulgan Korea Ltd.

Company that manages the BVLGARI
stores in Korea.

Bulgari Montecarfo S.AM.

Company that manages the BVLGARI
store in Montecarlo,

Bulgari Operational Scrvices A.p.S.
Company that buys and leases aircraft
and provides additional services relating
to this activity.

Bulgari Panama lnc.

Company that manages the BYLGARI
store in Panama City.

Butgan Parfums Deutschiaznd GmbH

Company that distributes and markets

BVLGARE perfumes in Germany.

Butgan Parfums |beria S.A.

Company that distributes and markets

BVYLGARI perfumes in Spain.

Bulgari Parfums halia S.p.A.

Company that distributes and markets

BVLGARI perfumes and cosmetics in
Italy.

Bulgari Parfums S.A.

Company that distributes and markets

BVLGARI perfumes in France.

Bulgari Portugal Accessorios de Luxo
Lda

Company involved in international

operations.

Bulgari Reinsurunce Company Ltd.

Company that reinsures on the market

Group risks which are already insured,

Bulgari Retail USA S.el.

Company involved in the retail sale of

EVLGARI products in the United
tates.

Bulgari 8.A.
Company that manages the BYLGARI
stores in Switzerland.

Bulgari Suint Barth S.u.s,

Company that manages the BVLGARI
store in Saint Barthelemy.

Bulgari South Asian Operations Pte Ltd.
Company that manages the BVLGARI
stores in Singapore.

Bulgari Time {Switzerland) S.A.
Company that produces watches and
accessones and that is involved in all
activities relating to sitk,

Cadrans Design S.A.

Company that produces mechanisms
and components for watchmaking.
Crova S.p.A.

Company that produces and setls jewels.
Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta Haute
Horlogerie S.A.

Company that produces and distributes
Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta watches.
H. Finger AG

Comﬁany that produces components for
watchmaking.

LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.a.rl
Joint-venture with the Leviev Group for
the production and marketing of
diamongds to Bulgari Group companies,
Monaco S.A.

Comlﬂ:m that makes equity investments
and that holds 100% of the share capital
of H. Finger AG.

Opera Management 5.A.

Company that manages the “Opera
Partecipations S.c.a.” Iﬁnd

Opera Participations 2 S.c AL

Company that invests in companies
producing “Made in l[taly” g and
services.

Opera Panicipations S.c.A.

Company that invests in companies
producing “Made in [aly” g and
Services.

Opera SGR S.p.A.

Company whose business is the provi-
sion of professional fund menagement
services.

Prestige d'Or S.A.

Comﬁany that produces components for
watchmaking,




Group structure

as of 31 December 2007
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The Bulgari story

The Bulgaris descend from an ancient family of Greek
silversmiths from Epirus whose progenitor, Sotirio, craf-
ted precious objects in silver. In the middle of the ninete-
enth century Sotirio moved to Italy and opened the first
store in Rome in Via Sistina, replaced in 1905 by a new
store located in Via Condotti, which is the point of refe-
rence today of all the Bulgari stores in the world. In the
meantime Sotirio was supported by his sons Giorgio and
Costantino, who during the first decade of the twenticth
century decided to move away from the strict disciplines
of the French school to create a unique style inspired by
Greco-Roman classicism, the Italian Renaissance and
the nineteenth century goldsmith schoo! in Rome. In the
nineteen fifties and sixties, the bold and innovative style
of Bulgari gained success amongst the protagonists of
the jet set and movie world. The brand thus reached an
international fame which in the nincteen seventies
encouraged the first phasc of the Group's intemational
expansion, with the opening of new overseas stores in
New York, Geneva, Montecarlo and Pans. In 1977
Bulgari left an important mark on the world of watchma-
king launching the first Bulgari Bulgari watch, by now a
classic model, and founding in Switzerland in 1980 the
company Bulgari Time to manage the creation and pro-
duction of watches. In 1984 Paolo Bulgari became
Chairman of Bulgari and Nicofa Bulgari and Francesco
Trapani were appointed Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director respectively. A phase of strong growth and
important challenges started in that period and in 1993
Bulgari chose to diversify its product portfolio entering
the perfume business with the launch of its first fragran-
ce Eau Parfumée au The Vert, followed by nine other
successful fragrances. The company Bulgari Parfums
was founded in Switzerland to manage the creation and
production of perfumes. In 1995 Bulgari was listed on
the Milan Stock Exchange and its shares are also curren-
tly traded on the IRS segment of the London Stock
Exchange. In 1996 the diversification process was boo-
sted with the first silk collection, followed a year later by
a wide mange of teather accessories and eyeware. The
year 2000 inaugurated a more aggressive strategy of ver-
ticalisation with the acquisition of the top of the range
watchmaking brands Daniel Roth and Gérald Genta. [n
2002 and 2003, due to major economic and political
uncertainty strategies were adopted aimed at controlling
costs and improving manufacturing processes and effi-
ciency, without overlooking at the same time new pro-
duct launches. In addition the vertical integration process
continued in 2002 with the acquisition of a 50% stake in
Crova, a historical top of the range jewellery brand. The
year 2004 was one of intense activity for the launch of
new products and the creation of partnership and strate-
gic initiatives for the business development and enhance-
ment of the brand, and indeed to further increase the pro-
duction of diamond jewels a joint venture owned 50% by
Bulgari International Corporation and 50% by LLD
Diamonds Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Leviev
Group, the world’s largest producer of cut diamonds, was

established. With regard to jewellery, and in accordance
with the vertical integration strategy adopted, in the same
year the Bulgari Group completed the acquisition of
Crova to armive at 100%. The opening of the first Bulgan
Hotel in Milan in 2004 as a result of & joint venture bet-
ween Bulgari and the Luxury Group (a division of
Marriott International) further strengthened the brand,
expressing the concept of contemporary hixury in presti-
gious locations with an exclusive design. In 2005 the
continuation of the vertical integration strategy led to
three further acquisitions: in the watchmaking sector the
two Swiss companies Cadrans Design (acquired at 50%),
producing dials for high end watches, and Prestige d'Or
(acquired at 51%), specialising in the production of
metal watchstraps, became part of the Group. [n the
accessory sector Bulgari acquired 100% of the Italian
company Pacini, then renamed Buigari Accessori S.rl.,
which produces precious hides and fabric handbags. In
2006 the Group further consolidated the results of its ver-
ticalisation and diversification strategies: in the accesso-
ry segment — in light of the increase of production capa-
city and after the success of the first two fully dedicated
stores opened in 2005 — the experience was repeated in
Milan, where the first Bulgari accessory store for Eurcpe
was inaugurated in September, followed a few months
later by the opening of another shop in Florence.
Furthermore in the watchmaking sector a calibre was
entirely developed, produced and assembled by the
Group for the first time.

The Group has grown again in 2007 by aiming in two
directions: firstly continuing its vertical integration pro-
cess, in particular in the watch sector, and secondly ope-
ning new stores in strategic markets or those of great
potential. As part of this agreements were signed for the
acquisition of 100% of the Swiss company Finger —
which specialises in the creation and production of
sophisticated cases for top range complex watches —
and for the purchase of machinery and intellectual pro-
perty from the Swiss machine company Leschot, with
the objective of increasing the brand’s expertise in the
watch sector and supporting internal growth in manufac-
turing. On a distribution level as far as the more impor-
tant inaugurations are concerned the year saw the Fifth
Avenue store in New York reopening following comple-
tion of extension and renovation work and in Japan the
opening of the largest Bulgari store in the world, the 11
story Ginza Tower in Tokyo, together with a new twin-
store in the Omotesando quarter of the city. In Rome, a
new store fully dedicated to accessories was opened in
Via Condotti, Bulgari also strengthened its presence on
the Chinese market with the opening of 5 sales points,
taking the number of its stores in continental China to 9.
Further value was given to the watch sector through the
opening of 2 stores in Paris and Geneva dedicated to the
Gérald Genta brand. Finally the new line of feminine
skincare was launched on the Ialian market in the
autumn as the precursor to a far more extensive distribu-
tion of the product on a worltdwide scale in 2008.







Jewels

Bulgari creations

Bulgari creations are appreciated by international clientele for their
unmistakable, bold and refined style, where the extreme attention
placed on quality and an innovative design make them a timeless
example of elegance.

Their contemporaneity, a fundamental characteristic of Bulgari
creations, is based on their ability to reinterpret themes and motifs
inspired by art and architecture in an gvocative and, at the same
time, extraordinarily original style, which enhances the
personalities of the people who wear them,

A sense of volume, a passion for linear and symmetrical forms and
an attention to detail are the distinctive features of Bulgari jewels,
which are the result of a constant search to blend tradition and
innovation. Bulgari jewels enhance feminility in the best possible
manner with ten collections that fit differing lifestyles and ways of
being. The famous collections Parentesi, Tubogas, Bulgari Bulgari,
Astrale and Allegra are therefore designed for a contemporary
woman who lives the jewel as an expression of her personality and
elegance, Lucea is a homage to a refined feminility, while 8.zerol
expresses a simple and linear style which is perfect for every
occasion.

The new propositions for 2007 are characterised by motifs that
emphasise the link that Bulgari has with art and history: in the
Elisia jewellery collection the elliptical shape, inspired by
architectural motifs of various eras which were present in Rome
and which was already a successfuf feature of the Bulgari models
of the nineteen seventics, is reinterpreted and given value with the
use of cabochon cut stones and polychromic enamels, thus creating
highly innovative combinations. The design of the famous
Farentesi collection, another unmistakable motif which has been a
landmark in the history of Bulgari and of jewellery in genera), was
also renewed in 2007, with the single modular element being
emphasised, assembled with creativity and rendered even more
elegant and flexible. The High Jewellery Collection, the highest
expression of Bulgari's creativity and design, has been enriched in
2007 with new and extraordinary one-of-a-kind pieces. The High
Jewellery Collection creations are displayed on rotation in the
Bulgari stores all over the world, showing that taste and top quality
in materials and workmanship are always pursued to conceive
symbols of a timeless beauty. The evolution of the Bulgari design
is illustrated in the precious Vintage Collection, consisting of
approximately 200 not-for-sale one-of-a-kind creations dating from
1920 to the nineteen nineties.







Watches

Bulgari watches are conceived for both men and women, satisfying
the strictest criteria of Swiss watchmaking while at the same time
featuring a contemporary and innovative style. Thanks to the
verticalisation process in watchmaking, begun in 2000 and pursued
with determination in the foltowing years, Bulgari has gained a
foremost position in the scctor with the prospect of becoming one
of the few manufacturers worldwide and of being able to produce
all the watch movements internally, Bulgari offers various lines
including the classic Bulgari Bulgari, Diagono, Rettangolo, Ergon
and Assioma, accompanied each year by new launches always
technically in the vanguard, Launches in 2007 have seen new
interpretations of the Bulgari Bulgari, Ergon and Assioma models,
which diamonds render even more precious and exclusive. The
celebrated curved form of the casing, a feature of the Assioma
collection in particular, has been reinterpreted in an elegant and
refined manner in the feminine Assioma D, presented exclusively at
the Basel Fair, in which a rose cut diamond is set in the crown, and
in the Assioma Muiticomplication Squeletie model, in which the
transpargncy of the dial adds value to the beauty of the movement,
initiated in 2006 as the first calibre manufactured by Bulgari. The
new Bulgari Bulgari models have also been made more precious by
putting diamends on the casing or by giving them an exclusive
treatment such as clou de Paris or guilloché soleil for the dials. The
avantguard Ergon design has been enriched further with new men’s
and ladies’ models with brilliant cut diamonds set in the casing,
mounted in the crown or inlaid in the numbers.
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Perfumes and cosmetics

Bulgari proposes ten different fragrances with a complimentary
bath line providing a wide range of emotions and sensations and
created to become new classics. The Eaux Parfumées range
matches the delicate lightness of cologne with the benefic relaxing
properties of green and white teas. Bulgari pour Femme is flowery
and powdery with a hint of jasmine tea while the male fragrance
Bulgari ponr Homme is characterised by precious musks and a hint
of Dagjeeling tea. With Omnia, Bulgani proposes an onental
fragrance, a combination of unexpected flavours skilfully blended
in an aroma of absolute femininity. The success of the perfume
BLV, characterised by an original hint of ginger around which an
extraordinary olfactory ambient evolves, stimulated the creation of
BLV pour Homme, a fragrance of unexpected contrasts and
surprising alchemies, and the launch of BLV Notte, which develops
the most sensual and mysterious hints of the BLV universe. Petits et
Mamans is the line designed for children and their mothers, with
hints of chamomile and tale, while Black is a cosmopolitan
fragrance for men and women. Furthermore, with Rose Essentielle
and Voile de Jasmin for women and Bulgari Four Homme Soir and
Bulgari Pour Homme Extréme for men, some of the peculiar hints
of Bulgari Pour Fermnme and Bulgari Pour Homme are explored and
emphasised, creating a new universe of fragrances suited to various
occasions and moods. The new 2007 fragrances are fully dedicated
1o women with the toilet water version of the Rose Essentielle
fragrance and the hint of iris and Bulgarian rose which characterise
the new Omnia Améthyste fragrance, whose twisted bottle shape —
which recalls that of Omnia perfume — presents an elegant play of
dazzling lights with its violet shades acting as a reminder of the
precious reflections of amethyst and the identity of Bulgari
jewellery as a whole.
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The experience and tradition of excellence in the selection and
working of the precious stones was also a source of inspiration for
the Bulgari feminine skincare line, launched in Italy in 2007 in a
carefully selected range of perfumeries. The skincare line,
consisting of 15 different product types, for the first time
concentrates the beneficial qualities of the oligoclements to be
found in the gems of precious stones in an active ingredient
patented and conceived by the Bulgari Research Department.
Bulgari plans to distribute this line on a worldwide scale in 2008.







Accessories

The range of Bulgari creations features precious silk products such
as the celebrated “seven folds” tie where tailoring elegance
matches with exclusive fabrics and the most accurate
craftsmanship. The collection of ties, scarves and steles offers a
variety of colours and patterns that make them suitable for the most
varied occasions. Leather and precious fabric bags express a
sophisticated yet innovative elegance with creations for night and
day endowed with a great personality. The travel line offers bags
and suitcases for work and leisure, combining class with
practicality. The various models of pens, key-rings and silver and
leather goods are intended as gifts or something one can treat
oneself to. They are tasteful and refined objects that can always be
used in daily life.

The range of accessories is completed by the collection of
sunglasses and spectacles, produced in partnership with Luxottica.
The modern and elegant Bulgari eyewear is enriched with precious
details that make each medel an expression of personality and
refinement.

With its product launches in 2007 Bulgari has emphasised how its
identity and stylistic originality are naturatly transmitted from its
jewels to its accessories; in the autumn-winter Leoni collection of
handbags a famous jewel of the nineteen sixties forming part of the
Bulgari tradition, a bracelet with lion heads mounted with rubies,
sapphires and precious stones, has been transformed into an
emblematic decorative element. The vivacious colours of precious
stones have been a source of inspiration for the elegant spring-
summer collection, which conjures up a Mediterranean ambience
and one in which unexpected and absolutely unconventional
materials and craftsmanship are to be found.

The accessory category has recently been enhanced through a
network of fully dedicated stores in the main international markets
in which the Group operates.

The new accessory store in Rome,
Via Condotti

[
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Tokyo, Ginza Tokyo, Omotesando
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Bulgari Hotels & Resorts

The Bulgari Hotels & Resorts project originates from the desire to
reinforce the prestige and visibility of the brand through unique
hotets and resorts which are able to express the concept of
contemporary luxury that distinguishes all Bulgari creations. The
joint venture signed in 2001 with the Luxury Division of Marriott
International. a partner with enormous experience in the luxury
hotel business, guarantees the highest level of service and
professionalism.

The first Bulgari Hotel, a five-star tuxury hotel opened in Milan in
2004, is situated on Via Privata Fratelli Gabba, which from a
cultural and commercial point of view is the most prestigious area
of the city due to its proximity to Via Montenapoleone, Via deila
Spiga, La Scala and the Brera district.

[n September 2006 the second step taken in the Bulgan Hotels &
Resorts project was the opening of an extreordinary resort in Bali
(Indonesia} in the Jimbaran peninsular, located on a secluded
plateau with cliffs plunging down into the sea. This position is one
of incomparable beauty for a resort where traditional Balinese style
is reinterpreted in a contemporary and elegant way by offering
guests the most exclusive services and sophisticated attention.

The Bulgari Hotels & Resorts project will be continued by
selecting new and exclusive !ocations in other capital cities and
tourist destinations worldwide.

27







Bulgari quality

A spirit of excellence permeates every Bulgari creation. Attention
to detail and the pursuit of absolute quality, typical of all the
Group's products, coexist with an innate desire to surpass oneself
and respond with passion to the ever-changing requirements of the
market.

Every Bulgari product, whether it be a jewel, watch, perfime or
accessory, is an object that has been checked in the most minute
detail to ensure that it upholds the Bulgari tradition of quality and
is perfectly faithful to the sensitivity and intentions of its creator.
Bulgari jewels are initially conceived with a design in water-colour
or terpera. At this point the craftsman takes over using his skilled
hands and experience to create an object with a particular softness,
roundness and perfection.

From the first drawing the idea is analysed and developed
creatively, so as to assess the materials and colours best suited to its
development and wearability, as well as its compatibility with the
Bulgari tradition and style.

With watches too Bulgari has succeeded in combining refined
design with sophisticated mechanisms, produced and checked in
accordance with the stringent and rigorous criteria of Swiss
certification, a guarantee of high quality.

All Bulgari watches are manufactured in the Neuchitel workshops
of Bulgari Time in Switzerland.

In order to guarantee the same level of quality for all Bulgari
creations, perfumes are produced with the same care and attention
to detail. For this reason Bulgari has chosen to control directly cach
stage of the creation, production and distribution of its perfumes
through Bulgari Parfums.

The strong relationship developed with Luxottica’s product
development team has resulted in the creation of an innovative and
refined eyewear coliection.

Customer service also receives significant attention as part of
Bulgari’s pursuit of absolute quality.

Personnel are trained under the Excellence programme which has
been employed since 1990 to bring to every Bulgari store the
standards of excellence which are a feature of the century long
experience of the Via Condotti store in Rome.
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Distribtion strategies

The distribution of Bulgari products is based on ensuring the
presence of stores in selected locations in the world’s major cities
in order to guarantee an ideal positioning.

All Bulgari stores are designed in a modern and highly distinctive
style. Italian marble, prized timber and exhibition spaces are
carcfully designed to enhance the entire range of Bulgan
collections, from jewels to watches and accessories, thus
contributing towards a welcoming atmosphere.

The distribution of watches has followed a well-defined strategy.
Care is taken to select franchisees who are capable of offering
impeccable customer service.

The distribution network for Bulgari perfumes is also operated with
the same criteria of quality and selectivity. Bulgari fragrances are
only available in the finest perfumeries and department stores in the
world,
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Drive for success
We believe that by challenging our competition every day,
on every product, in every store and on every aclivity, we
will become the market leader.

Value creation
We believe that we will continue to achieve onr sustainable
growth by focusing our efforts, competencies and entreprenenrial
spirit on value creating activities.

Power of brands
We helieve that the power of our brands is the foundation
Jor future successes. All of our activities should reflect and
nurture the corvesponding style.

Excellence
We believe in the importance of achieving excellence in the
outstanding quality of vur products and services to internal
and external customers through the professionalism of our
organization.

People contribution
We believe that everyone can contribute to the achievement
of the company's mission through personal involvement,
personal responsibility and personal comniitment.

Integrity and consistency
We believe that integrity, clarity and consistency in all of
our decisions, actions and communication, regardless of
imternal and external pressures, build an environment
where everyone is committed to the uchievement of the
company's mission.

Engaging environment
We helieve that mutual respect, trust, professional growth,
team spirit and lively environment are the building blocks
of our company culture.




Human resources

MANCA TESTO RISORSE UMANE - 1.
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Manca testo - segue "Human resources”

MANCA TESTO RISORSE UMANE -2
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The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Bulgari Group consists of
seasoned professionals of the highest calibre, all of whom with
experience in major international companies. Their acquired
knowledge and strong personal motivation has made them into a
closely knit and winning team, which sharing a commeon
philosophy is able to carry forward Bulgari's prestigious mission
effectively and successfully.

Francesco Trapani
Managing Dircctor

Paolo Alberti

Executive Vice President Perfumces Division

Alessandro Bogliolo
Executive Vice President Jewellery,

Watches and Accessortes Division

Alberto Nathansohn
Exccutive Vice President Administration,
Finance and Control

Flavia Spena
Executive Vice President Human Resources
and Organisation

Silvio Ursini
Exccutive Vice President Brand Image
and New Business Development
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Board of Directors

Chairman
Paolo Bulgarni

Deputy Chairman
Nicola Bulgari

Managing Director
Francesco Trapani

Directors

Claudio Costamagna
Claudio Sposito

Giulio Figarolo di Gropello
Paolo Cuecia

Board of Statutory Auditors

Chairman
Eugenio Pinto

Standing Auditors
Maurizio de Magistris
Gerardo Longobardi
Substitute Auditors

Tiziano Onesti
Mario Civetta

Auditing Company

KPMG S.p.A.

BULGARE S PA AND BULGARI GROUP
CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER zoo7
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Bulgari $.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Report of the Directors on the
Group’s performance for the year ended
3| December 2007

Shareholders,

The year which has just ended saw us achieve a solid performance in the first part and a subsequent slowdown
in the latter, characterised as it was by tensions in the financial markets, pressure on oil and raw materials
prices, extreme volatility in exchange rates and the significant strength of the euro compared to all the other
currencies.

The economic situation is precarious from many points of view, with any changes in macro-economic figures
often leading to un exaggerated reaction and purely speculative activities.

We believe that the market will welcome with great satisfaction the results achieved by the Bulgari Group in
2007, both in terms of sales and profits. This confirms yet again the strength of a brand whose potential has
been well exploited by the steps we have taken over the past few years, even when the markets were difficult,
and we believe that we will be able to grow further with the investments planned for the upcoming period.
Net sales have risen by 8.2% over 2006 (13.6% at comparable exchange rates), operating profit by 4.7% and
net income by 12.4%. In addition, we continued making important investments throughout the year, especially
those aimed at broadening and renovating the distribution network and production capacity and an interesting
retum is expected from these in the medium term.

KEY ECONOMIC INDICATORS

Consolidated net revenues of 1,091.0 million euros for 2007 compare with 1,008.7 million euros for the
previous year.

Contribution margin rose from 647.4 to 699.1 million euros (up 8%), representing 64.1% of net sales compared
to 64.2% in 2006. The Group was able to keep this margin firm because of the increasing vertical integration
it has achieved in strategic sectors, the success of the steps taken to achieve efficiencies in production and price
increases introduced during the year despite the negative effect of exchange rates {in particular those with the
yen and the dollar) and the rise in raw materials prices (principally those relating to gold and precious stones).
In this respect it is worthwhile noting that the Group has continued to employ hedging transactions against the
risk of changes in exchange rates and in the price of gold, and the positive effects of this can be seen in
“financial income” in the income statement which includes the portion relating to commercial transactions.
This represents a significant component of income for us again this year.

(millions of enros)

NET REVENUES CONTRIBUTION MARGIN OPERATING PROFIT NET INCOME
1.091.0 150.9
1,008.7 ] 699.1 157.1 164.5 —
9185 6474 = L 1343
= %62 M — 116.4
2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007

Operating costs rose from 490.3 to 534.6 million euros this year, representing an increase of 9.0%. This rise
is the reflection of two distinct effects: on the one huand the Group continues to make investments aimed at
extending and renewing its distribution network and increasing production capacity; and on the other there
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are the significant one-off effects connected with the start-up of the skincare project and the concentration
in the latter part of the year on the opening of three flagship stores {(in October the accessories-only store in
Rome and the Omotesando complex in Tokyo, and in November the Ginza Tower in Tokyo). Advertising and
promotion expenses amounted to 119,6 million euros, representing 11% of net sales and consistent with
2006.

In the light of these investments operating profit of [64.5 million euros was in line with forecasts, rising by
4.7% compared to 157.1 million euros in 2006. If the increase in costs arising from the one-off effects discussed
above is excluded, the rise of operating profit in percentage terms compared to the previous year would be
considerably greater than the increase in turnover at current exchange rates. Operating profit represents 15.1%
of revenues, slightly lower than the 15.6% of 2006.

Net income of 150.9 million euros represents an increase of 12.4% over the 134.3 miition euros of the previous
year. Contributing to this improvement were, as mentioned above, the income earned on currency and precious
metals hedging transactions and recognised as financial income and a significant improvement in the effect of
taxation as a percentage due to non-recurring factors. Net income represented 13.8% of revenues, a further
improvement over the 13.3% achieved in 2006.

These figures and the excellent results achieved over the past few years go to confirm the success of the Group’s
strategies, which are aimed at maintaining growth in terms of both sales and profits, and ensure that this will
continue into the coming years.

Table | - BULGARI GROUP - Consolistated income Ratement (miltices of curcs)
007 006 Difference %
Nel revenues 1,091.0 1,008.7 823 3.2%
Net contribution margin 699.1 647.4 51.7 8.0%
64.1% 64.2%
Variuble selling expenses (48.8) (42.0) (6.8) 16.2%
Personnel costs {170.3) (157.4) {12.9) 8.2%
Other incomes and expenses (1521 (139.5) (3.1 9.4%
Advertising and promotion expenses (£19.6) (129 (6.7) 5.9%
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 43.0) 138.3) (4.8) 12.6%
Total operating expenses (534.6) (490.3) (44.3) 2.0%
Operating profit 164.5 1571 74 4.7%
15.1% 15.6%
Other non-operating incomes {expenses) 0.6 {L.6) 22 139.4%
Incotne before taxation and minority interests 165.1 155.6 9.5 6.1%
Current und deferred taxation (14.0) (20.6) 6.6 -32.1%
Income before minority interests 151.1 135.0 16.0 11.9%
13.8% 134%
Income attributable to minority interests (0.2) (0.8) 0.5 -68.3%
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 150.9 134.3 16.6 124%
13.8% 13.3%

MACRO-ECONOMIC SCENARIO

The world economy performed well in the first part of the year. Expansion continued also into the third
quarter, held up by a persistently prosperous economic situation in the emerging areas of the world. This




scenario, however, gradually deteriorated due to the tensions in the financial markets set off by the subprime
mortgage crisis.

The macroeconomic picture in the United States is not encouraging. The dollar is reaching historical lows,
not only compared to the euro but also against various South American and Asian currencies. There are
signs of recession, such as the decrease in wages, the fall in consumer confidence indices and significani
drops in retail sales and orders for durable goods. With the intention of stabilising the economy the Federal
Reserve cut interest rates in the period from September to February by 2.25 percentage points, after
reducing the rate by 50 basis points to 4.75% in August, despite the existence of a real and growing risk of
inflation,

The eurozone economy is showing signs of the effects induced by the slowdown in the United States and the
lasting strength of the euro. Business confidence surveys show that companies are reducing their expectations
of real growth in the area and even considering combined demand, retail sales are turning out to be less
impressive as a whole. The latest forecasts for the growth in GDP in real terms for 2008 arrive at 2% with
inflation estimated at 2.5%. but a revision of these figures is expected to be made, with growth being revised
downwards and inflation revised upwards.

The European Central Bank took emergency steps in August, putting a considerable amount of additional
liquidity into circulation with the aim of stabilising the markets. This measure, which was certainly of an
extraordinary nature, was decided after a jump in overnight interest rates, which rose to their highest levels for
the past six years and a good deal higher than the 4% reference.

At the present time there are no signs of the possibility of a further monetary slackening given the significant
riscs that have taken place in the prices of oil and raw materials, which are keeping the risk of inflation high.
The macroeconomic signals arriving from Japan also indicate a scenario in which growth will be more
contained. Consumer and business confidence indices have recently been falling; more specifically,
consumers have felt the effect of the rise in energy prices at a time when wages are stagnant, while those
businesses more exposed to the export channel are stressing the changes taking place in the global growth
picture. For its part core inflation, that which excludes the more volatile energy and food product
components, is still in negative territory, even though only just, with a figure of —0.1% recorded for
December. The combination of a less than brilliant internal demand and a certain delay in the return to a rise
in prices justifies the waiting strategy adopted by the Bank of Japan and indicates that a pause is taking place
in the process of interest rate normalisation.

There is the overall impression from recent events that the economic system is becoming more uncertain and
risky.

Apart from the macroeconomic situation, which inevitably affects all of the markets, a further element
influencing the luxury sector in which Bulgari operates is the strengthening of the euro, a trend which the
leading analysts state is unlikely to disappear in the short term. More specifically, there was an average
dollarfeuro exchange rate of 1.37 in 2007 (up 9.2% over the 2006 average), while there was an average yenfeuro
rate of 161.24 in the year, compared to 146.07 in 2006 (up 10.4%). At the end of the year these rates were
respectivelyl.47 (dollar/euro) and 164.93 (yen/euro).

The rise in the price of gold price appears endless and not even the possibility of imminent sale of reserves by
the International Monetary Fund was able to put a halt (o its climb, with a peak of 967.7 dollars/ounce being
reached in February. There was an average price for the year of 694 dollars/founce compared to an average of
604 dollarsfounce in 2006 (up 14.9%) and 445 dollarsfounce in 2005 (up 55.9%).There were also record
increases in the prices of precious metals such as platinum and silver.

[t is clear that the trends in the currency markets and in the price of gold are elements of considerable pressure
for the contribution margin of a Group such as Bulgari, which carries out a part of its sales in currencies which
are depreciating while incurring a consistent part of the cost of its products in euros, obviously linked to the
price of gold and precious stones.
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Analysis of the Group's most significant revenues and operations
REVENUES BY PRODUCT TYPE

Sales in 2007 increased for the fourth consecutive year in alt the sectors in which the Group operates. All
product types benefited from the constant research and innovation activities carried out by the Group and from
the new product launches made during the year.

In jewellery, Bulgari’s main product type, sales performance was excellent yet again with an increase of 20%
at comparable exchange rates (14% at current exchange rates). The final quarter of 2007 was the seventeenth
consecutive quarter of growth, confirming the success that the designs of the lines launched over the past few
years have had with customers. There were important changes to products again in 2007, characterised by & mix
of innovation and tradition, The B.zero! line was exiended with the introduction of new products which pick
up the famous Turbogas motif from the standpoint of stylet, enhancing and adding to a line which is also
successful. The new Parentesi openwork collection has been introduced which is already exceeding the
excetlent results achieved by Parentesi Revolution launched in 2006. The new Elisia jewellery collection went
on sale in the second half of the year, taking up the harmonious elliptical form that Bulgari has always
preferred, especially in the 1970s.

The sales of watches increased by 8% (2% at current exchange rates), despite the difficulty in obtaining
components which restricted production capacity, an increased selection of products on offer and a policy to
protect margins with third party distributors.

To the confirmation of the success of the new products already introduced in 2006, such as the new Bvigari-
Bvigari, should be added the excellent welcome given by the market to Assioma D, a ladies watch which
completes the Bulgari offer in the precious watch segment. The Bulgari Group is determined to invest in vertical
integration in this category and the fourth quarter of the year saw the finalisation of the acquisition of the Swiss
company H. Finger AG, which specialises in the production of sophisticated cases, through the purchase of its
parent Monraco S.A.. The purchase of machinery and intellectual property from the Swiss company Leschot
S.A. was also completed, having the aim of significantly strengthening internal production of manufactured
movements.

Accessories increased in line with expectations with the increase in sales limited to 1% (-5% at current
exchange rates), substantially due to last year's extremely high starting base (+19% in 2006) and to the
weakness of the market in Japan which is the key country for this product type. It should be noted though that
the sale of accessories in owned stores achieved double digit growth this year, with an acceleration taking place
during the Christmas period, confirming the product strategy in this case of increasing the products on offer in
the top of the range segment. The success of the new Leoni and Bulgari Tondo handbag collections is
highlighted in this respect.

The IWA (Jewels-Watches-Accessories) Division grew overall by 13% (8% at current exchange rates).

Sales of the Perfume Division also achieved impressive growth compared to 2006, rising by 15% at comparable
exchange rates and 11% at current exchange rates. New product launches in perfumes this year were focused
on feminine fragrances, even though the important news in the first half of the year was the presentation of a
skincare line, for which distribution began at the end of the third quarter of 2007. The new skincare line is the
consequence of the authoritativeness which Bulgari has acquired in the perfume sector, where it is able to
propose products of the highest quality realised with exclusive formulae and developed in its research
depurtment in connection with a specialist group of dermatologists and cosmeticians of worldwide fame. The
skincare line will be distributed throughout a carefully selected group of perfumeries, initially only in Italy.

The business of the Milan hotel continues with increasing success following its inauguration in May 2004; this
hotel, the first of its kind bearing the BVLGARI brand, is run in partnership with the Marriott Group. The Bali
resort inaugurated in 2006 is also going from strength to strength. To these must also be added the recent
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extraordinary triumph of the opening of the restaurant and café in Ginza and Omotesando in Tokyo. The Hotel
& Resorts Division made a contribution of 13.6 million euros to turnover in 2007, representing an increase of
21.3% over 2006.

Table 2 below sets out revenues for 2007, the percentage of total revenues for each product type and the
increase, at both current and comparable exchange rates, compared to the previous year.

Table 2 - BULGAR! GROUP — Revenues by protuct type (millions of curns)

Product line Total 2007 Total 2006
Absolute % A% vaPVY Absolute % A % v PVY

value -_— vahwe -

Curr. Comp. Curmr. Comp.

exch, rate exch, rte exch. rate exch. rate

Jewellery 459.9 42% + 14 +20 402.0 0% +9 +i1

Wutches 294.8 27% +2 +3 289.1 29% +8 +10

Accessories 84 8% -5 +! 839 9% +15 +19

Other {rovalties from FR included} 75 1% +2 - 74 0% +14 -

JWA Division 846.6 78% +8 +13 7874 78% +9 +11

Perfume Division 221.9 20% +11 +15 199.8 20% +10 +11

Hotel Division 13.6 1% +21 - 1.2 1% +17 -

Royalties from TP and other
{IC elim. incl) 8.9 1% -13 - 103 1% +Hb -
Total net revenues 1,091.0 100% +8 +14 1,008.7 100% +10 +12

The operating prefitability for each sector is reported in the notes.

REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

The performance of sales in Europe was very positive (up 10%), compared to what was already a high starting
point last year (up t1%), with Italy doing very well (up 8%).

The considerable increase achieved in the United States (up 21%) was of great satisfaction, despite the high
starting base (up 15%).

After a series of negative quarters there was a turnaround in the trend in Japun in the second half of the year,
due to the opening of the two new flagship stores in Tokyo at the end of October {Omotesando) and at the end
of November (Ginza Tower), which closed the year essentially stable (down 1% at comparable exchange rates
and down 10% ai current exchange rates).

Last of all, significant growth continued in the rest of Asia where there was a buoyant increase of 41% at
comparable exchange rates. The area now accounts for 18% of sales, reaching almost the level of Japan (21%).
This growth tendency is constant across all the countries in the area and the excellent performance of the
Chinese market, supported by an increasing number of directly managed stores, should be stressed.
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Table 3 below sets out revenues for 2007 by geographical area, determined on the basis of outlet market, their
amount as a percentage of total revenues and the change over 2006 measured at current exchange rates and
comparable exchange rates.

Table 3 - BULGARI GROUP — Revenues by geugraphical area (enilliots of eurce)
Geographlcnl area Total 2007 Total 2006
Absotute % A % vs PYY Absolute % A % vs PYY

vakue —_———— vatue —_—

Curr. Comp. Curr. Comp.

exch. rate exch. rate exch. rate exch. rate

Europe 4213 39% +10 - 381.7 38% +11 -
of which;

- faly I41.4 13% +8 - 131.4 13% +/ -

America 176.4 16% +12 +21 157.4 16% +14 +15

Asia 4293 39% 0 +15 406.4 4060 +7 +11
af which:

— Japan 2317 2H% =10 -1 256.6 25% +7 +14

~ rest of Asia 197.6 18% +32 +41 149.8 15% +7 +7

Middle East 40.4 4% ~0 - 405 4% +9 -

Other 17.6 2% +5 - 16.7 2% +2 -

TOTAL NET REVENUES 1,091.0 100% +3 +14 1,008.7 100%% +10 +12

Financial and balance sheet situations of the Group

Net financial debt at 31 December 2007 of 140.9 million euros compares with the figure of 46.9 million euros
at 31 December 2006,

This increase is due to the significant investments made during the year, the increase in working capital to
support the rise in sales and the distribution of dividends of over 86.9 million euros to shareholders.

The increase of 67 million euros in inventory over 31 December 2006 is partly due to the difficulty in obtaining
components, the increase in stocks for precious stones in particutar and the bringing forward of the spring and
summer line to respond to market demand.

Shareholders’ equity at the end of the year, inclusive of minority interests, amounted to 778.5 million euros
{773.9 million euros if minority interests are excluded), compared to 743.0 million euros at 31 December 2006
{734.9 million euros if minority interests are excluded).

The gearing ratio, being the ratio between net debt and shareholders’ equity inclusive of minority interests, was
18% at the end of 2007.




The Group's reclassified balance sheet follows:

Tablc 4 - BULGARL GROUP - Reclassified comsalidated balance sheet (suillions of eurs)
/122007 3222006
Net trade reccivables 2022 187.0
Other receivables 59.3 459
Imventory 596.1 528.9
Trade payables (188.00 (159.7)
Other payables (55.9) (5L.2)
Total net working capital 6127 550.9
Propenty, plant and equipments and intangible assets 279.1 209.7
Investments und other financial ussets 40.2 426
Other long-term assets (Jiabilities) {13.6) {133
INVESTED CAPITAL 919.4 789.9
Shareholders’ equity TI8S 7430
Short-term indebtedness 839 10.6
Long-term indebtedness 51.0 36.3
Total indebtedness 140.9 46.9
COVER 9194 789.9

The balance sheet has been reclassified above by using a format that highlights the Group’s Net Invested Capital
and how this is funded by equity and debt. This enables it to be read from a more operational perspective, makes
an analysis of the efficiency of investments easier and, together with the income statement, assists in carrying
out calculations of the retum on investment indices such as R.O.I. and R.O.E..

Compared to the official format attached to the financial statements at 31 December 2007, which follows a
more conventional presentation by separating net assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity, all the liability
items other than financial items are classified as a reduction in invested capital in the above structure, while
liquid funds are classified in funding as a reduction in debt.

INVESTMENTS

Investments of 86.6 million euros in plant, property and equipment were made in 2007 which relate amongst
other things to work carried out, or stiil in progress, to open or renovate stores and to the purchase of window
displays for use by the third party distribution network for the presentation of BYLGARI products.

Amongst the major investments we should like to highlight those relating to the renovation of the New York
stores on Fifth Avenue and Madison Avenue, the important openings in Ginza and Omotesando in Tokyo and
the store dedicated exclusively to accessories in Via Condotti in Rome.

Amongst other stores opening were those in Lugano in Switzerland, Valencia in Spain, Selfridges in London,
Paragon in Singapore and Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang, Beijing Mitsukoshi and Nanjing in China, as well as
the first single brand Gérald Genta stores in Paris and Geneva.

In addition, an investment in progress worthy of a special mention is the new flagship store in Avenue George V in
Paris. Investments in property, plant and equipment also include those in computer hardware, especially by the
parent company, and in buildings and production plant made by the Group’s production companies. Investments
were made in 2007 in factories for both watches and accessories which are designed to increase production capacity.
There were investments of 30 million euros in intangible assets, relating mainly to the costs incurred for the
acquisition of licences for applications software used in managing the Group's various business activities and
made mainly by the parent Bulgari S.p.A. and certain production companies. In addition, certain investments
were made which regard the new store in Avenue George V in Paris and the Barcelona store.
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Reference should be made to the comments below on the significant events taking place in 2007 for details of
investments made to set up new companies or to acquire companies from third parties.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AT A GROUP LEVEL IN 2007

On 18 January 2007 the Group acquired the remaining 49% of Bulgari Korea Ltd. in which it already had a
51% holding. This company, which has a subscribed share capital of KW 4,500,000, is therefore now wholly
owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V..

On 25 Janpary 2007 the Group acquired Bulgari Parfums Iberia S.L., a company with its headquarters in
Barcelona. It is wholly owned by Bulgari Espana 5.A. and manages the distribution of Bulgari perfumes in
Spain and Portugal.

Bulgari Panama Inc. was established on 31 Jansary 2007. This company has its headquarters in Panama City
and share capital of US$ 10,000, fully subscribed by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.. It has
obtained a trading licence from the local authorities to run an exclusive Bulgari brand store in the city.
Operations began in January 2008.

On 22 May 2007 Buigari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. sold 37.5% of the share capital of Opera
Management SA (in which Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. held 48.95% of the share capital), as
well as a portion of the shares it held in the fund Opera Participations 2 Sca and a portion of its respective
investment commitment, leaving itself with a holding of 11.45% in Opera Management S.A. and 859 class A
shares in Opera Purticipations 2 Sca, and as the owner of an investment commitment of 5 million euros.

A second transaction took place on 22 May 2007 when Bulgari S.p.A. sold 37.5% of the share capital of
Opera SGR S.p.A. (in which it held 50% of the share capital), remaining as the owner of 12.50%. Following
this transaction and that described in the previous paragraph, the Bulgari Group has left itself with a marginal
and minority role in the “Opera” project so that it may concentrate its resources exclusively on strategic
activities.

On 25 May 2007 Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. resolved to wind up Bulgari Operational
Services ApS given that the aeroplane once owned by that company has been sold. The liquidation process is
expected to be completed by the end of 2008.

On 29 October 2007 Bulgun Holding Europe B.V. acquired from Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.
all of the shares owned by the latter in Bulgari S.A.. The transfer price was equivalent to the fair value of the
holding as determined by an appraisal made by a third party. This transaction forms part of the process of
reorganising the commercial companies based in Europe which began tast December.

Again on 29 October 2007 Bulgari Global Operations S.A. acquired from Bulgan International Corporation
(BIC) N.V. its holding in Bulgari Collection International S.A.. Preference was given to using the book value
at 30 June 2007 as the transfer price (being the date as of which the most recent audited balance sheet was
available), as both companies, the acquirer and the acquiree, remain under the direct and indirect control of
Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.. This transaction will enable Bulgari Global Operations SA to
manage the production of the high jewellery segment directly.

Completing the process of concentrating the management and production of jewellery operations in Bulgari
Global Operations S.A., Bulgari Jewels S_A. was merged into Bulgari Global Operztions S.A. on 19 December
2007, with accounting and fiscal effects backdated to 1 July 2007.

This transaction will enable Bulgari Global Operations SA also to exercise direct control over the management
and production of the hasic jewellery segment. The transaction was carried out on the basis of the book values




resulting from the respective balance sheets at 30 June 2007 and had no effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

On 31 October 2007 an agreement was signed with a Swiss registered third party company for the purchase of
machinery, plant and know-how for the manufacture of components for the watch sector.

On 6 December 2007 Monraco S.A. was acquired, the company which wholly owns H. Finger AG. This
company having its registered office in Geneva and a subscribed and paid-up share capital of 200,000 Swiss
francs is now 100% owned by Bulgari Intemational Corporation (BIC) N.V.. A price of 8,352 thousand Swiss
francs was paid for net assets of 1.649 thousand Swiss francs, including goodwill of 6,703 thousand Swiss
francs. This purchase forms part of the Group's process of integrating and optimising the production of
watches.

On 18 December 2007 the procedure to wind up Bulgari Luxembourg S.A. was completed. Bulgari
(Luxembourg) S.A. had transferred its 1% holding of the quotas of Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. to the
parent Bulgari S.p.A..

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN STATUTORY AND CONSOLIDATED EQUITY
As required by Consob Communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006, the following table sets out a

reconciliation of net income and equity between the figures of the Parent Company Bulgani S.p.A. and those of
the Group:

Net equity Chanpe Gain/(lass) Net equity
I/ 122006 net equity for the year /1272006
Total tet equity Financial Staterent of Bulgori S.p.A. 255540 (87A415) 51425 219,540
Impact of consotidation of subsidiaries:
- difference between initial recongnition (carrying amount)
and pro-quota net equity 642,842 (26,565) 117,803 734.080
Elision intercompany protfit on the stock (179,158) 20M (16,986) (194.073)
Fiscal impact 15,651 (n (1.324) 14310
Total net equity Consolidated Financial Statement
of the Group TMETS (111,916) 150,918 773,857
Minority interests 8,080 (3,713) 238 4,605
Tatal Consolidated Financial Statement 742955 (115,649) 151,156 778462

Other information

Corporate Governance

The company has its own system of corporate governance which, complying with the provisions of law and
Consob regulations, has been set up with the aim of adequately controlling and managing business risks and
communicating with the market in a transparent manner.

In order to prevent illegal or irresponsible conduct by persons who operate in the name of or on behalf of
individual Bulgari Group companies, the Board of Directors has approved a Code of Ethics in which generat
rules and responsibilities are defined, including those of an ethical and social nature relating to the manner in
which activities are carried out.

On 24 April 2007 sharcholders in general meeting appointed a new Board of Directors with the majority required
by law, setting the number of its members at seven and establishing a term of three years (the Board will
accordingly remain in office until the approval of the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2009).
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The composition of the Board of Directors is also in compliance with the requirements of the new Savings Law
as regards the need to have at least one director having the same independence prerequisites as provided for the
statutory auditors in Legislative Decree no. 58/1998 as amended by the Savings Law.

The non-executive directors, in terms of their number, their professional qualifications and authoritativeness,
are able to make a substantial contribution to the Board’s decisions. On the basis of the information received
from each director it is possible to confirm once again, in respect of 2007, that the majority of the non-executive
directors are independent, in the sense that they do not have any economic relations with the company that are
of a size such as to prejudice the independence of their opinions and do not have any significant shareholdings
in the company.

As regards the recommendation of the Code of Self Discipline to establish specific committees to support and
control the manner in which the company is managed, the company has established a Compensation Committee
and an Internal Control Committee, both of which have been approved by shareholders’ resolutions.

Compensation Committee

The function of the Compensation Committee is to make recommendations, without changing in any way the
fact that the power to establish the remuneration of directors delegated with specific responsibilities in
compliance with the company's deed of incorporation remains with the Board of Directors. This Committee
may avail itself of external consultants at the company's expense in carrying out its functions. The
Compensation Committee also has the task of proposing the adoption of general criteria relating to the
remuneration of the company's top management, on the basis of indications made by the Managing Director.
The remuneration of the Managing Director is linked to the economic results of the Group, as it also includes
u variable part determined in proportion to the Group’s consolidated net income. In addition, as a result of
resolutions passed by shareholders in general meeting, the Managing Director benefits from stock option plans,
the rights of which were assigned by the Board and on behalf of the Board by the Chairman.

Internal Control Committee

An Internal Control Committee has been established pursuant to article 10 of the Code of Self Regulation; all
non-executive Directors and all Directors independent in terms of company ownership and management are
members of this Committee. The Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors and/or other members of this
Board take part in the proceedings of the Committee, as do the Managing Director and, by invitation of one of
the members of the Committee, the company’s officers, managers and/or consultants.

The company does not have a specific Committee to propose the names of directors for appointment, as the
Board has not noted any difficulty encountered by shareholders in proposing such names.

Organisational, management and control model pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/01

To comply with the requirements of Legislative Decree no. 23172001 “The governance of the administrative
responsibilities of corporate persons, corporations and non-corporate associations”, which introduced into the
Italian legislative code a regime of administrative responsibility by companies for offences committed by
directors, managers or employees in the interest or to the advantage of the company itself, in 2005 the company
adopted an organisation, management and control model pursuant to that legislation.

In addition a collegiate Supervising Body was appointed, having powers to initiate action and perform controls,
consisting of three members: two outside members expert in legal matters (Prof. Avv. Bruno Assumma as
Chairman and Avv. Cristiano Fava) and the head of the Intemal Control function (Dott.ssa Lucilla Marchetti).
This Body attends to the updating of the Model in respect of any changes in the applicable regulations and/or
the organisational model of the company, overseeing implementation of and compliance with the model and
promoting the model throughout the company’s personnel, The purpose of these activities is to ensure a
continuous verification of the effectiveness and appropriateness of the Model.




The Model was also approved on the basis of the guidelines drawn up on the subject by business associations
and with the assistance of external consultants,

In 2007 the Supervisory Body updated the model on the basis of the organisational changes made and the
amendments to laws and regulations introduced by Law no. 12372007 (“Manslaughter and serious or grievous
injury committed in breach of laws and regulations regarding the prevention of accidents and the protection of
health and safety at work™) and by Legislative Decree no. 231/2007, which has extended the regulations to
money-laundering offences.

The Supervisory Body met four times in 2007 and reported on its work to the Board of Directors and the
Internal Control Committee.

Law no. 262/2005 (Savings Law)

In Law no. 262/2005 the Italian legislator makes certain important changes relating, for example, to the role
and duties of corporate control bodies, the composition of the beard of directors, conflicts of interest and the
regulation of relations with “non-transparent” foreign companies, and introduces measures to safeguard
minorities.

On 7 March 2007 the Board of Directors of Bulgari S.p.A. adopted a resolution to amend certain articles of the
company's bylaws in order for them to comply with the recent provisions introduced by the Savings Law as
amended by Decree no. 303/2006. In a resolution on 24 April 2007, shareholders in extraordinary meeting
approved these changes to the bylaws.

Included in the changes we note the introduction into the bylaws of the means by which the Manager-in-charge
of the preparation of corporate accounting records should be appointed and the requirement for him to satisfy
the requisite of professionalism, pursuant to article 154-bis of the Consolidated Law on Financial
Intermediation no. 58/1998. This professional figure introduced by the Law is formally obliged to make a
written statement that “the company’s acts and communications as provided by law or as notified to the market
which contain information and data as to the company’s economic or financial position comrespond to the
company's documents, books and 2ccounting records™.

At a meeting on 13 September 2007 the Board of Directors appointed the Head of the Administration, Finance
and Control Function as the Manager-in-charge of the preparation of corporate accounting records.

The steps needed to ensure that this Manager and the Managing Director make the required representation that
internat controls relating to the proper keeping of accounting records have been set up, implemented and
function effectively have been carried out.

Code of Ethics

At its meeting on 13 September 2007 the Board of Directors approved the introduction of a series of changes
and supplements to the Code of Ethics already introduced by the company in order to adapt it to the recent
legislative provisions contained in the Savings Law and the Stock Exchange Code (March 2006 edition). These
amendments did not however affect the way in which it is structured, with the aim of crystallising in a single
document the principles for carrying out business in an ethical manner. The document provides an indication
of the objectives and values which act as business operation information providers for the main stakeholders
with whom Group companies interact on a daily basis: shareholders, the financial markets, customers, the
community and personnel.
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Transactions with Group companies and related parties
Bulgari S.p.A. has its registered office in Via Lungotevere Marzio 11, Rome, is the parent company and has a
share capital of 21.0 million euros.

Bulgan S.p.A. is the owner of the BVLGARI trademark and its main activities are as follows:

+ purchasing equity stakes and granting loans to Group compinies;

* commercial exploitation associated with the use of the BVLGARI name and trademark

* technical, financial and administrative coordination of the companies in which investments are held;

+ invention, design and creation of articles of jewellery, gold jewellery, watches, perfumes, cosmetics, silk and
leather accessories and porcelain, silver and crystal items.

Bulgari S.p.A. maintains business relations, governed by specific agreements related to the licensing of the
BYLGARI trademark, with the various subsidiaries that manufacture and distribute BVLGARI brand products.
In addition, the parent company also maintains business relations with substdiaries, likewise governed by
specific agreements, relating to the provision of technical, legal, fiscal, administrative, commercial, financial
and ICT services.

The parent company also plays a financial role with Group companies by providing ceatralised treasury
management services.

Transactions between Group companies regarding the sale of goods, the provision of services and financial
activities are carried out under market conditions, taking into account the characteristics of the transactions. The
procedure at Group leve! which governs related party transactions was approved by the Board of Directors on
T March 2007.

No abnormal or unusual transactions or significant non-recurring transactions were carried out in the year, as
these are defined by Consob in Communication no. DEM/6064203 of 28 July 2006.

Details of related party transactions and the percentage that transactions of a commercial and financial nature
berween Bulgari S.p.A. and other Group companies represent are reported in the notes to the financial
statements as required by the Consob Communication no. DEM/6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Research and development activities

The Bulgari Group carries out research and development activities relating to the invention, creation and
development of new products within all its product types, and namely jewellery, watches, accessories, perfumes
and cosmetics.

Other information

For information regarding details of related party transactions, treasury shares, investments held in Bulgari
S.p.A. by members of the managing and controlling bodies, financial instruments and policies for the hedging
of risks, reference should be made to the details provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Events subsequent to 31 december 2007

A commissionaire agreement was signed by BIC and Intercosmo Netherland on 25 February 2008 for the
distribution of perfumes in Holland.

Bulgari Ireland Ltd. was incorporated on 28 February 2008. This company will manage the supply chain and
integrated logistics of the Group. Bulgari Ireland Ltd. is fully owned by Bulgari S.p.A..

There are no other significant subsequent events.




Outlook for 2008

The Group's success was confirmed in all product types in 2007 and in all the geographical areas in which it
operates,

The year 2008 will be characterised for the business by further growth in all product types, by a careful but still
aggressive development of investments designed (o strengthen distribution and industrial projects, which will
hinge on the opening of the new flagship store in Avenue George V in Paris, by the integration of recent
acquisitions, by a further reinforcement of our presence in the rest of Asia, by growth in the accessories sector
and by the gradual launch of the feminine skincare line at an international level.

We therefore believe that as the result of these important initiatives and despite forecasts that the weakness and
uncertatnty of the market will continue into 2008 Bulgari will be able to achieve a further increase in sales and
profits, at the same time consolidating its position of absolute prestige in the world luxury goods market.

Bulgari S.p.A.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Paolo Bulgari
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Bulgari S.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated financial statements at 3| December 2007
and 3| December 2006
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Bulgari Group

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007
(amounts in thousands of euro}

Note 2007  Of which versus 2006 Of which versus Changes %
related parties retated parties
- Gross sales 1,158,191 97 1,070,183 192
— Allowances an discounts (84,381) {79,533}
Net sales 1073810 990,650
Royalties 14,003 90 12,336 176
Other revenues 3168 16 5709 21
Total net revenues 2 1,090,981 197 1,008,695 139 8.2%
Cost of sales 3 {391.855) {361,285} 8.5%
Total contribution margin 699,116 647,410 8.0%
Costi per il personale 21 {170,333) (157,426)
Spese variabili di vendita 3 (48.843) (42,043)
Spese generali e amministrative 4 {152.688) (139,540)
Spese di pubblicii e promozione (119.563) (112,910)
Ammonamenti e svalutazioni (43.166) (38,343
Net operating expenses 4 (534,595) (98) (490,262) (84) 9.0%
Operuting profit 164,521 157,148 4.7%
15.1% 15.6%
Interest revenues 4,604 (209} 2,682 (214)
[nterest costs (18.333) (10,690
Other financial gains (losses) (1.633) (1.820)
Foreign exchange gain (Josses) 11,885 8352
Total finrancial gains {losses) 5 613 (1478) -141.5%
Revaluation (impairment) of
financial activities - (77)
Net result before taxes 165,134 155,595 6.1%
Cutrent and deferred taxes 6 (13.978) 120.572) =321%
NET RESULT 151,156 135,023 11.9%
of which:
Minority interest profit 238 752 —68.3%
Group Share of Net result 150,918 134,271 124%
13.8% 13.3%
Earning per share (in euros) 18 050 045
Number of shares on which the
calculation is based 299,533,810 298,543,974
Diluted earming per share
(in euros) 13 0.50 0.4
Number of shures on which the
calcelation is based 304.036.686 303,281,146
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Bulgari Group

Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 3| December 2007
{amounts in thousands of euro)

ASSETS Note M/I22007  (F which versas 31272006 OF which versas
reiated parties refated parties

Property, plant and equipment 7 160,983 113,472

— Goodwill 8 44,832 41,908

-~ Other intangible assets 9 73217 54,316

Inmtangible assets 118,049 96,224

— Investments in other companies 10 11,00 20,132

— Other non-current finorcial assets 11 29.146 22477

Inwvestments and other non ctrrent financial activities 40,236 42,609

Deferred tax assets 12 22,750 22,329

Onher non-CLment assets 15 10,000 8,841

Non-current financial receivables 11 1.368 1.368 929 929

Non-current assets 353,386 284,404

Non-current assets held for sale - -

— Raw materials 04,632 55,988

— Work in progresss and semi-finished goods 139,579 123,395

— Finished goods and packaging 391,905 349,554

Total inventory 13 596,116 528,934

Trade receivables 14 02,186 57 187.020 158

— Other tux receivabies 37,040 27,060

= Chther current assers 22,224 3 18,864 108

Total other current assets 15 59.264 45924

Current financial assets I K| 12,804 1,877 6,384 2,787

Cash and cash equivalent 16 21,681 39,792

Current assets 592,051 808,054

TOTAL ASSETS 1,245437 1092458




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Nate 3122007 Of which versus 3/IM2006  Of which versns
retated parties refated parties

Shareholders” eguity

Share capital 20,965 20970

Reserves 96,131 121,152

Retained earnings (losses) 505,843 458.482

Income (loss) for the period 150,918 134,271

Shareholders® equity attributable to the Groep 1?7 773857 TMEBTS

Shareholders’ equity attributable to minority interests 4,605 8,080

Total shareholders® equity 778,462 742,955

Employees® keaving indemnity and other personne!

peovisions 21 16,515 15.146

Provisions foc risks and charges 2 6,063 6,831

Deferred tax liabilities 12 21,485 21,949

Other non-current liabilities 23 2,295 640

MNon-current financial payables to banks 19 55,444 34,156

Other non-current financial payables 19 2,906 3.001

Non-current linbilities 104,703 81,753

Non-current liabilities held for sale - -

Trade payables 187,941 1,227 159,754 1,306

= Advances s 3,671

= Current tax pavebles 5.746 6,051

= Other current liabilities 23 45.035 2 41,502 2

‘Total other current liabilities 55.892 51,224

Current financial payables 1o banks 19 116,499 54,055

Current financial payables 19 1,935 2,717

Current liabilities ' 362,267 267,750

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'

EQUITY 1,245,437 1,092458
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Bulgari Group

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 3| December 2007
{amounts in thousands of euro)

32T 3 uione
Cash lows from operating activities
Net income for the year 150.918 134,271
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of fixed assets 43.216 38422
Interest and income laxes 23,617 28,580
Cash Mows from operating activities 217,751 201,273
{Increase} Decrease in receivables in working capital (27.575) (13,918)
(Increase} Decrease in inventory (91,602) (54.987)
Increase (Decrease) in payables 40,725 18.562
Exchange differences 26,362 L
Income taxes paid 237117 (40,140)
Intevest paid (13,074) {9,263)
Other changes, net 136 564
Cash Nows from changes In net working capital (88,745) (68,071)
Other mediumAong-term assets (including other non-current financial assets) {8.249) 7,947
Other medium/long-tenm liabilities 1.602 (3.055)
(a) Cash flows from operating activities 122,359 133,094
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of companies (excluding cash/debt ucquired) (1.894) (508)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (net of disposals) {86.445) (48.968)
Purchase of intangible ussets {29,107) {15961}
Reimbursment of investments in other company (excluding other non-current financial assets) 9,040 (8i13)
Other changes 1167 13
Exchanges differences 6.621 5.568
Interest received 4,593 3185
{b) Cash flows from investing activities {101,025) (57.481)
Cash Mows from financing activities
Changes in shareholders’ equity for increase in share capitat (5 411
Changes in shareholders’ equity relating 1o minority interests (3.475) {507y
Dividends paid (86.876) (74,529)
Onher changes {25.055) (6.623)
(¢} Total changes in shareholders’ equity (115411) (77,548)
Changes in medium/long-term financial payables 21,165 9413
Changes in medium/long-term financial receivables {439) 169
(d) Total changes in medium/long-term financial assets 20,726 9,582
(¢} Cash Rows from flnancing activivities (94,685) (67,966)
{f) Difference in short-term net cash (short-term debt) (a + b + &) (73,351) 12,647




AN22007 NNL2006

Net cash (shert-term debt) at the beginning of the year {46,854) (49,919)
Changes in short-term debt (1) (73.351) 12,647

Changes in long-term debt (d) (20,726} (9.582)
Net cash (short-term debt) at the end of the year (140,931) (46,854)
of which:

— cash and bank 21,681 39,792

— current financial payahles {118,434} {56,7712)
— current financial assets 12,304 6,384

- nom-curvent financial payables (58.350) (37180
=~ pon currenl financial receivables 1.368 929
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Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
for the year ended 3| December 2007

(amounts in thousands of euro)

Note Share Share Legal Reserve lor
capital premium reserve translation
reserve difference
Balance zs at 31 December 2006 20,970 123,648 5,762 (21,350
Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates - - - {27,764}
Reclassifications - 10 - 23
Fair value of derivatives - - - -
Total gains and losses directly recognized to
sharehorders’ equity - 10 - {27,741)
Net income of the yeur - - - -
Total gains and losses - - - -
Dividends paid - - - -
Allecation of 2006 net income - - - -
Treasury stock sales (56) (7.979) - -
Capital increase due to exercise of stock options 51 4,935 - -
Stock options - - - —
Acquisition of 49% Bulgari Korea - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2007 17 20,965 120,614 5,762 (49,091)




Other Stock Hedging Retatned Net income Sharcholders” Shareholders’ Total
reserves opthon reserve eamings period equrity sttrib, equity sttrib sharehokders’
reseve to Group  to minority ol. equity

3,914 6,796 2,382 458,482 1M271 734,875 8,080 741955
- - - - - (27,764) (1,058) (18.822)

- - - 3y - - - -

- - 2,831 - - 2,831 - 2,831
- - 2,831 (33) - (24,933) (1,058) (25991)

- - - - 150918 150,918 238 151,156

- - - - 150,918 150,918 238 151,156
- - - - (86,876) (86,876) - (86.876)

- - - 47,395 (47,395} - - 0%
576 - - - - (7.459) - (.45
- - - - - 4,986 - 4,986

- 136 - - - 2346 - 2,346
_ - - - - - (2,655) (2,655}
3,490 9,142 5213 50584 150,918 TI13857 4,605 778,462
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Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2006
{amounts in thousands of euro)

Share Share Legal Reserve for

capital premium Feserve transtation

reserve difference
Balance as at 31 Decernber 2005 16,859 114,489 5,762 (11,149}
Fluctuations in foreign exchunge rates - - - 21,644)
Reclassifications - - - 11,443

Fair value of derivatives - - -

Total gains and losses directly recognized to shareborders’ equity - - - (10,201)
Net income of the year - - - -
Total gains and losses - - - -
Dividends paid - - - -
Allocation of 2005 net income - - - -
Treasury siock sales 4,000 - - -
Capital increase due to exercise of stock options 102 9,159 - -
Stock options - - - -
Batance as at 31 December 2006 20,970 123,648 5,762 121,350)
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Other Stock Hedging Retained Net Income Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Total
reserves optlon reserve eamings period equity attrib. equity attrib. shareholders®
reseve to Group  to minority int, equity

2,106 4423 (28) 428,737 116,447 677,646 8,587 686,233
- - - (730) - {22.374) {1,259) {23,633)

- - - (11,443 - - - -

- - 2410 - - 1410 - 2,410
- - 2,410 (12,173) - (19,964) (1,259) (21,223)

- - - - 134,271 134271 752 135,023

- - - - 134,271 134,271 752 135,023
- - - - (74.529) {74529 - (74.529)

- - - 41918 141,918) - - -
1,808 - - - - 5817 - 5817
- - - - - 9,261 - 9,261

- 2,313 - - - 2373 - 2373
3914 6,796 2,382 458,482 134,271 734,875 8,080 742,955
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Bulgari S.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Bulgari S.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2007

Significant accounting principles and policies

Bulgari S.p.A. (referred to in the following as the “Parent Company™) is a company having its registered office
in Italy and its domicile in Via Lungotevere Marzi 11, Rome. The consclidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended 31 December 2007 include the financial statements of the parent company and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures (together referred to as the “Group™). The financial statements used in preparing
these consolidated financial statements were those prepared by the Directors of the individual companies for
the approval of sharcholders in general meeting where applicable.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for publication by the Board of Directors on 11 March
2008.

(a) Statement of compliance

The Bulgari Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with international
accounting standards (International Accounting Standards - IAS or International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS) and the related interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), as adopted by the European
Commission (also referred to in the following overall as *IFRS”), and with the provisions issued implementing
article 9 of Legislative Decree no. 38/2005.

(b) Basis of presentation

The consclidated half-year financial statements consists of the balance sheet, the income statement, the cash
flow statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and these notes. Current and non-current assets
and liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet. Costs are presented in the income statement based
on their function, as this classification is used for internal reporting and corresponds to the way in which the
business is managed. Income and expense arising from non-recurring events and circumstances are presented
in the income statement, where material, by using specific sub-items. The cash flow statement is presented
using the indirect method.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in eures and all amounts are stated in thousands of euros
unless otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of companies included in the scope of consolidation have all been prepared as at the
balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements and have been adjusted, where necessary, to align
them with the accounting principles and policies adopted by the parent company.

The financial statements have been prepared on a cost basis, adjusted as required for the measurement of certain
financial instruments.

Columns have been added to the balance sheet and income statement to show refated pany transactions and
balances as per Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006. This information is not provided for the cash
flow statement given its limited materiality.

The financial statements at 31 December 2007 of the parent company, Bulgari S.p.A., are also presented,
prepared in accordance with IFRS as defined above. In order for a more meaningful presentation of the
comparative figures presented for the year ended 31 December 2006, changes have been made to the
classification of certain items compared to that used in the financial statements approved by shareholders in
ordinary general meeting on 24 April 2007. These changes are not significant and are discussed in these notes.

(c) Consolidation principles

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those companies for which the parent company is in a position to determine, either directly or
indirectly, the financial and operating policies for the purpose of obtaining the benefits resulting from its
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activities. In assessing whether control exists, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are also taken into consideration. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements starting from the date on which control is obtained until the date on which
that control is lost to the Group. Minority interests in shareholders’ equity and in the result for the year are
presented separitely in both the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income statement.

(ii) Joint ventures

Joint ventures are those entities in which the Group exercises contractually agreed joint control with other
entities. In determining whether control exists, those instruments that have the potential, if exercised or
converted, to give the Group voting rights are also considered. The financial statements of joint ventures are
consolidated using the proportionate method. As a result, the consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and costs of these companies on a line-by-line basis, starting
from the date on which joint control is obtained until the date on which that joint control is lost to the Group.

(iii) Intragroup operations

All intragroup balances and transactions, including any profits not yet realised with third parties, resulting from
relutions between Group companies, are fully eliminated. The Group’s share of any losses not yet realised with
third parties is eliminated unltess they represent losses in value. Unrealised profits and losses generated by
transuctions with joint ventures are eliminated on the basis of the investment held by the Group in these
companies.

(d) Foreign currency

{§) Transactions in foreign currency

The financial statements of consolidated companies are prepared using the functional currency of the economic
environment in which that company operates.

In those financial statements all transactions denominated in a currency different from the functional
currency are recorded at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated
in a currency different from the functional currency are subsequently translated using the exchange rate at
the balance sheet date of the period presented, with any exchange differences arising being recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and recorded at historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when the transaction was initially recognised.

(ii) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

Revenues, costs, assets und liabilities included in the consclidated financial statements are expressed in euros,
which is the functional currency of the parent company Bulgari S.p.A..

In preparing the consolidated financial statements the financial statements of companies included in the
consolidation which have a functional currency different from the euro are translated by applying the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date to the assets and liabilities (including goodwill and consolidation
adjustments), the histortcal exchange rate ruling at the date of the respective transaction to items of
shareholders’ equity and the average exchange rate for the period (which approximates the exchange rates
ruling at the date of the transactions) to the income statement, All resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly as a separate equity reserve.

Exchange differences are recognised in the income statement only on the disposal of the investment or on the
dissolution of the company to which it refers.




The rates of exchange between the euro and the currencies of those countries which have not joined the single
currency are as follows:

Currency 3122007 I/LU2006

Income Statement Balance Sheet [} St Bal Sheet
usb 1.3705 1.4721 |.2556 1.3170
YEN 161.2526 164.9300 146.0711 156.9300
CHF 1.6427 1.6547 1.573) 1.606%
GBP 0.6843 0.7334 0.6819 0.6715
SGD 2.0636 21163 1.9939 20202
HKD 10.6912 11.4800 9.7541 10.2409
AUD 1.6348 1.6757 1.6667 1.6691
MYR 47076 4.8682 4.6029 4.6490
DKK 7.4506 74583 7.4591 7.4560
™D 45.0252 47.2833 40,8246 429314
KRW 1,272.9900 1,.377.9600 1,198.0800 1,224.8100
CNY 10.4178 10.7524 10,0077 10.2793
THB 44.2140 43.8000 47.5678 46.7700
MOP 11.0124 11.7086 10,0474 10.5510
PAB 1.3705 14721 - -

On first-time adoption of [FRS the cumulative translation differences arising from the consolidation of
companies whose financial statements are prepared in currencies outside the euro area were deemed to be zero
as permitted by IFRS 1. Any gain or loss on the subsequent disposal of these companies will only include the
cumulative translation differences arising after 1 January 2004.

(e) Business combinations

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Under the purchase method, the
cost of acquisition is the fair value at the date of exchange of the assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed
plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The cost of a business combination is then allocated to
the acquiree’s identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent linbilities assumed at their fair values.
The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities so recognised is accounted for as goodwill. If the net fair value exceeds the
cost of the acquisition, the excess is recognised immediately in the income statement.

On first-time adoption of IFRS, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations retrospectively
to business combinations that occurred before 1 January 2004. As a result, any goodwill arising from
acquisitions that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS has been left unchanged at its carrying amount
in the last consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the previous accounting principles,
being those at 31 December 2003.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Owned assers

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, including any directly attributable incidental expenses.

They are included as assets only in the case that it is probable that future economic benefits will result from

their use and that cost may be reliably determined.

Cost includes:

a) purchase price (including any import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes), after deducting trade
discounts and rebates;
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b) any costs incurred directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Costs incurred subsequent 1o purchase are recognised as an increase in the accounting value of the component
to which they relate, if the future benefits resulting from the cost incurred for the replacement of a component
of a building or plant and machinery will flow to the Group and if the cost can be reliably estimated. All other
costs are recognised in the income statement for the period in which they are incurred.

If significant components of buildings, plant or machinery have different useful lives, then these are accounted
for separately by applying the cost method described above.

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, under which all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are substantially transferred to the Group, are recognised as assets at their fair value
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments due under the lease contract. The
corresponding amount due to the lessor is included as part of financial liabilities.

Lease arrangements under which the lessor substantially keeps all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are accounted for as operating leases, with lease payments being recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(iif}) Depreciation

Subsequent to their initial recognition, owned property, plant and equipinent and property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are stated net of depreciation and any impairment losses are determined under
the method described in the following. Depreciation commences when property, plant or machinery becomes
available for use and ceases when it is sold or when it is no longer expected to generate future benefits; it is
calculated systematically on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets. Assets acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives; in the case that there is no reasonable certainty
that the Group will acquire an asset at the end of the lease term it is depreciated over the lower of the lease term
and its estimated useful life.

The estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed at least on an annual basis.

The following table sets cut the main useful lives of assets:

Asset category Usetul life (years)
Buildings 33
Plant and machinery 343
Industrial and commercial equipment 7-5
Fumiture, office equipment and fittings 5-8
Motor vehicles 4

Improvements made to leased properties are stated at cost and depreciated over a period equal to the lower of
the lease term and their estimated useful lives.

(g) Intangible assets

{1} Goodwill
Goodwill is not amortised subsequent to initial recognition and is stated net of any impairment losses
determined in the manner described below.




Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of a company and any adjustment to the fair values of the assets and
liabilities deriving from the acquisition of that company, are accounted for as the assets and liabilities of the
company itself. As a consequence, in the case of the acquisition of a foreign company these items are stated in
the functional currency of the acquired company and translated using the exchange rate ruling at the baliance
sheet date.

Goodwill resulting from acquisitions made prior to 1 January 2004 is stated at its net book value in the last
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the previous accounting principles (those at 31
December 2003).

(ii) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised as such only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and if the cost of an asset can be measured reliably, and are stated at cost, including
any directly attributable incidental expenses.

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense in the income statement when it is incurred. Development
costs are capitalised as assets only if it can be demonstrated that they are capable of producing future economic
benefits.

Subsequent costs incurred for intangible assets are capitalised as part of the asset to which they relate if it is
probable that future benefits will flow to the Group and when the cost can be reliably estimated. All other
subsequent costs are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

{iii) Amortisation

Subsequent to their initial recognition, assets with a finite useful life are stated net of accumulated
amortisation and a2ny impairment losses are determined in the manner described below. Amortisation of an
asset begins when it is available for use and ceases when it is sold or if it is not expected to produce future
economic benefits, and is allocated systematically on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, which
is reviewed on an annual basis.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised but are stated net of any impairment losses
determined in the manner described below.

The following table sets out the main useful lives of assets:

Asset category Useful life (years)
Development costs max, §
I[ndustria! patents and intellectual property rights masx, 5
Concessions, trade marks and licences max, 5

Assets under formation -
Fees for tuking over the lease of premises and other contruct term

(h) Impairment

At the end of each period presented, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed to assess
whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is determined.

The recoverable amount of goodwill and other intangible assets having an indefinite useful life, if present, is in
any case determined at least once a year.
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The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an asset less costs to sell and its value in use.

In the absence of a binding sales agreement, fair value is estimated on the basis of values obtained from an
active market or from recent transactions or on the basis of the best information available that reflects the
amount that the company could obtain from the sale of the asset.

Value in use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived from the use
of an asset, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks of the related activities. If an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent, its
recoverable amount is determined in relation to the cash generating unit to which it belongs.

An impairment loss for an asset is recognised in the income statement if its carrying amount, or that of the cash
generating unit to which it allocated, is higher than its recoverable amount. The impairment losses of a cash
generating unit are firstly allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on the basis of their carrying amounts,

Impairment losses other than those relating to goodwill are reversed to the extent that that the increased carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised, if the reasons which led to the loss no longer exist or if there have been changes in the
estimates made to determine the recoverable amount.

(i) Financial instruments

(i) Investments in other entities

All investments in other entities are classifted as “available for sale” and are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses recognised directly in equity. These gains and losses are released to the income statement on the
disposal of the investments. If fair value is not reliably determinable the investments are stated at cost, adjusted
for any impairment loss whose effect is recognised in the income statement on the basis of the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the current market return for a similar financial asset.

Losses exceeding the carrying value of an investment are recognised s a liability in the caption “provisions for
risks and charges - other” to the extent that the investor has undertaken to fulfil any legal or constructive
obligations towards the investee company or to make good its losses.

(ii) Other financial assets
Financial assets for which there is the intention and ability to hold to matueity are recognised at cost
(represented by the fair value of the initial consideration given) to which are added transaction costs (such as
commissions and advisors’ fees). Measurement subsequent to initial recognition is at amortised cost vsing the
effective interest method.

Trade receivables are stated at amortised cost, net of any impairment loss. Impairment losses are determined on
the basis of the present value of expected future cash flows, using a discount rate based on the original effective
interest rate.

Trade receivables whose due date is based on norma! commercial terms are not discounted.

Cash and bank balances consist of balances which are payable on demand or within a very short period and
which may be withdrawn without cost. '

{iii) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including trade payables, are stated at amortised cost using the original effective
interest method.




(iv) Treasury shares
Treasury shares are stated at cost and presented as a reduction of shareholders’ equity. Any gains or losses
resulting from subsequent sale are recognised directly in equity.

(1) Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of the cost of acquisition or production and estimated net realisable value, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost configuration adopted is as follows:

a) all stock, grouped together in homogeneous categories, is valued on the basis of weighted average cost;

b) stocks of finished goods consisting of single pieces are valued on the basis of the specific identification of
the cost;

¢) work in progress is valued on the basis of production cost, which includes the consumption of raw materials,
direct labour and indirect production costs, bused on the stage of production at the balance sheet date.

In order to estimate net realisable value obsolete and stow-moving goods are written down on the basis of an
estimation of their future use or realisation by creating a specific adjustment provision to reduce the value of
the inventories.

(m) Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made from the available
evidence.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material and the payment dates of the obligations can be reliably
estimated, the amount of provisions is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and, where applicable, the risks
specific to the liability.

Changes in estimate are recognised in the income statement of the period in which they occur.

(n) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries and social security contributions, compensated absences
and annual leave, where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months from the balance sheet date,
and all other benefits in kind are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered by the employee.
Benefits guaranteed to employees which are payable on or after the completion of employment through defined
benefit or defined contribution plans are recognised in the period in which the right matures.

Liabilities relating to defined benefit plans, net of any plan assets, are recognised on the basis of actuarial
assumptions using the projected unit credit method and on an accrual basis consistent with the service provided
to obtain such benefits; the determination of these liabilities is made by independent actuaries.

Any actuarial gains or losses resulting from changes in actvarial assumptions or changes in the conditions of a
plan are recognised in the income statement if, and to the extent that, the unrecognised net amount at the end
of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10% of the obligatton relating to the plan and 10% of
the fair value of any plan assets at that date {the so-called corridor method).
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On first-time application of IFRS the Group decided to recognise all cumulative actuarial gains and losses at |
January 2004, despite having opted for the corridor method for subsequent actuarial gains and losses.
Costs for defined contribution plans are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

The following changes have taken place with respect to the accounting treatment of the employees’ leaving

entitlement (the TFR) following the amendments introduced by Law no. 296 of 27 December 2006 and

subsequent implementing decrees and regulations issued in the first few months of 2007 (the “Pension Reform™):

— the TFR accrued to 31 December 2006 continues to be considered as a defined benefit plan. Given the
changes introduced by the reform, the component relating to expected future salary increases is excluded
from the calculation to discount the liability from 1 January 2007. The difference between the TFR liability
at 31 December 2006 determined under the revised assumptions introduced by the Pension Reform and the
carrying amount of the liability in the balance sheet at that date is recognised in full as personnel costs in
the income statement in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 109 of IAS 19;

— the TFR accruing from | January 2007 is considered to be a defined contribution plan and accordingly the
contributions accruing during the year are recognised in full as a cost in the income statemnent and presented
as a payable in the item “Employee benefit plans”, after deducting any contributions already paid over.

The result is therefore that the TFR liability has been recalculated, with the consequent non-recurring income
(arising from a curtailment) being recognised as a reduction in personnel costs for 2007, in accordance with the
accounting treatment recommended by the competent accounting bodies.

(p) Revenues and costs

Revenues from sales und services are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the respective economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when it is possible to measure the fair value of the consideration reliably.
Revenues are stated net of discounts, returns and commercial rebates.

In particular, revenues from sales and services are recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer and when the services have been rendered.

Financial income and expense are recognised on an accrual basis on the net value of the respective assets and
liabilities using the effect interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the shareholders have the right to receive payment and namely at the time that
shareholders in general meeting resolve a distribution.

Cost of sales includes the cost of production or purchase of products and goods which have been sold. In
particular, it includes the cost of materials and transformation, general expenses directly related to production,
the depreciation and amortisation of plant and machinery and intangible assets used in production and write-
downs of inventory.

(q) Taxation

Current income taxes are determined on the basis of a realistic estimate of the tax charge for the period made
by each company included within the scope of consolidation, in compliance with tax rates and tax laws that are
in force or substantively in force in each country at the balance sheet date.

The expected liability is recognised in the balance sheet under the item “Provisions for risks and charges”,
offset by any advance payments made, or under the item “Other current tax credits™ if an asset resuits from the
offsetting process.




Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined from the temporary differences between the book value of
assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated balance sheet and their corresponding tax bases, taking into
account the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on those rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised; the recoverability of deferred tax assets in this
manner is reviewed a1 each balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are always recognised. In particular, deferred tax liabilities are recognised on
undistributed profits at the balance sheet date in the event that such profits will be taxed on distribution.
Taxation that could arise on the transfer of the undistributed profits of subsidiaries is only recognised if there
is the real intention to transfer such profits in the foreseeable future.

Taxation not connected with income is included in operating expenses.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when income taxes are levied by the same taxarion
authority and when there is a legally enforceable right of set off.

(r) Share-based payment

The Group provides stock options to specific categories of employees and to the Managing Director as a form
of remuneration for services rendered.

The cost of these services is measured at the fair value of the options at the date on which they are granted.
This cost is determined by taking into account the best estimate available of the number of options that will be
exercised and is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, that is the
period from the grant date to the date on which the option matures, with the counter-entry being made directly
to equity.

Changes in fair value subsequent to the grant date have no effect on the initial measurement.

(s) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the directors and managers of the Group to make estimates
and assumptions which affect the carrying values of the assets and liabilittes in the consolidated balance sheet
and the disclosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. These estimates and
assumptions are based on accumulited experience and other factors considered reasonable in the circumstances
and have been adopted to determine the accounting value of those assets and liabilities which is not easily
obtainable from other sources, Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed and any changes are
recognised in the income statement of the period of the change, if the change affects that period only, ot in the
income statements of the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. The actual resolts
could differ from these estimates as a result of the uncertainty inherent in the assumptions and conditions on
which they are based.

In particular, estimates are used in the recognition of provisions for the risk of inventory obsolescence and the
recoverability of receivables, in the measurement of any impairment of tangible and intangible assets, for
depreciation and amortisation, in the measurement of employee benefits and stock option plans, in the
recognition of taxation, in the measurement of provisions and other contingent liabilities and in the
measurement of derivative financial instruments.

(t) Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of shares in circulation during the
period, excluding treasury shares held by the Group.
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Diluted earnings per share is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of shares in circulation
during the period, excluding treasury shares, to which is added the weighted average number of shares which
would result if all stock options were exercised, factored by the difference between the average market price of
the share during the period and the weighted average exercise price.

{u) Risk management

(i) Credit risk

The Group is not exposed to significant credit risk given the nature of its business whereby risk of this nature
is limited to the sector of sales to distributors. Trade receivables are stated in the financial statements net of a
write-down determined on the basis of the risk that a customer will not fulfil his contractual obligations; this
write-down is calculated by taking into consideration all the information that is available regarding the solvency
of the customer and by taking into account historical data. The Group has not had significant cases of
counterparty default.

{ii) Liguidity risk

The Group is not exposed to liquidity risks. The cash flows, funding requirements and liquidity of Group
companies are monitored and managed centrally under the supervision of the Group's Treasury Department
with the aim of ensuring that funds are effectively and efficiently managed.

(iii) Interest rate risk and currency risk

The Group is exposed to various market risks in carrying out its activities and in particular to the risk of
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and the price of gold.

To minimise these risks the Group acquires derivative financial instrurnents available on the market to hedge
the risk of both specific operations and complex exposures.

In particular, to reduce the risk of changes in the value of assets, liabilities and estimated foreign currency cash
flows to be generated by expected future operations, forward and option contracts are mostly used. The same
instruments are used to reduce the risk of changes in the price of gold.

To minimise the nisk connected with interest rate fluctuations, interest rate swaps and option contracts are used.
The Group does not enter into speculative transactions in managing its finance and treasury and has adopted
specific procedures which require prudent criteria to be followed.

Consistent with IAS 39, derivative instruments acquired for hedging purposes qualify for hedge accounting as
described in that standard only if:

a) at the inception of the hedge there is a formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship;
b) the hedge is highly effective;

¢) the effectiveness can be reliably demonstrated.

If an instrument is designated to offset the exposure 1o changes in the fair value of the hedged item (for
example, to hedge fluctvations in the fair value of floating rate loans or in foreign currency receivables and
payables), it is recognised at fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value being recognised in the income
statement; in a consistent manner, hedged items are adjusted to reflect the changes in fair value associated with
the risk being hedged.

[f an instrument is designated to offset the exposure to variability in cash flows of a transaction (a cash flow
hedge; for example the hedging of the variability in cash flows of forecast transactions due to foreign exchange
rate fluctuations), the effective portion of the gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in equity (the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement under the item foreign exchange gains (fosses).




The amounts recognised in equity are subsequently reclassified into the income statement in the period in which
the forecast contracts and transactions affect profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives which do not meet the conditions for recognition as hedging instruments
are recognised in the income statement.

Derivates are accounted for on the trade date.

(v) Recently issued accounting standards and interpretations (approved as of 31 January 2008)

{i) Adopted in 2007

on 18 August 2005 the IASB issued IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; this standard has no effect
from the standpoint of the measurement or classification of items in the financial statements but requires
additional disclosures for financial instruments;

on 3 March 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives; this
interpretation specifies that a company must assess whether any embedded derivatives contained in a
contract need to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivatives when becoming party
to the contract. Subsequent reassessment of the conditions is prohibited unless there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract. Adopting this interpretation did not have any accounting effect on the consolidated financial
statements;

in November 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 11 [FRS 2 Group and Treasury Share
Transactions which specifies the accounting treatment to be followed for share-based payment
arrungements which an entity must settle by purchasing treasury shares and payment arrangements based
on the shares of one Group company and assigned to other compantes of the Group. Adopting this
interpretation did not have any accounting effect on the consolidated financial statements;

(ii) Nor adopted or not yet applicable

in September 2007 the IASB issued an amendment to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements which is
effective (and which will be applied by Group companies) from 1 January 2009; this new version of the
standard requires a company to present as part of a statement of changes in equity all transactions with
equity holders. All transactions with other parties must instead be included in a statement of comprehensive
income or in two separate statements;

in March 2007 the IASB issued a revised version of IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, The option for an entity to
recognise as a period expense the borrowing costs incurred on the acquisition, construction or production of
assets for which a substantial period of time is normally needed to get the asset ready for its intended use
of sale has been removed from the new version. The new standard is effective (and will be applied by Group
companies) from 1 January 2009;

in November 2007 the IASB issued 1FRS 8 Operating Segments which is effective (and which will be
applied by Group companies) from | January 2009, to replace IAS 14 Segment Reporting. the new standard
requires entities to base its segment information on the elements used by management to take business
decisions and to identify operating segments, therefore on the basis of internal reporting. The introduction
of the new standard will have no effect on the measurement of items in the financial statements;

in July 2007, IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction, which is applicable (and hence applied by Group
companies) from 1 January 2008; the interpretation provides general guidance on how to assess the limit in
IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognised as an asset and also explains how the pensions
asset or liability may be affected when there is a statutory or contractual minimum funding requirement;
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— in January 2008 the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations which is effective (and which will be applied by Group companies) from 1 January 2009; the
amendment clarifies that service conditions and performance conditions are the only conditions that must
be satisfied for a party to be entitled to receive equity instruments on the basis of a share-based payment
agreement;

- in July 2007 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes which is effective
(and hence applied by Group companies) from 1 January 2008. The interpretation defines the treatment to
be followed in accounting for the obligation which arises on awarding points to customers when a sale is
made;

- in November 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation [FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements which is
effective from | January 2008. The issue discussed by this interpretation is not applicable to the Group.

1. Acquisition/formation and disposal of companies

On 18 January 2007 the Group acquired the remaining 49% of Bulgari Korea Ltd., in which it already had a
51% holding, at a price of 3,178,668 thousand KW. This company, which has a subscribed share capital of
4,500,000 KW, is therefore now wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V..

On 25 Januvary 2007 the Group acquired Bulgari Parfums Iberia S.L., a company with its headquarters in
Barcelona. This company, which is wholly owned by Bulgari Espana S.A., has subscribed and fully paid share
capital of 10,000 euros. A price of 2,083 thousand euros was paid for a share of net equity of the same amount,
inclusive of goodwill of 976 thousand euros. This acquisition forms part of the Group’s objectives of
strengthening and optimising the distribution of perfumes in Spain and Portugal, markets that are expertencing
considerable growth.

Bulgari Panama Inc. was established on 31 January 2007. This company, which has its headquarters in Panama
City and subscribed and fully paid share capital of USS 10,000, is wholly owned by Bulgari International
Corporation (BIC) N.V.. The company will run an exclusive Bulgari brand store in Panama City.

On 23 May 2007 37.5% of the share capital of Opera Management SA was sold at a price of 445 thousand
euros, leading to a gain of 350 thousand euros recognised in other financial income (expense).

As a result of this sale the company, which was previously consolidated using the proportionate method, left
the consolidation scope; the remaining value of this investment of 13 thousand euros representing 1 1.45% is
classified as “Investments in other compantes”.

A second transaction took place on 23 May 2007, when 37.5% of the share capital of Opera SGR 5.p.A. was
sold at a price of 443 thousand euros, leading to a loss of 50 thousand euros recognised in other financial
income (expense).

As a result of this sale the company, which was previously consolidated using the proportionate method, left
the consolidation scope; the remaining value of this investment of 138 thousand euros representing 12.5% is
classified as ‘Investments in other companies’.

On 6 December 2007 Monraco S.A. was acquired, the company which wholly owns H. Finger AG. This
company having its registered office in Geneva and a subscribed and paid-up share capital of 200,000 Swiss
francs is now 100% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.. A price of 5,061 thousand euros
(8,352 thousand Swiss francs) was paid for net assets of 999 thousand euros (1,649 thousand Swiss francs),
including goodwill of 4,062 thousand euros (6,703 thousand Swiss francs). This purchase forms part of the
process of integrating and optimising the production of watches.




On 18 December 2007 the procedure to wind up Bulgari Luxernbourg S.A. was completed.

The amounts for the total assets, liabilities and cash and cash equivalents of the above acquisitions is not
provided as they are not significant.
Reference should be made to note 28 for a discussion of changes in the consolidation scope.

2. Revenues
(thousauds of ecroc)
2007 2006
Net sales 1,073,810 990,650
Rovallies 14,003 12,336
Orher revenues 3.168 5709
Total revenues 1,090,981 1,008,655

Reference should be made to note 24 “Segment information” and the Report of the Board of Directors on the
Group's performance for an analysis of revenues by type of product and by geographical area.

“Distributors’ commissions”, previously classified as part of variable expenses, are now classified as a
reduction in revenues from net sales for a better presentation. The corresponding amount for the previous year
has been reclassified in the same manner. This balance amounted to 1,919 thousand euros in 2007 (1,732
thousand euros in 2006).

3. Cost of sales

Cost of sales of 391,865 thousand euros in 2007 (361,285 thousand euros in 2006) consists of the cost of
production or purchase of products and goods which have been sold. In particular, it includes the cost of
materials and transformation, general expenses directly related to production, the depreciation and amortisation
of plant and machinery and intangible assets used in production and write-downs of inventory.

4. Operating expenses, net

{thousands of cume}

Note 1007 2006

Persennel costs 21 170,333 157426
Variable selling expenses 48,843 42,043
Other selling, general and administrative expenses 195,854 177,883
Advertising und promation expenses 119,565 L2910
Total operating expenses, net 534,595 490,262
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Personnel costs relate to both selling and administrative functions,

{theusands of eurns)

Note 007 1006

Credit card commissions 5,087 4,674
Intermediaries” fees 8417 6,180
Trunsport expenses 14,393 13,190
Sales commissions 2 9,279 7352
Onher 11.667 10,747
Tolal variable selling expenses 43,843 12,043

“Intermediaries’ fees” relate almost exclusively to agents’ commissions of 8,145 thousand euros for the sale of
perfumes (5,805 thousand euros in 2006). The increase is mainly due to the entry of Bulgari Parfums Iberia
S.L. into the consolidation scope.

*“Other” of 11,667 theusand euros relates to Bulgar Parfums S.A. for 3,666 thousand euros (3,587 thousand
euros in 2006), Bulgar Parfums Italia S.p.A. for 1,584 thousand euros (1,381 thousand euros in 2006) and
Bulgari Global Operations S.A. for 1,136 thousand euros (1,125 thousand eurcs in 2006), mostly in connection
with product warehousing costs.

The item also includes costs incurred by Bulgari Italia S.p.A. for 2,205 thousand euros (1,862 thousand euros
in 2006), of which the majority relates to premises costs for BVLGARI stores in duty free areas and
commissions payable for the logistical handling of Bulgari perfumes, which in North America is outsourced to
an external partner of Bulgan Corporation of America Inc..

(thousands of eurok)

0m 2006
Rentals 63,765 55837
Other operating expenses 42,606 977
Other general expenses, net 89.483 87.069
Total other selling, general and administrative expenses 195,854 177,883

The increase in rentals over 2006 is mostly attributable to the new premises used for carrying out the
Group’s activities and in particular to the new stores in New York, Lugano, Marbella, Macao, Ginza and
Omotesando.

*Other operating expenses” substantially relate to general expenses for 17,089 thousand euros (14,379 thousand
curos in 2006), to provisions of 2,571 thousand euros (793 thousand euros in 2006) for the most part relating
to bad debts and legal disputes, to utilities for 5,506 thousand euros (5,236 thousand euros in 2006}, to
operating lease instalments, mainly regarding company vehicles and office machines, for 4,436 thousand euros
(3,860 thousand euros in 2006) and to maintenance expenses for 5,584 thousand euros (4,761 thousand euros
in 2006).

“Other general expenses, net” include mainly travel expenses of 14,042 thousand euros (14,060 thousand euros
in 2006), consultancy fees of 14,951 thousand euros (12,192 thousand euros in 2006), taxes other than income
taxes of 4,649 thousand euros (3,159 thousand euros in 2006), fees to members of company bodies of 5,104
thousand euros (5,629 thousand euros in 2006) and insurance costs of 2,975 thousand euros {3,350 thousand
euros in 20060). This item also includes depreciation and amortisation of 43,166 thousand euros (38,343
thousand euros in 2006) which mostly relates to leasehold improvements, costs for taking over leases and
computet hardware and software.




5. Financial income (expense)

Interest income

(thousands of exros)

2007 2006

Dividends from third parties 507 -
Bank interest income 668 714
Interest income from public authorities 169 175
Premium income on hedging activities 3.108 1,572
Other 242 221
‘Total interest income 4,694 1,682

“Dividends from third parties™ of 507 thousand euros refer to the dividends distributed to Bulgan International
Corporation (BIC) N.V. in February by the fund Opera Partecipation S.c.a. 2.

Interest expense

(thousanmds of evrow)

007 2006
Bank interest expense (146) {163)
Loan interest expense (6,183) 4,270)
Premium expense on hedging activities (7,939 16,221)
Other (65) (36)
Total Interest expense (14,333} {10,690}

Other financial income (expense)

(thousands of curos)

Note 2007 1006

Financial discount and allowance income 192 543

Gains on the disposal of equity investments 350 -
Financial discount and allowance expense (694) {892)
Bank charges and commissions (865) (818)
TFR discounting intenest 21 (473) (449)
Other (243 (204)
Total other financial income (expense) (1,633) (1820

*“Gains on the disposal of equity investments” of 350 thousand euros relate to the sale of 37.5% of the shares
held in Opera Management S.A..

Exchange gains (losses)
(thoosamds of euros)

2007 2006
Exchange gains 105475 76,059
Exchange losses (93.590) (67,707)
Total excliange gains (losses) 118385 8,352
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6. Taxation

ithovsands of curos)

Note 007 2006

Current taxation 13,450 19,853
Deferred taxation 12 (1,046) 231
Prior year taxation 1,574 488
Total taxation 13,978 20,572

The Group’s average tax rate in 2007 was 8.46%.
Income taxes paid abroad on 4 final basis have been classified as current taxation for a better presentation. This
balance amounted to 1,263 thousand euros for 2007 (1,221 thousand euros in 2006).

A reconciliation between the tax charge in the consolidated financial statements and the theoretical tax charge,
calculated on the basis of the theoretical tax rates, is as follows:

2007 2006
Ordinary IRES rate applicable 1D.0W0% 33.00%
Effects leading to an increase (decrease) in the rute:
- Non-deductible costs 2.44% 2.12%
- Exempt income and other deductible costs {0.66%) {0.80%)
- Ulisation of tax losses - {0.12%)
~ Taxation of income prodluced abroad 0.77% 0.79%
« CFC companies liable to axation 0.02% -
— Adjustments to prior year income laxes 0.45% -
-~ Adjustments to deferred tux liabilities caleulated on accumulated temporary differences {0.49%) {0.03%)
- Effect of differences with foreign tax rates {28.55%) (24.46%)
IRES effective rate 6.98% 11.09%
IRAP cfiect (current und deferred) 1.48% 2.23%
Tota) effective tax rate 8.46% 13.32%




7. Property, plant and equipment - 160,983 thousand euros

Property, plant and equipment and changes for the year are set out as follows:

{thousands of eurps)
Land and Plant and Industrial  Furnlture, Motor Alrcraft Leasehold Construction Tota
buildings  machinery and office vehicles improve:  in progress
commerchal  equipment mepts and advance
equipment  and Mittings payments
Year 2005
Cost 19192 21.92% 16.185 85,425 373 5.810 115,360 1.685 265.951
Accumulated depreciation {5.703) (15,561} (11,351} {60,981} (344) (1.894) (72051 - {167.88%)
Net book value at
3 December 2005 13,489 6,360 4,834 24,444 9 1916 43309 1,685 98,066
Changes in 2006
Exchange rate fluctuations (185) (64) (mn {1.07T) (1) 2 (2,143) i3 (3.546)
Change in scope of
consolid, - 12 - 53 - - - - 65
Reclassifications 28 24 (5) 382 - -~ 1,058 (1.747) (40)
Purchases 1,166 4,626 1,158 15,869 - - 12,951 13,348 49,118
Disposals - 24y th 132) - - (29) - (86)
Depreciation (1,082) {2,483} (1,622) (10,177) (14) (237 (12.304) - (21.919)
Write-downs (40} - - (52) - (1,403) {690) (1) (2,186)
Total changes in 2006 (i 2311 (581) 4,966 (%) (1,638 (LISTH 11,63 15,406
Year 2006
Cost 20,039 26,226 16,894 97,329 337 5814 118887 13,318 298.844
Accumulated depreciation {6,663} (17,555} (12,641 (67.919) (323) (3,536} 176,735) . {185.372)
Net book value at
31 December 2006 13,376 8671 4,253 2410 14 2,278 42,152 1338 113472
Changes in 2007
Exchange rate (luctuations (182) TN (99) (797) - n {2.880) (6) (4,036)
Change in scope of
consolid. 80 - - 35 - - 30 - 75
Reclassifications 919 49 » 907 - - 11,435 (13.272) 7
Purchases 3,257 3,521 3.7 26,105 - - 39,245 10,720 86,559
Disposals - ub @ (127 M Q22 (20) - (2,444)
Depreciation (1,385) 2,797 (1.563) (12.465) 3 - (14.109) - 132,322
Write-downs (16) - - (431 - - (123) - (571}
Own work capitalised - 173 - - - - - - 173
Total changes in 2007 2,683 864 2,076 13,156 10y  (2278) 33578 (2,558) 47,511
Year 2007
Cost 23,668 28,751 19.650 116,583 249 - 141,700 16,760 341,361
Accumuluted depreciation  (7.609)  (19216)  (13.321)  (T4017T) (245) - (65.970) —  (180,378)
Net book value ot
31 December 2007 16,059 9,535 6,329 42,566 4 - 75730 10,760 160,983
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The principal increases in the year regard the renovation of stores or the opening of new stores, as summarised
in the following table:

Furniture, Lexsehold Totsl Main stores renovated or opened
office equlpment Improvements in 2007
and fittings
Buigari Japan Ltd. 4,053 13,167 17,220 Ginza Tower/Omotesundo/Sendai

Fujisaki/Shibuya Tokyu/Shinyukyu
Takashimaya/Fukuoka Daimaru

(Japan) |
Bulgari Corporation of America Inc. 3,214 8,299 11,513 Fifih Ave/Madison Ave/Boca
Raton/Costa Mesa (U.S.)
Bulgari Espana S.A. Unipersonal - 3149 3149  Valencia ¢ Marbella (Spain)
Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai} Co. Ltd. 3,059 - 3,059  Shengyang/Mitsukoshi/Nanjing/
Tianjin/Chengdu (China)
Bulgari 5.A. 2491 - 2491 Lugana (Switzerland)
Bulgari lialia S.p.A. 1,419 1,393 2812  Roma Accessori ([taly)
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japan Lid. T 7475 8.186  Ginza and Omotesando (Japan)
Other 11,158 5,762 16,920
Tota) 26,105 39,245 65,350

Investments in “Furniture, office machines and fittings”™ include purchases of 3,814 thousand euros of window
displays made by Bulgari Global Operations S.A. for use by the third party distribution network for the
presentation of BVLGARI products in some of the leading airports in the world, of which Taipei and Taiwan
are highlighted, and investments of 1,076 thousand euros in computer hardware made by Bulgari S.p.A..

“Leasehold improvements™ include amongst other things the costs incurred for the expansion at the production
facilities of Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta Haute Horologerie S.A. {2,859 thousand euros) and the restructuring
of the offices of Bulgari France S.a.s. (441 thousand euros).

The increase in “Construction in progress and advance payments” relates principally to the expenditure
incurred in the year for new machines not yet in use (5,300 thousand euros), restructuring work carried out at
the new factery of Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. (1,721 thousand euros), the new stores in Panama (601 thousand
euros), Pavilion KLCC in Malaysia (524 thousand euros) and Paseo de Gracia in Spain (480 thousand euros),
and displays under construction relating to the distribution of Bulgari products (474 thousand euros).

Additional increases for new purchases relate principally to improvements to plant at Bulgari Italia S.p.A. (477
thousand euros) and investments in production plant and machinery at Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta Haute
Horologerie S.A. (966 thousand euros), Crova S.p.A. (470 thousand euros), and Bulgari Time (Switzerland)
S.A. (433 thousand euros).

Increases to “Land and buildings™ consist mainly of the costs incurred by Bulgari Japan Ltd. for the drafting
and design required to modemise the rented premises at Ginza Tower and Omotesando (618 thousand euros)
and the investments made by Cadrans Design S.A. (404 thousand euros) for the purchase of a new building to
be used for production.

“Disposals” relate mainly to the sale of an aircraft owned by the Group until the beginning of 2007 whose net
book value at 31 December 2006 had already been adjusted to reflect its net realisable value.




No information had been received from companies at 31 December 2007 as to the existence of any idle fixed
assets or of any fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use and having a significant value.
There were no charges on property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2007 securing any of the Group’s
liabilities.

8. Goodwill - 44,832 thousand euros

Changes in “Goodwill” during the year ended 31 December 2007 were as follows:

{thousands of eurme}

At 31 December 2006 41,908

Changes -

Exchange differences (1,832)
Increases 4,802

Decreuses (46)
Total changes 2924

Al 31 December 2007 44,832

The decrease relating to “Exchange differences” regards the adjustment to exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date of goodwill arising from the purchase of companies whose functional currency is different from the
euro.

Included in “Increases™ is 976 thousand euros arising from Bulgari Parfums Iberia S.A., which became part of
the Bulgari Group in February 2007, and 3,815 thousand euros regarding the purchase of Monraco S.A., and
its subsidiary H. Finger AG, which became part of the Bulgari Group in December.

“Decreases” relate to Opera SGR S.p.A. which left the consolidation scope in May 2007.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purposes of impairment testing. For production companies
cash generating units are considered to be the individual companies acquired, while for selling companies
expected future cash flows have been assessed, although in an overall integrated context, by ulso taking into
account the margins that will be earned from the production and logistical process by the Division to which
they belong.

Goodwill is atlocated in the following manner:

(thonsancds of eurm)
Cash generating unit Goodwill
Crova S.p.A. 13.540
Bulgari South Asian Operations Pre Lid. 9.573
Danie! Roth et Gérald Genta Haute Horogerie S.A. 4.954
Bulgari Asta Pacific Ltd, 4,569
Bulgari Corporation of Americy Inc. (*) 4,804
Bulgari (Taiwan) Ltd. 973
Monrco S.A. 3.815
Other companies 970
JWA Division 43,198
Perfume Division 1,634
AL December 2007 44,832

*) Goodwill paid by Bulgari Corporation of America for the purchase of the store in Honolulu (Hawaii).
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There were no impairment losses at 31 December 2007.

The recoverable amount of recognised geodwill is determined by using the discounted cash flow method, under
which a suitable discount rate is applied to estimated future cash flows.

The discount rate used is calculated by using the W.A.C.C. (Weighted Average Cost of Capital) method, namely
by weighting the rate of return expected from investing the company’s equity in a similar business and the cost
of debt.

A rate of approximately 9% was used.

The forecast cash flows used in the impairment test were based on budgets and business plans prepared by the
management of the Group’s Divisions, having in general a time horizon of five years.

To extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the period envisaged in the budgets and business plans, the
discounted terminal value was calculated under the perpetuity method using growth rates in the range from 0%
to 3%, which historically is a conservative estimate for the luxury market.

A sensitivity analysis of the impatrment test shows that even by making large changes to the parameters the
results of the test indicate that the recoverable amounts of the various portions of goedwill still exceed their
CaITying amounts.




9. Other intangible assets - 73,217 thousand euros

The composition of and changes in “Other intangible fixed assets™ are as follows:

| thousands of earos)
Industrial C Assets under Expend. for Total
costs patents and trade marks formation taking over
intellectual and licences premises and
property rights other
Year 2005
Cost 8.168 46,247 2,779 1,475 26,524 91,193
Accumulated amortisution (6.228) (31,742} (2,042) - (3.190) (43,202)
Net book value at 31 December 2005 1,940 14,508 737 TATS 23,334 47,991
Changes in 2006
Exchange rate fluctuations (36) n an - (17 (187)
Changes in scope of consolidation - 1 1 - - 2
Reclassifications - 2,238 - (7.368) 5170 40
Purchases 1,712 8,726 471 3,293 o665 14,868
Amortisation (1.130) (5.488) (250) - (1.428) (8,317
Write-downs - - - - - -
Other changes (79) 2} (81)
Total changes in 2006 446 5448 205 {4,075) 4,301 6,325
Year 2006
Cost 9,534 56,723 3167 3.400 32,162 104,986
Accumulated amortisation (7.148) (36,770} (2.225) - {4.527) (50.670)
Net book value al 31 December 2006 2,386 19,953 942 3400 27,635 54,316
Changes in 2007
Exchange rate fluctuations (58) (23) 23 - (649 (753)
Changes in scope of consolidation - (2) - - - (2)
Reclassifications - 2,328 - (2,770) 442 -
Purchases 1913 14553 386 12,494 633 29,979
Amortisation (1,32%) (7,066) (313 - (1,595) {10,301}
Write-downs - 2D - - 1) (22)
Total changes in 2007 528 9,769 50 9,724 {1,170} 18,901
Year 2007
Cost 1,177 73.101 3.460 13,124 32,265 133,327
Accumutated amortisation (8.263) (43.379) (2.468) - (5,800} (59.910)
Net book value at 31 Decernber 2007 2914 29,722 992 13,124 26,465 73217

The increases in “Development costs” mainly regard the new fragrances to be released onto the market and skin
tests relating to perfumes (1,201 thousand euros).

The increases in “Industrial patents and intellectual property rights” may be principally attributed to the
purchase of applications software licences for the management of various business activities carried out by the
parent company Bulgari S.p.A. (13,637 thousand euros).
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“Assets under formation” relates essentially to investments for the development of prototypes no longer usable
(6,648 thousard euros), fees for taking over the leases of premises relating to stores which have not yet been
opened (Georges V in France (4,652 thousand euros) and Barcelona in Spain (520 thousand euros) and
investments made in applications software regarding procedures and programmes that were still at the
implementation stage at 3t December 2007.

There were no restrictions on the ownership of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2007 or charges
securing any of the Group’s liabilities.

“Research and development costs” recognised directly as an expense in the income statement during the year
amounted to 2,435 thousand euros.

10. Investments in other companies

This item consists of investments, categorised as available-for-sale, in the closed investment funds Opera
Partecipations S.c.a. and Opera Partecipations 2 S.c.a., in which Bulgari Intemational Corporation N.V. holds
respectively 11.72% and 7.32% of the total shares having dividend rights.

The expectations of recovery of the holdings in these funds, based on the sale of the investments previously
hkeld, confirm the reasonableness of their net carrying amounts.

This item also includes the residual amount of the investments in Opera SGR (12.5%) and Opera Management
(11.45%), previously consolidated using the proportionate method, which have now left the consolidation scope
as the result of the sale of 37.5% by Bulgani S.p.A. and by Bulgari [nternational Corporation N.V. in May 2007.

{thoesandy of ewnsp
Opena Opera Opera Sgr Opera ‘Tota)
Partecipations S.c.a. Partecipations 2 S.ca. Management
At 31 December 2006 17.124 3,008 - - 20,132
I[ncreases - H7 138 14 269
Decreases (6,388} (2.923) - - 931
At 31 December 2007 10,736 202 138 14 11,090
11. Other current and non-current financial assets
(thottainds of utos)
3007 V122006
Current financinl assets
Current financial receivables 12,804 6,384
12,804 6,384
Non-current linancial assels
Guarantee deposils 29,103 16,281
Insurance funds 37 6,190
Other 6 6
Total non-current financial assets 29,146 22477
Non-current financial receivables 1.368 929
Total other current and non-current financial assets 30514 23,406
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Financial receivables include the portion not eliminated on consolidation of loans of 1,726 theusand euros and
151 thousand euros made by Bulgari International Corporation N.V. to LB Diamonds & Jewelry Sarl and
Cadrans Design S.A. respectively; both companies are held as to 50% and consolidated using the proportionate
method. The loan to LB Diamonds & Jewelry Sarl amounts in currency to 2,500 thousand U.S. dollars, is
repayable in March 2008 and bears interest at a floating rate of LIBOR +1.125%, while that to Cadrans Design
S.A. amounts in currency to 500 thousand Swiss francs and is repayable in June 2008. The residual balance
consists of the effect of hedging currency and gold.

The principal balance included in guarantee deposits is an amount of 18,587 thousand euros (11,186 thousand
euros at 31 December 2006) paid as a deposit for the rental of premises in Tokyo by the subsidiary Bulgari
Japan Lid.. The increase in this item is mainly due to the renting of the new premises at Ginza and Omotesando.

The decrease in “Insurance funds™ over 31 December 2006 is due 1o the collection of the receivable in Bulgari
Japan Ltd.. The company had recognised this receivable after taking out life assurance and accident insurance
policies for its employees. Under these policies the receivable was recoverable in the event that there were no
claims in connection with either of these two events before the end of an employee’s labour contract. On
deciding on expiry not to renew this form of policy the company obtained a refund of the balance.

Non-current financial receivables are all due from related parties and include an amount of 293 thousand euros
representing the portion not eliminated on consolidation {of 35%) of long-term subordinated loans made to
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts B.V. and an amount of 531 thousand euros relating to long-term subordinated
loans made to Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.l,, which are both consolidated using the proportionate
method. These loans are repayable in April 2027 and interest is charged on a quarterly basis at a rate of
EURIBOR +3%.

This item additionally includes an amount of 544 thousand euros (900 thousand Swiss francs) representing the
portion not eliminated on consolidation (of 50%) of a long-term loan made by Bulgari Global Operations S.A.
to Cadrans Design S.A.. This loan is repayable in March 2017 and bears interest at 3.5%.

12. Deferred taxation

Details of deferred taxation are set out in the following table, with a description of the items which generate the
main temporary differences:

sthausands of curos)

At M/TL2006 Charge Utilisation Other chanpes At 31022007

Elimination of interco. profits 15,490 - (1,324) n 14,149
Fixed assets 3,024 9 (927) (113 1,993
Other accruals 3315 3324 (274) (257) 6,608
Deferred tax assets 22,329 3333 (2,525) (387) 22,750
Accelerated depreciation (5.166) {2,159 1,630 3 (5.692)
Undistributed profits {7.300) - w7 - (6,333)
Tax prov. for obsolete inventory {6,042) (767} 52 191 {6,566)
Tax clean-up (535) - 26 - (509)
Employee benefit obligamions (390} (139} 26 - (1,003}
Tax provision for bad debts {1,584y - 636 33 (945)
Other accruals (332) (205) 201 n (437
Deferred tax liabilities {21,%49) (3.270) 3,508 26 (21,485)
Total deferred taxation 380 63 943 (161) 1,265
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The decrease in deferred tax liabilities is mainly connected with revised assessments made of the undistributed
profits of certain Group companies as a result of which the distribution of these profits in the foreseeable future
is currently no longer considered likely, and with the release to income of the provision for bad debts.

The column “Other changes™ consists principally of the exchange effect arising from the translation of financial
statemments whose functional currency is different from the euro.

13. Inventory

Inventory is made up as follows:

tthousands of euns)
314122007 3122006
Gross stock vatue Proviskon for Net batance Net batance
obslesence

Raw materials 64.632 - 64,632 55,988
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 150,660 11,081 139,579 123,395
Finished goods and packaging 413,388 21.483 391,905 349,551
Total imventory 628,680 32564 596,116 528,934

The net balance of 596,116 thousand euros represents a net increase of 67,182 thousand euros, or 12.70%, over
that at 31 December 2006.

This increase may be attributed to the net effect of the building up stocks of raw materials and the creation of
stocks of finished goods by the production and distribution companies of the Group on expectations of the
launch of new products; the effect of this increase is reflected in a rise in stock turnover (from 188 days at 31
December 2006 to 197 days at 31 December 2007).

The increase in percentage terms is less than that of tumover, which rose by 14% at comparable exchange rates.

14, Trade receivables

Trade receivables are made up as follows:

{thousands of curw)

3122007 V122006
Due within Provision for Provisian for Net balance at Net batance st
12 months bad debts returns V122007 1/12/2006
Final customers and distributors 180,328 2106 1,358 176,364 165,544
Franchisees 25,904 82 - 25,822 21476
Total trade receivables 206,232 2,188 1,858 202,186 187,020

The book value of *“Trade receivables” approximates their fair value.

An amount of 1,139 thousand euros of the provision for bad debts was utilised during the year, while additions
of 911 thousand euros were made.

The charge for these additions is classified in the income statement as “Selling, general and administrative
expenses’.

Provisions for returns consists of accruals made for future returns resulting from the sale to third parties and
distributors of products that make up the Group's main business and relating 1o 2007.




15. Other current and non-current assets

(thousands of evros)
/122007 31212006
Other current assets:
Other tax credits 37.040 27.060
Prepayments and acerued income 12491 10,499
Advances to suppliers 2,396 1,532
Due from social security organisations 2,285 552
Other 5052 6,281
Total other current assets 59,264 45924
Other non-current assets:
Other non-current tax credits 9,735 8,753
Other 265 88
Total other non-current assets 18,000 84841

Other current assets
The increase in current “Other tax credits”, all due within 12 months, is mostly due 1o VAT receivables (24,947
thousand euros at 31 December 2007).

“Prepayments and accrued income™ are made up as follows:

(thousandy of curos)

oo /112006

Total accrued income 30 45
Insurance 963 9206
Instalments for the rental of premises 7.866 6,905
Other prepayments 3632 2643
Total prepayments 12461 10454
Total prepayments and accrued income 12491 10,499

More specifically the increase in “Other prepayments”, which amount to 3,632 thousand euros (2,643 thousund
euros at 31 December 2006), arises from advances of 2,620 thousand euros for promotion expenses and events
(1,212 thousand euros at 31 December 20006).

“Advances to suppliers” of 2,396 thousand euros (1,532 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) consist mainly of
payments in advance of 871 thousand euros for purchases of raw materials (nil at 31 December 2006), of 687
thousand euros for promotion expenses (427 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) and of 497 thousand euros
for VAT to be paid to the customs authorities on importing goods (428 thousand euros at 31 December 2006).

“Due from social security organisations” of 2,285 thousand euros (552 thousand euros at 31 December 2006)
includes a receivable of 1,759 thousand euros from the lialian social security organisation INPS, against which
there is a payable of the same amount in “Employees’ leaving entitlement and other personnel provisions™. This
balance represents the portion of the employees’ leaving entittement (TFR) which following the “Pension
Reform” is considered to relate to a defined contribution plan.

“Qther” of 5,052 thousand euros (6,281 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) consists of receivables from
intermediaries of 1,321 thousand euros for the recovery of VAT, insurance receivables of 1,073 thousand euros
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and a non-interest bearing loan of 1,049 thousand euros made to fund the Bulgari brand stores in Beijing and
Shanghai, initially managed by third parties.
The book value of “Other current assets” approximates their fair value.

Other non-current assets

“Other non-current assets” consist mainly of other tax credits of 9,735 thousand euros (8,753 thousand euros
at 31 December 2006), due after more than 12 months, relating to VAT refunds requested by Bulgari 5.p.A. (for
7.079 thousand euros) and Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. (for 2,283 thousand euros).

The book value of “Other current assets” approximates their fair value as it also includes accrued interest
mcome.

The increase in “Other” to 265 thousand euros (88 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) regards an amount of

181 thousand euros payable by third parties to Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. in coanection with
the sale of the shares of Opera Partecipations 2 S.c.a..

16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for which there is no restriction on use, are made up as follows:

{thousands of curos}

Jnoor 122006

Bunk deposits 28,524 37,502
Cash and cheques 1.661 2332
Overdrafts (8,504) (42}
Total cash and cash equivalents 21,681 39.792

The average rate of interest paid by banks at 31 December 2007 on short-term deposits and current accounts in
which available funds are held in various currencics was approximately 1.5%.
The book value of “Cash and cash equivalents™ is in line with their their fair value at the balance sheet date.

17. Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Share capital at 31 December 2007 amounted to 21,021 thousand euros, inclusive of owned treasury shares, and
consisted of 300,293,560 shares each of par value 0.07 euros, fully subscribed and paid up.

The parent company held 800,000 treasury shares at 31 December 2007, each of par value 0.07 euros, for a
total of 56 thousand euros,

A total of 719,500 new ordinary shares were issued during the year in connection with the stock option plans
reserved for certain employees, with the resulting increase of 51 thousand euros in capital.

A dividend of 0.29 euros per share was distributed in 2007.

Legal reserve
There has been no change in the legal reserve of 5,762 thousand euros during the year as it has already reached
the maximum of one fifth of share capital as provided by article 2430 of the [talian civil code.
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Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve of 120,614 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 decreased by 3,044 thousand euros
during the year due to a net decrease of 7,979 thousand euros arising from the purchase and sale of treasury
shares, which was partially offset by an increase of 4,933 thousand euros relating to the above-mentioned issue
of 719,500 new shares.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve of 49,091 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 represents the cumulative effect of the
exchange differences resulting from the difference between the amount obtained from transiating items of the
shareholders’ equity of subsidiaries with 1 money of account other than the euro at the historic exchange rate,
being that at the date of their formation, and that obtained from using the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date.

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedge reserve of 5,213 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 consists of the effective portion of
the accumulated net change in the fair value of financial instruments used to hedge cash flows.

Orher reserves

This account consists of the treasury shares sales gain reserve (2.384 thousand euros) the extraordinary reserve
(28 thousand eurcs), the taxed reserve (145 thousand euros) and the gain on contribution reserve (1.933
thousand euros).

The increase of 4,490 thousand euros in “Other reserves” at 31 December 2007 is due to the gain realised on
the sale of treasury shares.

Stock option reserve

The stock option reserve of 9,142 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 represents the counter-entry of the cost
recognised in the income statement for adjustments to the fair value of the options grdnted to particular
categories of employees and the Managing Director,

18. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The computation of basic earnings per share hits been made by considering earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders of 150,918 thousand euros (134,271 thousand euros for the year ended 31 December 2006) and a
weighted average number of 299,534 thousand shares cutstanding during the year calculated in the following
manner:

ithomsandh of curos)

Nnzzoee? L2006

Ordinary shares at 1 fanuary 299.574 298.114
Treasury shares at end of period (800) -
Issue of new shares 720 1,460
Ordinary shares at 31 December excluding treasury shares 299,494 299,574
Weighted average ordinury shares 299,534 298,544
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Diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share has been made by considering earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders of 150,918 thousand euros (134,271 thousand euros for the year ended 31 December 2006) and a
weighted average number of 304,037 shares outstanding during the year calculated in the following manner:

(thousamnds of curos)
31272007 J0/0ES2006
Weighted average ordinary shares 299,534 298,544
Dilutive effect of option rights 4,503 4,737
Weighted average ordinary shares (diluted) 304,037 302,281
19. Current and non-current financial payables
Information as to the contractual terms of loans and funding made to the Group is as follows:
thousands of eure)
MAL2007 122006
Current financial payables
Financial payables 1o banks 116,499 54,055
Other current financial payables 1,935 217
Total 118,434 56,772
Non-current financial payables
Financial payables 1o banks 55444 34,156
Other nen—current financial payables 2,906 3.031
Total 58,350 37,187

The following table provides details of “Current financial payables to banks™ by individual company:

{rhousands of egrost

Balance at 31/1272007 lnterest rate
Bulgari S.p.A. 81,298 1.90%
Bulgari Japan Ltd. 14,066 1.04%
Bulguri (Thailand) Ltd. 5571 4.88%
Bulguri Korea Lid. 4,209 6.20%
Bulguri {Taiwan) Lid, 3411 281%
Prestige d'Or 5.A. 3.082 3371%
Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai) Co, Lid. 2,558 583%
Bulguri Malaysia Sdn. 1.356 4.90%
Cadrans Design S.A. 787 3.26%
LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.arl, 161 6.11%
Total 116,499

The loans to Bulgari S.p.A. were taken out mainly for the payment of dividends to shareholders and had
original repayment dates ranging from 2 to 5 months; they were then renewed on expiry. As of today they have
terms ranging from 1 to 3 months with interest payable at an average rate of 4.90%,
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The loans to Prestige d’Or S.A., current and non-current, amounting in total to 3,082 thousand euros, relate for
1,541 thousand euros (2,550 thousand Swiss francs) to a mortgage secured on the company’s property.

Credit facilities granted to the Group amounted to approximately 580 million euros at 31 December 2007, while
those relating to forward transactions to hedge currency and gold amounted to approximately 1,200 million
euros, of which facilities of 527 million euros were in use at 31 December 2007. The nominal amount of credit
facilities granted to Bulgari by banks in connection with operations in derivatives is equal to approximately
15% of the notional value of the derivatives.

“Other current financial payables” consist principally of “Financial payables due within 12 months” of 1,850
thousand euros, which relates mainly to a loan of 1,698 thousand euros granted to LB Diamonds Jewelry Sarl
by LL International Holding B.V. {which holds the remaining 50% of the company) at a variable interest rate
of LIBOR +1.125%, and to payables of 835 thousand euros regarding agreements hedging currency risk, interest
rate risk and commodity price risk.

The following table provides details of “Non-current financial payments due to banks” with a separate
indication of the repayment date, the interest rate and the original balance in foreign currency:

Non-current financial payables to banks

(thousands of cunx)
Balance at 3171271007 Repayment date Interest rate  Amount in currency
6,063 2009 1.27%  1,000,000,000 Yen
3,032 2000 1.15% 500,000,000 Yen
606 2000 1.44% 100,000,000 Yen
606 2009 0.79% 100,000,000 Yen
12,127 2010 1.34%  2,000,000,000 Yen
606 2010 1.44% 100,000,000 Yen
606 2010 0.79% 100,000,000 Yen
9.095 2011 1.85%  1,500,000,000 Yen
9,095 2011 1.90%  1,500,000,000 Yen
303 2011 1.44% 50,000,000 Yen
9,095 2012 1.42%  1,500,000,000 Yen
3.032 X2 1.56% 500,000,000 Yen
603 2010 2.50% 1,000,000 Chf
363 2010 3.40% 600.000 Chif
106 2012 3.05% 175,000 Chf
106 2012 3.05% 175,000 Chf
Total 55444
Other non-current financial payables
(thotisisuds of eers)
Balance at 31/12/2007 Repayment date Interest rate  Amount in currency
1897 2027 Euribor +3% 1,897,372 euros
1,009 2027 Euribor +3% 1,008,912 euros

Total 2,906
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The loans in yen relate to Bulgari Japan Ltd, those in Swiss francs to Prestige D’Or S.A., while those in euros
refer to Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milan S.r.1. (1,897 thousand ¢uros) and Bulgari Hotels and Resorts B.V,
{1,008 thousand euros).

The Group had ne outstanding loans at 31 December 2007 containing negative pledges or covenants.

20. Derivative financial instruments

The following table sets out the notional value and fair value of outstanding derivatives at 31 December 2007,
grouped by type.

{thousznds of curoe)
Nominal vakze ¥air vatue Differemce
3171271007 31/12006 31122007 IV122006

Cash flow hedge derivatives
— Currency 196,060 201,257 5015 2,939 2,076
- Interest rate - 7.593 - 175 (175)
- Commadities 61,815 35,243 5213 (641} 5,854
Fair value hedge derivatives
= Currency 277,220 186,333 7179 271 2,508
Trading derivatives (*)
— Currency 29,606 3.153 722 3 719
- Commodities 5995 - 553 - 553
TOTAL 570,696 433,579 14,282 2747 11,538
of which:
Current financial assets 576.696 398,336 14282 3,388 10,894
Current financial liabilities - 35,243 - (641) 641

(*) Although these imasaciions have been entered with the ohjective of hedging they do oot always qualify for hedpe weeounting under accounting standards, a5
discussed in the section “Accounting principles and policies”, and acvordingly are reclassified as “trading™.

Currency and commodity risk hedges
The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in rates of exchange with its functional currency. Its principal
exposure is towards the Japanese yen and the US dollar.

In order to reduce this risk the net foreign currency exposure arising from trade receivables and payables and
from estimated net cash flows in foreign currencies from forecast sales and purchases for the following 15
months, as determined from the annual budget and quarterly revisions, is held to un acceptable leve! by entering
into derivative contracts (principally forward contracts and residually option contracts). The outstanding
derivatives contracts at 31 December 2007 had terms not exceeding 12 months and the relative effects on the
income statement wili occur in 2008.

Interest rate hedges

In order to limit its exposure to interest rate risk the Group uses hedging instruments to ensure that a certain
percentage of the interest payable on debt is converted from floating rate to fixed rate. This percentage is linked
to its borrowing requirements, the average life of the debt and the reference market (country and currency).
There were no interest rate derivatives outstanding at 31 December 2007.




Determination of fair value

Derivative contracts are measured at market value (marked to market) by using quoted prices or by discounting
future cash flows and comparing these to current market prices. The term market value refers to official fixings
(by central banks and associations of banks) or quotations made by brokers as published by providers of
financial information. Fair value models also use these quotations as references,

Fair value - sensitivity analysis

The fair value of currency derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was 3,584 thousand euros at 31 December
2007. An unfavourable change of 10% in the spot foreign exchange rate alone compared to the official exchange
rates at 31 December 2007, applicable to all currencies, would have led to a total negative theoretical fair value
of 12,869 thousand euvros. The other way round, a favourable change of 10% in exchange rates would have led
to a profit of 20,412 thousand euros.

The fair value of derivatives hedging the price of gold and designated as cash flow hedges was 5,213 thousand
euros at 31 December 2007. An unfavourable change of 10% in the spot rate alone of the price of gold would
have led to a negative fair value of 744 thousand euros,

An unfavourable change of 10% in the spot rate alone of the price of gold would have led to a negative fair
value of 744 thousand euros. A favourable change of 10% in the price of gold (meaning a lower price}
compared to the official fixing at 31 December 2007 of outstanding derivatives contracts at that date would have
ted to a positive fair value of 11,292 thousand euros.

This sensitivity analysis excludes outstanding derivatives at 31 December 2007 for which there are receivables
and payables recognised in the financial statements. Any changes in the values of these balances arising from
exchange rate trends would be equal and opposite to the changes in value of the derivatives designated as
hedges, with a corresponding nil effect on the result.

Derivatives transactions entered into for treasury purposes, meaning the hedging of financial receivables and
payables in foreign currency through fair value hedges, are also excluded from the fair value sensitivity analysis
for the same reason.

21. Employee benefit plans

The average number of employees of companies included in the scope of consolidation, analysed by category,
is as follows:

Avernge number of employees A122007 /1272006
Executives and managers 452 507
White-collar workers 2472 2012
Blue-collar workers 440 424
Total 3364 2,943

The table excludes the average number of employees of companies consolidated using the proportionate
method, who amount in total to 159.

The average is determined as the average of the spot number of employees for each month of the year.
Professionals classified in the category “Manager” in non-ltalian companies are included under “Executives
and managers™.
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Personnel costs
Personnel costs are set out as follows:

{thoasandhs of euros)

Note 2007 2006

Wages and salaries 140,484 133,524
Social charges 31.401 29,018
Salesmen's commissions 9,279 7,252
Charge for the employees™ leaving entitlement 2,069 1,872
Charges to other personnel provisions 1,359 899
Hiring and training 5.094 3,448
Other costs 11,317 9,863
Total 201,003 185,876
Salesmen’s commissions {9.279) (1.252)
Transfer to cost of sales (21,391} (21,198)
‘Fola! 4 170,333 157,426

Employee benefit plans

(twmsands of evros)

311112007 IUV122006

Defined benefit plans 10,241 11,443
Defined contribution plans 6,214 1,703
Total employee benefit plans 16,515 15,146

In connection with “Employee benefit plans” following the changes introduced by Law no. 296 of 27 December
2006 and subsequent decrees and implementing regulations issued in the first part of 2007 (the Pension Reform
or Riforma Previdenziale) the following changes have taken place:

the TFR continues to be a defined benefit plan for amounts accrued up to 31 December 2006. Given the
changes introduced by the reform the component relating to expected future salary increases has been
excluded from 1 January 2007 in calculating the present value of the obligation. The income of 658
thousand euros arising on the recalculation of the TFR accrued up to 31 December 2006 in accordance with
the new assumptions introduced by the Pension Reform (which has the nature of a curtailment) has been
recognised in the income statement in full under the item “personnel costs™;

from | January 2007 the TFR is considered as a defined contribution plan and accordingly the amounts
accruing from that date are recognised fully as a cost and presented as a payable under the item “employees”
leaving entitlement’, net of any contributions already paid over. A receivable of the same amount is
recognised in other current assets and at 31 December 2007 these balances both amounted to 1,759 thousand
€uros.

The defined benefit obligation for the Italian employees’ leaving entitlement, amounting te 10,241 thousand
euros, has been determined on the basis of prevailing legislation, regulations and labour contracts and on the
basis of a valuaticn made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
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Changes in this obligation during the year are as follows:
{thowsands of euros)

Note 2007 2006
TFR at 1 January 11,443 10,692
Service cosl 278 1,872
Interest 5 473 449
Amontisation of actuarial gains and losses 1
Curtailment {658)
Total charge a3 2321
Amounts paid over (1.296) (1.570)
TFR at 31 December 10, 241 11,443
The principal assurnptions made in the actuarial estimate are as follows:
Annual discount rate 5.50%
Annual inflation rate 2.00%
Annual rate of increase in the cost of lubour 3.00%

The liability for defined contribution plans includes amounts accrued by Bulgari Japan Ltd, and Bulgari Korea
Lid and the portion payable to the treasury fund managed by the Italian national social security organisation
INPS in connection with these plans. The accruals in the former case are made on the basis of the employee’s
estimated length of service and salary at the time the employment relationship is expected to terminate.

Share-based payments

The Group has stock option plans in place in favour of the Managing Director and certain categories of
manager,

The options are granted at the average officially quoted price of the thirty days preceding the grant date. The
vesting period is variable, ranging from two to four years. The options may be exercised within a period ranging
from six months to five years and six months from the date that they have vested.

Considering the fact that all the plans have similar characteristics, the information provided below is presented
in an aggregate manner.

The item “Other costs” includes costs of 2,346 thousand euros relating to all the stock options outstanding at
31 December 2007. This cost has been determined at a fair value ranging between 1.31 and 2.20 euros per share
using the method described in “Significant accounting principles and policies™.

The parameters used in the determination of this cost, namely the determination of the fair value of the options
at the grant date, are as follows:

Dividend yield from 2.5% to 3.02%
Stock price volatility from 23% 10 44%
"Risk free” interest rate from 2.6% to 4.7%
Average expected option wailing period 3.23 years
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Stock options relating to plans previously approved by shareholders were exercised in 2007 for a total number
of 719,500 shares, with a consequent increase in share capital of approximately 51 thousand euros.

In compliance with the resolution passed by shareholders in a general meeting of 28 April 2005 and on the basis
of a resolution of the Board of Directors taken in a meeting of 20 June 2007, 300,000 stock options were
granted to the Managing Director on the latter date which may be exercised from July 2008 and a further
300,000 options which may be exercised from July 2009, all at a price of 11.66 euros.

In addition options were granted on the same date to certain members of management as follows: 147,000
options which may be exercised from July 2008, 147,000 options which may be exercised from July 2009,
527,000 options which may be exercised from June 2010, 47,500 options which may be exercised from July
2010 and 47,500 options which may be exercised from July 2011, all at a price of 11.66 euros.

Information relating to changes taking place in stock option plans during 2007 is set out in the following table:

{Prices in earos)

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number Average Market price (*) Number Average Market price ("

of options exereice price of options exercice price
(1) Rights at 1 January 7.276.950 7.54 10.04 7.683.810 .32 9.43
12) New rights assigned in the year 1,516,000 11.66 1.71 1.594.000 8.58-9.32 8.82.8.87
(33 (Rights exervised in the yeur) (719,500} 6,93 10.90 (1,459,860) 6.35 9.51
(4) (Rights expiring in the year) (444,350) 10.83 10.90 (541,000} 10.70 9.51
(5) Rights at 31 December 7,629,100 8.23 9.56 7.276.950 7.54 10.04
{6) Of which: exercisable at 31 December 4,712,850 7.03 4,196.200 7.05

NOTE: (5) = (1) + (2} + () + 14)
{*) Maket price means the arnual average for the number of optinns a1 (3) and (4) and the exact number for (1), (2) and {3).

The following table provides an analysis of the exercise price band and residual term of the agreement,
subdivided between the Managing Director and other employees:

Price band Reskfual term of agy
< 2yeans > 2 years Total
M.D, Others Total M.D. Others Total
<=20 - - - - - -
>20<50 900,000 1183500 1,018,500 300,000 260,000 560,000 1,578,500
>50 200000 353600 553.600 2400000 3,097,000  5.497,000 6,050,600
Total 1,100,000 472,100 1,572,100 2,700,000 3,357,000 6,057,000 7.629,100

Of which exercisable at 3171247

Price band M.D. Others Totad
<=20 - - -
»>20<50 1,200,000 378,500 1,578,500
>35.0 1,700,000 1434350 3,134,350
Total 2,900,000 1,812,850 4,712,850
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22. Provisions for risks and charges

Changes in this item for the year ended 31 December 2007 were as follows:

{thousands of evros)

Tax provislons Other provisions Total

At 31 December 2006 3453 s 6,831

Charge 95 2615 3410
Utilisation (317) (685) (1,002)
Orher changes 2.157) {1.019) (3,176}

At 31 December 2007 1,774 4,289 6,063

“Tax provisions” consist mainly of the following items:

— 663 thousand euros relating mainly to a provision made by Bulgari Corporation of America Inc. for U.S.

customs duties;

— 553 thousand euros referring mostly to a provision made by the American branch of Bulgari Retatl USA

S.r.]. for sales tax;

— 514 thousand euros regarding the parent company, accrued in connection with tax assessments based on
adjustmenis made by the authorities to the 1988 and 1989 tax returns, for which separate appeals have been
lodged; in particelar, the disputes relating to 1988 and 1989 are pending before the Supreme Court (Corte

Suprema di Cassazione).

The overall decrease in this item is mostly due to the release of 874 thousand euros to income by Bulgari
Corporation of America Irc. and the release of a provision of 1,100 thousand euros made by certain subsidiaries
in connection with tax assessments for direct taxes for fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004, as the assumptions

which led to these assessments no longer hold.

“Other provisions” include an accrual of 1,052 thousand euros relating mainly to the risk of incurring costs
from contractual warranties for products sold. The balance regards accruals for litigation.
Charges to provisions are classified in the income statement as “selling, general and administrative expenses™.
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23. Other current and non-current liabilities

(thousands of euros)
/1272007 I 1272006
Current liabilities:
Due to personnel 19,662 18,088
Due 1o the public administration 10,385 7.942
Due o social security and pensions organisations 5,302 4,559
Due o shareholders 240 139
Other payables 2710 5,305
Total other payables 38,799 36,133
Deferred income 15 26
Accrued expenses for loan interest 810 204
Other accrued expenses 5411 5139
Total accrued expenses and deferred income 6,236 5369
‘Total other current liabilities 45,035 41,502
Non-current linbilities:
Other non-current liabilities 2216 554
Deposits 79 86
Total other non-current lisbilities 2295 640

Other current liabilities

The increase in the balance of “Due to the public administration™ over that at 31 December 2006 mainly arises
from VAT payables of 6,548 thousand euros.

“Other payables™ of 2,710 thousand euros include a balance of 1,618 thousand euros regarding fees payable by
Bulgari S.p.A. to the members of its Board of Directors.

The decrease in this item results from the settlement by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. of its debt
of 2,894 thousand euros with The Hour Glass Ltd. arising on the acquisition of Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta
Haute Horologerie S.A..

“QOther accrued expenses” relate mainly to lease instalments.

Other non-current liabilities

“Other non-current liabilities” of 2,216 thousand euros refer mostly to a debt of 1,813 thousand euros arising
in 2007 and payable by Bulgari Time (Switzerland) S.A. for the purchase of plant, machinery and know-how
for the manufacture of components in the watch sector.

24. Segment information

The Bulgari Group carries out the majority of its business through two distinct divisions, the IWA (Jewellery -
Watches - Accessories) Division and the Perfumes Division, This distinction is driven by product, markets and
differing distribution strategies.

The strategic direction of the Group and its administration and control are managed by a central corporate
structure which is for the most part to be found in the parent company Bulgari S.p.A..

The results of the Divisions also include royalty charges from the parent company for the use of the BVLGARI
trademark of which it is the owner. These charges are then eliminated in the line “Other activities and
eliminations”, as are all other transactions between the Divisions within the Group.

The line “Other activities and eliminations” additionally includes ail the unallocated revenues and costs managed
by the central corporate structure, the activities relating to the hotels, of little significance overall, and all the




advertising activities carmied out with the media, including production, from which in general the BVLGARI brand
is the overall beneficiary and from which consequently the whole of the Group’s business has an advantage.

Ricavl e risultati d} settore

{milfions of curcs)

Net revenues by sector 2007 1006 Chanpe % Operating profit by sector 007 006 Cbhanpge %
Jewellery 459.9 462.0 +i44%
Warches 2948 289.1 +2.0%
Accessories &4 58.9 -5.i%
Other 75 74 +15%
JWA Division 846.6 7874 +15% JWA Division 147.3 153.9 —4.3%
Perfume Division 221.9 1998 +11.0% Perfume Division 40.5 309 +31.1%
Other activities and eliminations ns 21.5 +H.7% QOther activities and eliminations 235 2.7y -15.8%
Total net revenues 1,0901.0 1,008.7 +H#.2% Total eperating profit 164.5 1571 1%

The operating profit of the JWA (Jewellery - Watches - Accessories) Division fell by 4.3% over 2006,
principally as a consequence of the increased royalties paid to the parent company for the use of the trademark
and the increase in costs for structural investments made to sustain the business. Depreciation and amortisation
for the period amounted to 31.2 million euros (26.9 million euros in 2006).

The operating profit of the Perfumes Division rose by 31.1% over 2006, confirming the success of the
investments made during the year and the decision to combine together certain particularly strategic markets.
Depreciztion and amortisation for the Perfumes Division for the year amounted to 3.4 million euros (3.2 million
euros in 2006).

Revenues by geographical area are presented in the Report of the Directors on the Group’s Performance to
which reference should be made.p

Reclassified consolidated balance sheet

(miltions of ceros)

JWA divksion Perfume divislon Not allucated and elim., Total Group

31272007 31/11/2006 322007 317122006 I 2007 I 122006 I 22007 311 212006
Net trode receivables 155.5 144.0 63.8 629 (22.1) (19.9; 2022 187.0
Other receivables 534 47.5 32 4.5 27 6.1) 59.3 459
Inventory 522.8 456.4 634 639 99 8.6 596.1 5289
Trude payables (176.3) (150.2) {36.4) (50.6) 447 41.1 (183.0) (159.7)
Other payables (51.0) (46.1) (10.8) (9.4} 39 4.3 (55.9) (51.2)
Total net working capital 504.4 4516 68.2 71.3 411 280 6137 5509
Property, plant and
equipments and intangible
assels 182.8 135.0 12.4 95 839 65.2 279.1 2097
Investments und other
financinl assels 4.2 42.6 40.2 42.6
Cather long-term assets
(liabilities) 2.2) (0.4) (0.8) 0.2) (10.6) (127 (13.6) (13.3)
INVESTED CAFPITAL 685.0 586.2 798 80.6 154.6 123.1 919.4 7899
Sharcholders’ equity 7785 743.0
Short-term indebtedness 839 10.6
Leng-term indebtedness 5710 36.3
Total indebtedness 140.9 46.9
COVER 9194 789.9




25. Significant related party transactions

Disclosures of related party transactions as required by the Consob Communication of 28 July 2006 and their
weight as a percentage of the total consolidated figures are provided below.

Financial and commercial operations
Transactions and balances of a financial and commercial nature between Bulgari S.p.A. and other Group
companies have been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(chninide of ettros)
Payables
Butmar] S.p.A. Subsidiaries Juoint ventores Totsd
Receivables
Bulgari S.p.A. - 136,332 2.517 138,849
Subsidiaries 82,402 941,575 4,753 1,028,730
Joint ventures 7 2483 - 2,491
Total 81,409 1,080,391 7,270 1,170,070
{thousanks of curva)
Costs
Butpari S.p.A. Subsidlaries Joint ventures ‘Totad
Revenues
Bulgari S.p.A. - 128,501 500 129,001
Subsidiaries 21,314 950,451 251 972,016
Toint ventures 15 11,258 - 11,273
Total 21319 1,090.210 751 1L,112,290
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The portion of transactions and balances of a financial and commercial nature not eliminated in the

consolidation process is as follows:

{thutsaihs of euros)

“Tota) consotidated Related parties %

Non-cament financial receivables 1,368 1,368 100

Trade receivables 202,186 57 0.03

(Other current assets 2224 3 0.14

Current financial assets 12804 1,877 14.66

Trade puyables 187,941 1,227 0.65

Other current liabilities 45035 2 -

(chousards of curik}

‘Total consolidated Related parties %

Gross sales 1,158,191 91 -

Royulties 14,003 90 .64

Other revenues 3,168 16 0,51

Operating costs, net 534,595 98 .02

Interest income 4,694 209 4.45

Fees for directors and starutory auditors
Jinznoar

Directors Statutory auditors

Bulgari S.p.A. 4,060 76

Other Group companies 682 98

Total 4,742 174
26. Guarantees, commijtments and risks

thousands of curos)

31/12/2007 3171272006

Commitments 137,626 302916

Guarantees pledged 14.022 15,759

Sureties received from third panties 43,260 40,238

Total guarnntees, commitments and risks 394,908 358,913
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“Commitments” refer to lease instalments for BVLGARI brand stores which are not yet due and which are
payable to the lessors over the residual term of the lease agreement.

The increase in the balance compared to 31 December 2006 is mostly due to the lease agreements for the new
stores which are discussed as pan of the comments on the increase in rentals included in the note describing
other general and administrative expenses, to which reference should be made.

“Guarantees pledged” refer to sureties given on behalf of and in the interest of Group companies in favour of
lessors as security for rental agreements.

“Sureties received from third parties” refer principally to sureties received from banks by Bulgari S.p.A. for
18,567 thousand euros in favour of the tax authorities against VAT tax credits for which reimbursement has been
requested by Bulgari S.p.A., and for 6,500 thousand euros in favour of the customs authorities for the temporary
importation of products. In addition, the item includes a guarantee of 2,670 thousand euros granted in favour
of Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.r.l. to cover 65% of the costs incurred for the purchase of furniture and
fittings, in general to be used in the Milan hotel.

The Group is party to civil and administrative proceedings and to tegal actions in connection with carrying out
its normal activities. On the basis of information currently available, and taking into account the provisions
recognised, the likelihood that these proceedings and actions will cause further losses which are significant in
respect of these consolidated financial statements is considered to be remote.,

27. Net financial position

Pursuant to Consob Communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006 and in accordance with the CESR
Recommendation of February 10, 2005 “Recommendations for the consistent application of the European
Commission's Regulation on Prospectuses”, the net financial position of the Group at 31 December 2007 is as

follows:
{thonesands of ewnos)
311212007 322006
Cash 1,661 2,332
Orher liguid funds 20,020 37,460
Total liquid funds 21,681 39,792
Current financial receivables 12,804 6,384
Current bank pavables {115,166) {52,656}
Current portion of ton-currenr debt 11,313) (1.399)
Orher current financial payvables {4,935) (2.717)
Current financial debt (118.439) (56,772)
Current financial debit, net (83,%49) {10,596)
Non-current financial receivables 1,368 929
Non-current bank pavables {35, 444) {34.156)
Other non-current payables (2.906) (3.031)
Non-current financial debt (58,350) (37,187)
Non-current financial debt, net (56,982) (36,258)
Net financial debt (140,931) (46,85.4)
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28. List of companies included in the consolidated financial statements

List of companies consolidated on a line-by-line basis

Company % % Currency Share  Hend office Business
holding holding capital
MAX00T IL122006

Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 100.00 10000 Euro 2.580.000 Rome Jewellery production

Bulgari ltalia S.p.A. 10000 100:00 Eure 12000000 Rome Retail sales

Bulgari International Corporatioa (BIC) N.V. 10000 100.00 eum 18.301.200  Amsterdam Sub-holding

Bulgari Carporation of America Inc, 100:00 100.00 Us$ 24350000  New York Sales to retailers and perfume
distribution

Bulgari §.A, 100.00 100.00 Swir 600,000  Geneva Retail sales

Bulgari Time (Switzerland) S.A. 10000 100.00 Swir 1,000,000 Neuchatel Procduction of waiches and accessories

Bulgari Jewels S.A. (") - 100.00 Swir = Neuchael Jewellery production

Bulgari France S.A.S. 10000 100.00 Euro 225000 Pars Retail sales

Bulgari Montecarlo S.A.M. 100.00 100.00 Earmo 800,000  Montecarlo Retail sales

Bulgar {Deutschland) GmbH £00.00 100.00 Euro 2,556,459 Munich Retail sales

Bulgari Japan Lid, 80:00 80.00 Yen 400,000,000  Tokyo Retail sutes

Bulgari Espana 5.A. Unipersonal 100.00 100.00 Euro 5418144 Mudrid Retail sales

Bulgari Parfums §.A. 100.00 100.00 Swir 1,000,000 Newchatel Perfume production

Bulgari Purfums lealia 5.p.A. 10000 100.00 Euro 1,020,000  Rome Perfume distribution

Bulgari Portugal Acesserios de Luxo Lda. 100,00 100.00 Euro 92373  Madin Sub-holding

Bulgari South Asian Operations Pte Lid. 100.00 100,00 Sg% 6,000,000  Singaporc Retail sales

Bulgari (UK) Ltd. 100.00 100,00 Lgs 28,100,000 London Retail sales

Bulgari Belgium S.A, 10000 100.00 Euro 1,000,000 Bruxelles Retzil sales

Bulgari Australia Pty. Lid, 10000 100.00 Auod 8,200,000  Sydney Retail sales

Bulgari (Malaysia) 5dn Bhd 100.00 100.00 Rm 3334000  Kuala Lumpur Retail sales

Bulgari Globa) Operations S.A. 100.00 100,00 Swkr 6000000  Neuchate! Logistical support

Butgari Operational Services A.p.S. () 100.00 100.00 DKK 500000 Copenhagen Services

Daniel Roth et Gérald Genta Haute 100.00 100.00 SwFr T.00000  Geneva Production of watches

Horlogerie S.A.

Bulgani Asia Pacific 1.1d. 100.00 100.00 HKS$ 1,000,000  Hong Kong Retail sales

Bulgad (Taiwan) Lid. 100.00 100.00 Twd 310,000,000  Taipei Retail sales

Bulgari Korea Lid. 100.00 S1.00 Kwon 3500000000  Seou Retail sales

Bulgari Cotlection Internationale §.A, 100.00 100.00 Swir 3000000  Newchated Production of high jewellery

Balgari (Luxembourg) $.A. () - 100.00 Euro - Luxembourg Holding company for the Bvigari
Hotels und Resorts project

Balgari Saimt Banth $.2.5, 100.00 100.00 Eurc 700000 Suaint Barthelemy Retail sales *

Bulgari Retail USA S.tl. 10000 100.00 Euro 50,000 Rome Retail sales and wholesale

Crova SpA, H0000 10000 Euro 2700000  Valepza tAlessandrin) Jewellery production

Bulgari Parfums Deutschland Grbh 10000 100,00 Euro 25000 Wiesbaden Perfime distribation

Prestige d"Or 5.A. 51.00 51.00 Swir 100,000  Saignelégier Production of watches acoessories

Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 100.00 100.00 Euro 50,000 Bagno a Ripoli (Fi)  Production of leather accessories

Bulgari Reinsurance Compuny Lid. 10000 100.00 Eurg 635000 Dublin Insurance company

Bulgari Ausiria GmbH 100.00 100.00 Euro 12506 Yienna Retail sales

Bulgari Holdings (Thailand) LAd. (*} 100,00 100,00 Bat i00,000  Bangkok Sub-holding

Bulgari (Thailand) Ltd. 59.50 99.50 Bat 4,000,000  Bangkok Retail sales

Bulgari Commercial (Shangai) Co. Lud. 100.00 100.00 Uss 17,000,000 Shanghai Retzil sales

Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. 100.00 100,00 Euro 18,000  Amsterdam Sub-holding

Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japun Ed. 100.00 100.00 Yen 487,500,000  Tokyo Cornprny involved in the Bvlgari
Hotels and Resorts project

Bulgari Purfums [beria 5.1 100.00 - Euro 10,000  Barcelona Perfume distribution

Bulgari Panama Inc. 100.00 - Us$ 10000 Panama City Retail sakes

Moaraco 5.A. 100.00 - Swkr 200,000  Geneva Sub-holding

H. Finger AG 100.00 - SwEr 400000  Lengnau dei Biel Production of watches accessories

(Canton of Berna)
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List of companies consolidated on a proportionate basis

Company % % Currency Share  Head office Businéss
holding holding capital
JLI22007 304122006

LB Diamonds & Jewelry Sarl. 50.00 50.00 Swir 1.250,000  Neuchatel Jewellery production

Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.Y. (%) 65.00 6500 Eure 18000 Amstendam Company in joint venture with
the Marriou Group

Bulgari Hotels and Resorts

Milano S.rl. (% 65.00 65.00 Euro 100,000 Rome Company involved in the Bvlgari
Hotels and Resorts project

Cadrans Design S.A. 50.00 30,00 Swir 100,000  La Chaux de Fonds  Production of watches

{1) Company merges in Balgari Global Operations 5.A..

(2) Company being wound up.

{3 Company wound up in 2007,

{4) Company fully consolidated due to the cwoership of |00 of class A shares equal to 49,000 Bat.
{5) Company owned through Bulgari S.p.A..

{6) Company owned indirectly through Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. al 61.75% {95% * 65%. holding of Bulgari Hutels & Resorts B.Y. in Bulgar Hotels and Resorts
Milano S.r.1.) and directly through Bulgari S.p.A. as m 3.25%.

List of companies entering the consolidation during the year ended 31 December 2007
compared with the year ended 31 December 2006

Companies entering the consolidation Head office Business

Bulgari Parfums lberia S.L. Barcellona Perfume distribution

Bulgari Panama Inc. Panama Ciry Retail sales

Monraco S.A, Geneva Sub-holding

H. Finger AG Lengnau dei Biel (Canton of Berna) Production of watches accessories

Companies leaving the lidation Head office Husiness

Opera Management S.A. Luxembourg Compary in joint venture with the
Marriott Group

Opera Sgr S.p.A. Milan Company involved in the Bvlgari
Hotels and Resorts project

Bulgari Jewels S.A, Neuchatel Jewellery production

Bulgar {Luxembourg) 5.A. () Luxembourg Holding company for the Bvigari

Hotels and Resorts project

{3) ewere
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29. Information on companies consolidated using the proportionate method

The total amounts of the current assets and liabilities, non-current assets and liabilities, and revenues and costs
of companies consolidated using the proportionate method are set out in the following table.

(millicns of ezros) {*)

“% held local currency LB Diamonds & Cadrans Design Bulgari Hotels & Bulgarl Hotebs &
Jewetty Sa.rl. S.A. Resorts B.Y.  Hesorts Milano Sl

HN% 50% 5% &S%

chf chf curos eures

Current assets 8.6 38 - 56
Non-cumrent assets - 43 71 27
Current liabilities 124 4.6 0.2 4.4
Non-current linhilities - 2.6 24 32
Revenues 20.5 1.6 - 19.8
Costs 9.0 6.6 0.2 19.4

(*} Amounts are stated ot 100%.

30. Significant non-recurring transactions

The Group has not carried out any significant non-recurring transactions during the year ended 31 December
2007 as they are defined by Consob in its Communication of 28 July 2006.

31. Abnormal and unusual transactions

The Group has not carried out any zbnormal or unusual transactions in the year ended 31 December 2007 as
they are defined by Consob in its Communication of 28 July 2006.

32. Information pursuant to article 149-duodecies of the Consob Regulations for Issuers

The following table, which has been prepared pursuant to article 149-duodecies of the Consob Regulations for
Issuers, sets out the fees relating to 2007 for auditing services and services other than audit rendered by the
auditing company and by members of its network.

(shwwusands. of euros)

Type of service Provided by Provided to Fees 2007
Audit KPMG S.p.A. Bulgar S.p.A. 122
KPMG S.p.A. Subsidiaries 204

KPMG network Subsidiaries 865

Altestation services KPMG network Subsidiaries 21
Tax advisory services KPMG S.p.A. Bulgan 5.p.A. 4
KPMG network Subsidiaries 198

Other services KPMG S.p.A. Bulgari S.p.A. () 1
KPMG network Subsidiaries (%) 23

{1) Kimberley Provess compliane,
{2) Due diligence.

Bulgarni S.p.A.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Paolo Bulgari
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Bulgari S.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Representation on the consolidated financial statements pursuant to article 8-ter of Consob
Regulation no, 11971 of 14 May 1999 as subsequently amended and supplemented

1. The undersigned Fruncesco Trapani. in his capacity as managing director, and Alberto Nathansohn, in his
capacity as manager-in-charge of the preparation of the accounting records of Bulgari S.p.A., represent,
taking also into account the requirements of article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree no.
58 of 24 February 1998, that during the year the administrative and accounting procedures in place to
prepare the consolidated financial statements:

*  were adequate in relation to the company’s characteristics and
= were effectively applied.

2. presentation is further given that the consolidated financial statements:
a. a.correspond to the accounting books and entries;

b. have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the
European Union and the provisions issued to implement Legislative Decree no, 38/2005 and that to the
best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned are suitable for providing a true and fair view of the
financial position and results of operations of the set of companies included in the consolidation.

Date: 11 March 2008

Signed: Managing Director Signed: Manager-in-charge of Preparing
the Corporate Accounting Records
(Francesco Trapani) (Alberto Nathansohn)
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Bulgari S.p.A. and Subsidiaries

Report of the Auditors in accordance with article 156
of legislative decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998
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Relazione della societa di revisione ai sensi dell’art. 156 del D.Lgs. 2
febbraio 1998, n. 58

Agli Azionisti della
Bulgari S.p.A.

1 Abbiamo svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato, cosyfuito dallo stato
patrimoniale, dal como cconemico, dal prospetto dei movimenti g€) patrimonio netto, dal
rendiconto finanziario ¢ dalle refative note al bilancio consolidglo, del Gruppo Bulgari
chiuso al 31 dicembre 2007, La responsabilitd delia redaziongfdel bilancio compete agli
amministratori della Bulgari 8.p.A.. II' nostra la responsabglita del piudizio professtonale
espresso sud bilangio ¢ basato sulla revisione contabile,

2 11 nostro czame ¢ stato condotto seconde i principi gif criteri per l2 revisione contabile
raccomandati datla Consob. In conformitd ai pregfii principi ¢ criterd, la revisione & stata
pianificata ¢ svolta al fine di acquisire ogni clgfento necessario per accentare se il
bilancio consalidnto sia viziato da errori siggfficativi ¢ se risulti, nel sua complesso,
attendibile, 11 procedimento di revisione cgffiprende 1"esame, sulla base di verifiche a
campione, degli elementi probativi a sugfforto dei saldi ¢ delle informazioni contenuti nel
bilancio, nonché la valutazione dell’aygfguatezza ¢ della corrcticzza dei criteri contabili
utilizzali ¢ della ragioncvolezea delf stime effettuate dagli amministratori. Riteniamo che
il lavoro svolto fomisca una ragigfievole base per I'espressione del nostro giudizio
professionale,

Per il giudizio relativo al Yfancio consolidato dell'esercizio precedente, i cui dati sono
presentati ai fini cot ivi, si [ riferimento olla relazione da noi emessa in data
6 aprile 2007.

k] A nostro giudizigfil bilancio consolidato de! Gruppo Bulgari a! 31 dicembre 2007 &
conforme ngli Jftemational Financial Reponting Standards adottati dall’Unienc Furopea,
nonché ai vedimenti emanati in attuazione dell*an. 9 del D.Lgs. n. 38 dcl 28 fcbbraio

rtanto ¢ redatto con chiartzza c rappresenta tn modo veniticro ¢ coreito fa
patrimoniale ¢ finanziaria, il risultato cconomico, le variszioni de patrimonio

i Mussi di cassa del Gruppo Bulgari per "esercizio chiuso a tzlc data.
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Report of the Directors on the Operations
of the Parent Company Bulgari S.p.A.
at 31 December 2007
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Report of the Directors on Operations
at 31 December 2007

Introduction

The Board of Directors of Bulgari S.p.A. has prepared this report on operations for 2007 pursuant to the
requirements of article 2428 of the Italian civil code.

The financial statements at 31 December 2007 have been audited by KPMG S.p.A.. The financial statements
at 31 December 2006 are presented for comparative purposes.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
TAS/FRS adopted by the European Commiission (ulso referred to overall in the following as IFRS).

Review of the income statement

The year ended 31 December 2007 closed with net income of 51.4 million euros compared to 79.9 million euros
in 2006. This result incluzdes dividends from subsidiaries of 52.8 million evros (91.9 million euros in 2006); the
lower level of dividends led to the decrease in net income.

There was an operating profit of 6 million euros in 2007, showing a considerable improvement over the figure
of 3 million evros for 2006.

Tuble | — BULOARIS.pA. - bicuene Stasement {millines of extos)
2007 2006 Difference %
NET REVENUES 93.8 811 12.7 15.7
Personnel costs 24 250 4.4 17.6%
OCther income and expense 286 220 6.6 30.0%
Advertising and promotion expenses 214 244 3.0 112.3%)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 8.4 6.7 1.7 254%
Total operating costs 87.8 78.1 9.7 12.4%
Operating profit 6.0 3.0 A0 100.0%
Other non-operating income (expense) 522 w7 (40.5) (43.7%)
Profit before taxation 58.2 95.7 (37.5) (392%)
Current and deferred taxation 6.3 158 (9.00 (57.0%)
NET INCOME 514 79.9 (28.5) (35.7%)

Qperating revenues

Operating revenues, which consist mainly of royalties for the use of the BVLGARI trademark, rose by 16%
over 2006 and totalled 93.8 million euros.

Revenues for royalties and the provision of services amounted in total to 86 million euros. More specifically
royalties, which are received from Group companies and third parties and represent approximately 88% of
the total, rose by approximately 17% over 2006, amounting to 82.2 million euros (70.4 million euros in
2006).
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An analysis of revenues for royalties and the provision of services is set out by geographical area in table 2

below.
Tahke? - BULGARI Sp.A. - Revenucs by geographical arca imiitions of curok}
(Geographical nrea 2007 2006

Absolute value % Absolute valoe %
Taly 138 16% 12.2 17%
Other EU countries 37 4% 32 4%
Rest of Europe 509 59% 41.2 56%
America 33 4% 2.6 A%
Japan 69 8% 8.0 1%
Far Easy 49 0% 37 5%
Middle East and other 25 3% 25 3%
TOTAL NET REVENUES 846.0 100% 734 100%

Operating costs

Operating costs totalled 87.8 million euros compared with 78 million euros in 2006, an increase of 12%; of
these there was a particular rise in personnel costs, which went up by 18% to 29.4 million euros. The average
number of employees increased from 273 in 2006 to 309 in 2007 (+13%); at 31 December 2007 the company
had 331 employees compared with 275 at 31 December 2006,

Service costs, which amounted to 25.5 million euros (up 25% over 2006), consist mainly of the costs incurred
for ICT, technical, organisational, fiscal and legal consultancy, costs for personnel services, travelling expenses
for staff and members of the Board of Directors and the compensation paid to members of corporate bodies.
Advertising and promotion costs of 21.4 million euros (24.4 million euros in 2006) decreased as a result of the
lower subsidies given to certain selling companies as part of cost sharing agreements (such as for rental costs
for the stores); these are governed by specific contracts and relate to the flagship stores, which are located in
commercial areas of particular interest or prestige.

Depreciation and amortisation charges for the year amounted to 8.1 million euros, an increase of 29% over
2006. These relate principally to a charge of 6.4 million euros for the amortisation of applications software,
with the depreciation of tangible assets, for which the main items is the depreciation of electronic equipment
and the cost of restructuring the company’s offices, making up the difference.

Provisions of 0.3 million euros were made, relating to litigation with employees.

Dividends and financial income

Dividends for the year amounted to 52.8 million euros (91.9 million euros in 2006), a figure considerably lower
than that of the previous vear as the result of the decrease in the amount received from Bulgari International
Corporation (BIC) N.V.. Details are as follows:

— Bulgan International Corporation (BIC) N.V. 49.1 million euros;
— Crova S.p.A. 2.7 million euros;
— Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. | million euros.

Current and deferred taxation

A charge of 1.6 million euros was made for current taxes (1.4 million euros in 2006), all of which refers to
IRAP tax, 0.2 million euros for deferred taxes (5.2 million euros in 2006) and 3 million euros for the effect of
the national tax consolidation (0.5 million euros in 2007).
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Further details of this item may be found in the note to the income statement to which reference should be
made. It is recalled in this respect that the company elected to take part in the “National Consolidation™ tax
scheme for the three year period from 2007 to 2009, together with its subsidiaries Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A.,
Bulgari Ialia S.p.A., Bulgari Parfums [talia S.p.A., Bulgari Retail USA S.r.l, Crova S.p.A and Bulgari
Accessori S.r.l..

Financial situation

The parent company had net debt of 66.1 million euros at 31 December 2007 (net funds of 2.5 million euros at
31 December 2006). This considerable decrease is due for the most part to the outflows occurring on the
payment of dividends in 2007 (86.9 million euros) and on making investments, in particular of a financial
nature, for a total of 36.2 million euros, which were only partially offset by receipts of dividends in the year
(52.8 million euros).

The issue of 719,500 new shares in connection with the exercising of stock options, as envisaged in the stock
option plans reserved for certain categories of employees, brought in funds of a total of approximately 5 million
£uros.

Related party current financial assets refer to the balance on the intercompany account, which forms part of the
centralised management of bank current accounts held with certain Italian subsidiaries and with Bulgari Global
Operations S.A..

Related party non-current financial assets represent receivables due from Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.l.
and Bulgan Hotels & Resorts B.V..

Related party current financial payables relate mainly to loans received from Bulgari International Corporation
(BIC) N.V. for 18.5 million euros and by Bulgari Global Operations S.A for 32.4 million euros.

Table 3 — BULGARLS p-A. — Net financial position (thousands of runos)
Jznoe? 3171272006
Liquidity 4719 3,627
Current financial receivables from third parties 3.691 -
Current financial receivables from related parties 71,562 65,394
Current financial receivables 75,253 65,394
Current {inancial payables to third parties (81,298) {193}
Current bank payables (8.218) (1.898)
Current financiat payables to related parties {54,680) (66.645)
Current financial debt {144,196} (68,736)
NET CURRENT FINANCIAL DEBT {68,464) 285
Non-current finoncial receivables 2,358 2208

Non-current bank payables - -
Other non-current payables - -
Non-current financial debt - -
Net non-current financial debt 2,355 2,208
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (66,109) 2493
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Investments

Investments of 15.7 million euros were made in 2007 and may be anulysed as follows:

- investments of 14.3 million euros in intangible assets, regarding mainly applications software and the
related development and implementation costs;

- investments of 1.4 million euros in property, plant and equipment, consisting mostly of the purchase of
computers for processing, managing and storing data,

Equity investments

Investments of 21 million euros were made in non-current financial assets during the year, which
principally regard subscriptions and capital payments of 10 million euros relating to Bulgari Retail USA
S.r.l., 7 million euros relating to Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai) Ltd. and 3 million euros relating to
Bulgari Accesson S.r.l.. These transactions were carried out to meet the funding needs and growth of these
companies. Finally, an investment of 65% in the capital of Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. was purchased
from Bulgari Luxembourg S.A. at a price of 0.8 million euros. Bulgari Luxembourg S.A. was wound up at
the end of 2007.

Research and development activities

Expenses amounting in total to 1.8 million euros were spent during the year on the research and the
development of prototypes, both directly and through Crova S.p.A. and Bulgari Accessort S.r.l., all of which
was recognised directly in income. These expenses mostly related to research and development activities
regarding new jewellery products and new BVL.GARI brand leather goods.

Infermation on management and co-ordination activities and related party transactions
Bulgari S.p.A., the parent company, has its registered office in Rome and has a share capital of 21 million euros.
The company is the owner of the BVLGARI trademark and its main activities are as follows:

* purchasing equity stakes and granting loans to Group companies;
= commercial exploitation linked to the use of the BVLGARI name and trademark;
« technical, financial and administrative coordination of the companies in which investments are held;

« invention, design and creation of articles of jewellery, gold jewellery, watches, perfumes, cosmetics, silk and
leather accessories and porcelain, silver and crystal items.

In 2007 Bulgari S.p.A. had business relations governed by specific agreements relating to the licensing of
the BVLGARI trademark with various subsidiaries that manufacture and distribute BVL.GARI brand
products.

In addition, the parent company also had business relations with the various manufacturing and distribution
substdiaries, also governed by specific agreements, regarding the provision of technical, administrative,
commercial, financial and ICT services.

Further, the parent company also played a financial role with Group companies by providing centralised
treasury management services for which compensation was paid at market rates.
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The transactions referred to above were carried out under market conditions, equivalent to those that would
have been applied between independent parties, and were carried out in the interests of the subsidiaries.

As provided in amendments made to the licencing agreements for the BVLGARI trademark signed with the
Group’s retail companies, Bulgari S.p.A. contributes to the advertising and promotion expenses incurred by
selling companies up to a contractually agreed ceiling.

Additional agreements were set up in 2007 with Bulgari Retail U.S.A. S.r.l,, Bulgan UK Ltd., Bulgari France
S.A. and Bulgari (Deutschland) GmbH in connection with the so-called “Flagship Stores”, which are stores of
a particular size that are located in areas considered to be of specific interest, under which Bulgari S.p.A.
undertakes to pay a part of their costs. In particular if certain specific conditions are met the company subsidises
the part of the rental costs and depreciation and amortisation charges incurred by its investees that exceeds the
amount that represents the average costs for the country concerned, considered as a percentage of revenues; a
time limit and a ceiling are imposed in this case.

Transactions which took place with directly and indirectly held subsidiaries in 2007 and the amounts involved
are set out in the following tables:

Receivables e payables trom wxding. §i ial and miscell jones 21 31 D her 2007 {thousands of ewros)
Nature Recelvables Payables
Royalties for trudemark licensing 37.865 -
Services 9,667 12,218
Goods and products not intended for sale - 1,632
Financial 73,716 55710
Group VAT settlement 10,735 1.190
Tax consolidation 5.408 B,627
Other 103 3.037
Total 136,454 82,414
Income amd expense from trafing, financial amd miscell tramsactions for the year ended 31 December 2007 (Easrnds of curos)
Nature Income Expense
Royalties for trademark licensing 68,492 -
Information services 5782 -
Technical and administrative services 1,258 -
Legal fiscal and design services 399 -
[nterest, commissions and financial income/expense 3921 1,716
Research und development/prototypes and models - 1.551
Subletting of premises 451 11
Orher income/expense 2.499 922
Income/expense from tax consolidation 2,788 5.829
Dividends 52,832 -
Advertising subsidies - 10,750
Total 138,422 20,779
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There were no additional transactions with related parties as the term is defined in Consob Communication no.
2064231 of 30 September 2002, other than those described.

At 31 December 2007 the company had 13 direct holdings in companies (of which 5 have their registered
offices outside Italy} and 37 indirect holdings, all with their registered offices outside Italy.

Directly held subsidiaries

Bulgari Gioielli 5.p.A.
based in Rome, is wholly owned and has a share capital of 2.6 million euros. Its business is the production and
sale of jewellery.

Bulgari ltalia S.p.A.

based in Rome, is wholly owned and has a share capital of 12.0 million euros.

Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive stores in
Rome, Milan, Florence, Venice, Naples, Bologna, Padua, Verona, Cortina, Serravalle Scrivia, Capri and Porto
Cervo.

Bulgan Parfums [talia S.p.A.
based in Rome, is wholly owned and has a share capital of 1.0 million euros. Its business is the distribution and
marketing of BYLGARI perfumes and cosmetic products in Italy.

Bulgan Retail U.S.A. S.r.l.

based in Rome, is wholly owned and has a quota capital of 50 thousand euros. The company is engaged in the
management of Bulgani’s exclusive retail stores in the United States carried out through its New York branch
by renting a business from Bulgari Corporation of America Inc..

Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

based in Beijing, is wholly owned and has subscribed and fully paid up capital of US$ 5,000,000. It carries out
its retail sales of jewellery, waltches, perfumes and accesseries through its exclusive shops in the People’s
Republic of China.

Crova S.p.A.
based in Valenza (Alessandria), is wholly owned and has a share capital of 2.7 million euros. Its business is the
production and sale of jewellery products.

Bulgari Accessori S.r.l.
based in Florence, is wholly owned and has a quota capital of 50 thousand euros. Its business is the production
and sale of leather articles.

Bulgari Portugal Acessortos de Luxo Lda
based in Funchal (Madeira), is wholly owned and has a share capital of 53 thousand euros. The company is
responsible for promoting the BVLGARI brand name in the accessories sector.

Bulgan International Corporation (BIC) N.V.

based in Amsterdam, is a wholly owned sub-holding company with a share capitat of 18.3 million euros.

The company holds equity interests in Bulgari Global Operations S.A, Bulgari Time (Switzerland) S.A,,
Bulgari Parfums S.A., Daniel Roth et Gérard Genta Haute Horlogerie S.A., LB Diamonds& Jewelry S.ar).,




Prestige d’Or S.A., Cadrans Design 5.A., Monraco S.A., H. Finger AG, Bulgari Japan Ltd., Bulgari Australia
Pty Ltd., Bulgan (Malaysia) Sdn,., Bulgari Korea Ltd., Bulgari South Asian Operations Pte Ltd., Bulgari (Hong
Kong) Ltd., Bulgari {Taiwan) Ltd., Bulgari Holding (Thailand} Ltd., Bulgari Thailand Ltd., Bulgari Corporation
of America Inc., Bulgari Saint Barth S.a.s., Bulgan Panama Inc., Opera Management S.A., Opera Participations
S.c.A., Opera Participations 2 S.c.A., Bulgan Operational Services ApS, Bulgan Reinsurance Company Ltd.
and Buigari Hotels and Resorts Japan Ltd..

Bulgari Holding Europe B.V.

based in Amsterdam, is & wholly owned sub-holding company with a share capital of 18 thousand euros.

The company holds equity interests in Bulgari S.A., Bulgari France S.a.s,, Bulgari (Deutschland) GmbH,
Bulgari (Austria) GmbH, Bulgari Belgium S.A., Bulgari UK Ltd. and Bulgari Espana S.A..

Bulgan Hotels & Resorts B.V.

based in Amsterdam, is a sub-holding held as to 65%. It has a share capital of 18 thousand euros and holds 95%
of the quota capital of Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.l.. Its business is the management of companies
operating in the hotel sector. The remaining 35% of its share capital is held by the Marriott Group.

Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.l.

based in Rome, is 3.25% owned and has a quota capital of 100 thousand euros. The company is also owned
indirectly by Bulgan Hotels & Resorts B.V., which holds a 95% stake; the remaining 1.75% is held by Luxury
Hotels International B.V., a Marriott Group company. Its business is the management of exclusive BVLGARI
brand hotels, resorts and residences in Italy.

Opera SGR S.p.A.
based in Milan, is 12.5% owned and has a share capital of 1.1 million euros. Its business is the provision of
professional collective fund management services through the promotion and management of mutual
investment funds.

Indirectly held subsidiaries

Bulgari Global Operations S.A.

based in Neuchatel, is wholly owned by Bulgan Intemational Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 1 million Swiss francs. [ts business is the development, production, promation and marketing of BVLGARI
products throughout the world. The company wholly owns Bulgari Cellection Internationale S.A..

Bulgari Collection Internationale S.A.
based in Neuchatel, is wholly owned by Bulgari Global Operations S.A. and has a share capital of 3 million
Swiss francs. The company is involved in the production of exclusive articles of high jewellery.

Bulgari Time (Switzerland) 5. A.
based in Neuchatel, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of | miflion Swiss francs. The company is involved in the production of watches and accessories.

Bulgari Parfums S.A.
based in Neuchatel, is whelly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 1 million Swiss francs. Its business is the production, distribution and marketing of BYLGARI perfumes
throughout the world,




Duaniel Roth et Gérald Genta Haute Horlogerie S.A.

based in Geneva, is wholly owned by Bulgari Intemational Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
7.1 million Swiss francs. Its business is the production and distribution of watches under the names Daniel Roth
and Gérald Genta,

LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.a.r.l.

based in Neuchatel, is 50% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
1,250 thousand Swiss francs. The company was established in August 2004 as a joint venture with the Leviev
Group. The remaining 50% of capital is owned by LLD DIAMONDS Ltd.. Its business is the production and
marketing of diamonds to Bulgari Group companies.

Prestige d'Or S.A.

based in Saignelégier in Switzerland, is 51% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has
a share capital of 100 thousand Swiss francs. Its business is the production of precious metal and steel straps
for high range watches.

Cadrans Design S.A.

based in La-Chaux-de-Fonds in Switzerland, is 50% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.
and has a share capital of 100 thousand Swiss francs. Its business is the production of mechunisms and
components for watches.

Monraco S.A.
based in Geneva, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
200 thousand Swiss francs. It is a holding company and owner of 100% of the share capital of H. Finger AG.

H. Finger AG
based in Lengnau bei Biel in Switzerland, it is wholly owned by Monraco S.A. and has a share capital of 400
thousand Swiss francs. Its business is the production of components for watches.

Bulgari 5.A.

based in Geneva, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 600 thousand
Swiss francs. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive
stores in Geneva, Zurich and St. Moritz.

Bulgari France S.A.

based in Paris, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 225 thousand euros.
Its business is the retail sate of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessones through its exclusive stores in Paris
and Cannes. The company holds a 100% stake in Bulgari Montecarlo S.A.M..

Bulgan Montecarlo S.AM.

based in Monaco (Montecarlo), is wholly owned by Bulgari France S.A. and has a share capital of 800 thousand
euros. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive store
in Montecarlo.

Bulgari Belgium S.A.

based in Brussels, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 1 million euros.
Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive store in
Brussels.




Bulgari (Deutschland) GmbH

based in Munich, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 2.6 million euros.
Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive stores in
Munich, Berlin, Diisseldorf, Frankfurt, Cologne, Hamburg and Syit. The company holds a 100% stake in
Bulgari Parfurns Deutschland GembH.

Bulgari Parfums Deutschland GmbH
based in Wiesbaden, is wholly owned by Bulgari (Deutschland) GmbH and has a share capital of 25 thousand
euros. [ts business is the distribution and marketing of BYVLGARI brand perfumes in Germany and Europe.

Bulgari (Austria) GmbH

based in Vienna, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V, and has a share capital of 35 thousand euros.
Its business is the retail sale of jeweilery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive store in
Vienna.

Bulgari Espana S.A. Unipersonal

based in Madrid, is whotly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 5.4 million euros.
Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive stores in
Madrid, Barcelona, Seville, Marbella and Valencia.

Bulgan (UK) Ltd.
based in London, is wholly owned by Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. and has a share capital of 28.1 million
pounds. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive
stores in London.

Bulgan Japan Ltd.

based in Tokyo, is 80% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V and has a share capital of 400
million yen. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, waitches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive
stores in Tokye, Osaka, Yokohama, Chiba, Fokuoka, Gotemba, Hiroshima, Kyioto, Kobe, Matsuyama,
Nagoya, Sapporo, Sendai and Okayama. The remaining 20% of its share capital is held by the AOI and Itochu
Groups.

Bulgari Australia Pty Ltd.

based in Sydney, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
8.2 million Australian dollars. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive stores in Sydney and Melbourne.

Butgari (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

based in Kuala Lumpur, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share
capital of 3.3 Malaysian ringitt. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive store in Kuala Lumpur.

Bulgari Korea Lid

based in Seoul, is 51% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of 4,500
million Korean won. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its
exclusive stores in Seoul and Daegu. The remaining 49% of capital is owned by the Itochu Group. Bulgari
Intemmational Corporation {BIC) N.V. acquired the remaining 49% of the company on 18 January 2007, taking
its holding to 100%.




Bulgari South Asian Cperations Pte Lid.

based in Singapore, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 1 million Singapore dollars. Iis business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive stores in Singapore and distribution to local concessionaires.

Bulgari Asia Pacific Ltd.

based in Hong Kong, is wholly owned by Bulgani International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 1 million Hong Kong dollars. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive stores in Hong Kong and its branch in Macao.

Bulgari (Taiwan) Lid.

based in Taipei, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
260 million Taiwan dollars. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive stores in Taipei, Kaohsiung, Taichung and Newport Beach.

Bulgan Holding (Thailand) Ltd.
based in Bangkok, is a sub-holding company wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.
and has a share capital of Bath 100,000. The company has a shareholding in Bulgart (Thailand) Lid..

Bulgarni Thailand Led,

based in Bangkok, is 99.5% owned by Bulgari Holding (Thailand) Ltd. and has a share capital of Bath
4,000,000 Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through its exclusive
store in Bangkok.

Butgari Corporation of America Inc.

based in New York, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 24.3 million US dollars. Its business is retail sales through its exclusive American stores and the distribution
in the United States und Latin America of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through third party
distributors who are BVLGARI trademark concessionaires. The retail business is currently rented to Bulgan
Retail U.S.A. SrL.

Bulgari Saint Barth §.a.S.

based in Saint Bathelemy, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share
capital of 700 thousand euros. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories
through its exclusive store in Saint Barth.

Bulgari Panama Inc.

based in Panama City, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 10 thousand US dollars. Its business is the retail sale of jewellery, watches, perfumes and accessories through
its exclusive store in Panama City.

Opera Management S.A.

based in Luxembourg, is §1.45% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share
capital of 120 thousand euros. The company holds 100% of the class B1 shares of Opera Participations S.c.A
and of Opera Participations 2 S.c.A..

Opera Participations S.c.A.
based in Luxembourg, is 11.75% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. as to class A.1 shares
and 100% by Opera Munagement S.A. as to class B.1 shares, and has a share capital of 1.9 mitlion euros. The




company's main activity is to invest in companies producing “Made in [taly” goods and services that are typical
of the Italian lifestyle.

Opera Participations 2 S.c.A.
based in Luxembourg, is 22.19% owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. as to class A.| shares
and 100% by Opera Management S.A. as to class B shares, and has a share capital of 31 thousand euros. The
company’s main activity will be to invest in companies producing “Made in [taly” goods and services that are
typical of the Ttalian lifestyle.

Bulgari Operational Services A.p.S.

based in Copenhagen, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital
of 500 thousand Danish Krone. Its corporate purpose is the purchase and rental of aircraft and the provision of
ancillary services related 1o that activity. As noted earlier, this company is in liquidation,

Bulgari Reinsurance Company Ltd.

based in Dublin, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
6335 thousand euros. [t operates in the field of insurance and its business in particular is to reinsure for the Group
on the market the risk of the theft of goods.

Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japan Lid.

based in Tokyo, is wholly owned by Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. and has a share capital of
37,500,000 yen.

Its business is managing exclusive BYLGARI brand restaurants in Japan.

Investments in Bulgari S.p.A. and its subsidiaries held by Directors

In compliance with article 79 of Consob Resolution no. 11971/99 and subsequent supplements the following
table sets out the investments held by directors in Bulgari S.p.A. and its subsidiaries, as these are stated in the
shareholders’ register and on the basis of communications and other information received. None of the

members of the Board of Statutory Auditors holds investments in Bulgari S.p.A. or its subsidiaries.

tevestments of divectors in Bulgan 5 p.A. and s subsidiznics

Flrst and tast name Company Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares
Beld at the end of purchased sold hekd at the end of
the previous year the current year

Paolo Bulguri Bulgari S.p.A. 70,540,000 ('} - - 70,540,000 ('

Nicola Bulgari Bulgar S.p.A. 70,569,000 ('} - - 70,569,000 (')

Francesco Trupani Bulgari 5.p.A. 13.206,348 (0 200,000 200,000 13,206,348 (3

{1) Of which 70,490,000 are held through Uniome Fiduciagia S.p.A, and form pant of the voting block agreement,
{2} Held throagh Unione Fiduciara S.p.A, und fonming pan of the voiing block agreement.

Information refating to stock option plans

The information required pursuant to Consob Recommendation no. 11508 of 15 February 2000 about stock
option plans that regard particular categories of employees and the Managing Director is provided in the
respective part of the notes, to which reference should be made.




]

Powers granted to the Chairman and to the Managing Director

Powers of ordinary and extraordinary adrministration were granted to the Chairman and to the Managing
Director by the Board of Directors of Bulgari S.p.A. on 29 April 2004 which may be exercised with separate
and free signature in any sector of the Company’s activities.

The following powers remain exclusively with the Board of Directors:

- for commitments exceeding 30 million euros for each individual operation the power to purchase and sell
ordinary equity investments, to establish new companies or associations in Italy and abroad and 10 perform
operations on the capital of new companies or of those already in existence;

~ where the commitment exceeds 30 million euros for each individual operation the power to enter loan
transactions and to issue sureties;

~ the power to purchase goods and services where the commitment exceeds 2 million euros for each
individual transaction;

— the power to buy or sell real estate, other than transactions regarding companies that are directly or indirectly
subsidiaries;

— the power to acquire and dispose of trademarks, trade names and intellectual property rights and inventions
belonging to the company. unless this regards temporary concessions.

Neither the Chairman nor Managing Director exercised any extraordinary powers of administration during 2007
and the Board did not assign them with any specific proxies in respect of operations on the capital of
subsidiaries for amounts exceeding the powers already granted.

Information regarding the company’s ownership structure (as per article |23-bis of the
Consolidated Finance Law)

At 31 December 2007 the subscribed and paid-in share capital of Bulgari S.pA. amounted to 21,020,549.20
euros consisting of 300,293,560 shares each of par value 0.07 euros.

At the date of preparation of this report, shareholders with an investment exceeding 2% were as follows, on the
basis of the notifications received pursuant to article 120 of the Consolidated Finance Law:

Unione fiduciaria S.p.A. 51.35%
of which:

- Pavlo Bulgari 2347%
- Nicola Bulgari 2347%
— Francesco Trupani 4.40%
Scudder kemper investments Inc. 271%
Caisse des depots et consignations 2.23%
Hartis associates Lp 2.10%
Oppenheimertunds Inc. 2,10%

The shareholders Paole Bulgari, Nicola Bulgari and Francesco Trapani have a voting block agreement which
has been duly communicated in detail in its original text and after subsequent amendments, within the term
required, to Consob, as well as in the prevailing text by lodging and filing with the Rome Registrar of
Companies on 27 July 1998 pursuant to the combined provision of articles 122 and 207 of Legislative Decree
no. 58 of 24 February 1998 and subsequent provisions on the subject. Under this voting block agreement a total
of 154,186,348 ordinary shares, equivalent to 51.35% of share capital (of which 70,490,000 regard Paolo
Bulgari, 70,490,000 regard Nicola Bulgari and 13,206,348 regard Francesco Trapani), are at the present date
registered in the name of Unione Fiduciaria S.p.A. in accordance with instructions given by the parties to the
agreement, including those for the purpose of exercising the rights pertatning to the shares.




On 24 April 2007 shareholders in general meeting authorised the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
Managing Director, severally, to arrange for the purchase of treasury shares within 18 months of the date on
which shareholders adopted their resolution, in a number not to exceed 25,700,000 and at a unit purchase price
in the range between 2 minimum of 5 euros and & maximum of 18 eurcs per share and in any event within the
timit of the distributable profits and available reserves stated in the most recent approved financial statements.
The purchase must take place on the stock market pursuant to article 132 of Consolidated Law no. 58/1998 and
by the means and at the times envisaged by article 4.1.2 of the Regulations of the Markets Organised and
Managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A..

At 3| December 2007 Bulgari S.p.A. held 800,000 treasury shares.

The compuny signed an agreement in 2007 with the Managing Director designed to regulate the assignment to
him of an extraordinary bonus or indemnity if he is removed from office or if his powers are removed without
just cause, which would be payable in a gross amount determined by multiplying by 28 the monthly average of
the compensation paid to the Managing Director in the 24 months period preceding the date on which he is
removed from office or his powers are removed.

Information regarding the Security Policy Document

As required by prevailing legislation the parent company has adopted a Security Policy Document as a requisite
of the new Consolidated Law on Privacy. This Document contains a list of the various ways in which personal
data is processed by Bulgari S.p.A. and the other Italian Group companies, the manner in which the duties and
responsibilities within the structure for processing data are distributed, an analysis of the risks incumbent in the
data, a description of the criteria and methods that would be used to recover the data in the event of destruction
or damage and the measures to be taken to ensure the integrity and availability of the data, as well as to protect
the areas and locations used for its storage and accessibility.

Procedures for the management of risk and hedging operations (derivative instruments)

Bulgari S.p.A. is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates when
currying out its activities, In order to minimise those risks the company generally enters into agreements to
acquire derivative instruments to hedge specific operations, availing itself of the instruments offered by the
market.

More specifically forward contracts are generally used to reduce the risk of changes in foreign currency
receivables, payables and forecast cash flows to be generated by expected transactions.

Interest rate swaps are mostly used in order to minimise any risk connected with fluctuations in interest rates.
Bulgari S.p.A. does not enter speculative arrangements in managing its finances and its treasury, and adopts
specific internal procedures which require the principle of prudence to be respected.

In particular, the company entered forward contract agreements in 2007 for the purpose of hedging the risk of
fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates with the currencies in which royalties are billed.

The currencies for which these operations were effected were principally the Swiss franc and the Japanese yen.
Receivables in US dollars were used to hedge the company’s own requirements and those of other Group
companies through the vse of foreign exchange swaps to hedge the timing ditferences in cash flows.

Law no. 262/2005 (Savings Law)

In regard to the measures provided by Law no. 262/2005, the company’s Board of Directors meeting on 7
March 2007 adopted a resclution proposing amendments to certain articles of the company’s bylaws needed for
compliance with the recent legislative measures introduced by the Savings Law, as amended by Decree no.
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303/2006. On 24 April 2007 the shareholders of Bulgari 5.p.A. in extraordinary session adopted a resolution
approving the amendments to the bylaws.

The steps needed to ensure that the Managing Director and the Manager-in-charge make the required
representation that internal controls relating to the proper keeping of accounting records have been set up and
implemented and function effectively have been carried out,

Organisation, management and control model, pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001

To comply with the requirements of Legislative Decree no. 23172001 “The governance of the administrative
responsibilities of corporate persons, corporations and non-corporate associations”, which introduced into the
Italian legislative code a regime of administrative responsibility by companies for offences committed by
directors, managers or employees in the interest or to the advantage of the company itself, the company adopted
an organisation, management and control model in 2005 as recommended by that legislation.

In addition a collegiate Supervising Body was appointed, having the powers to initiate action and perform
controls, consisting of three members: two outside members expert in legal matters (Prof. Avv. Bruno Assumma
as Chairman and Avv. Cristiano Fava) and the head of the Internal Control function (Dott.ssa Lucilla Marchetti).
This Body attends to the updating of the model in respect of any changes in the applicable regulations and/or
business conditions, oversees the implementation of and compliance with the model and promotes the model
throughout the company. The purpose of these activities is to ensure a continuous verification of the
effectiveness and appropriateness of the model.

The model was also approved on the basis of the guidelines drawn up on the subject by business associations
and with the assistance of external consultants.

In 2007 the Supervisory Body updated the model on the basis of organisational changes and the amendments
to taws and regulations iatroduced by Law no. 123/2007 (“Manslaughter and serious or grievous injury,
committed in breach of laws and regulations regarding the prevention of accidents and the protection of health
and safety at work™) and by Legislative Decree no. 231/2007, which extends the regulations to money-
laundering offences.

The Supervisory Body met 4 times in 2007 and reported on its work to the Board of Directors and the Internal
Control Committee.

Significant events of the year

Shareholders meeting in ordinary and extraordinary general meetings on 24 April 2007 approved in ordinary
session the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006, which closed with net income of 79.9
million euros, and the distribution of a dividend of 0.29 euros per share, amounting in total to 86.9 million
euros, using for the difference retained earnings.

In their ordinary meeting sharcholders also adopted a resolution to reappoint the Board of Directors whose term
ended on the approval of the 2006 financial statements, confirming that the Board should consist of seven
members and appeinting the following persons to the Board for the three year period which will expire with
the approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009:

— Bulgari Nicola;

— Bulgari Paolo;

— Costamagna Claudio;

— Figarolo di Groppelo Giulio;

— Sposito Claudio;

— Trapani Francesco;

— Varvaro Vito (resigned on 15 January 2008).




Paolo Cuccia was co-opted onto the Board #s a non-executive independent director until the shareholders’
meeting approving the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007,

Sharehelders in ordinary meeting additionally adopted a resolution authorising the purchase and sale of
treasury shares, including through put and call option financial instruments, in an amount not to exceed a total
of 25,700,000 shares, equal to 8% of the company’s share capital, at a price in the range between a minimum
of 5 euros per share and a maximum of 18 euros per share, pursuant to article 132 of Consolidated Law no. 58
of 20 February 1998, and by the meuns and at the times envisaged by the Regulations for Markets Organised
and Managed by Borsa [taliana S.p.A..

Finally shareholders in ordinary meeting adopted a resolution pursuant to Consob Communication no. DAC
RM 96003558 to renew the appointment of KPMG S.p.A. as auditors, following the original resolution of 24
November 2003, extending their engagement to the financial years 2009, 2010 and 2011.

In their extraordinary meeting shareholders approved the amendments to certain articles of the company’s
bylaws in order to bring them into line with prevailing legislation, as proposed by the Board of Directors. On
7 March 2007 the Board had adopted a proposal to amend certain of the articles of the bylaws to align them
with recent changes introduced by the Savings Law as amended by Decree no. 303/2006. The main changes
regard the introduction into the bylaws of the means by which the Minager-in-charge of preparing corporate
accounting documents is appointed and the professional prerequisites for this position, pursuant to article 154-
bis of Consolidated Law no. 58/199§. At their next meeting on 13 September 2007 the Board of Directors
adopted a resolution identifying the Head of the Administrative, Finance and Control function as the Manager-
in-charge of preparing corporate accounting documents,

At the above-mentioned meeting of 24 April 2007 shareholders additionally adopted resolutions refating to the
final date for subscribing to increases in share capital regarding the stock option plan reserved for certain
categories of employee, previously approved by them in extraordinary meetings on 10 April 1996 and 29 April
2003, extending both of the original dates 10 31 December 2018, Finally shareholders approved the extension
to 31 December 2018 of the final date for subscribing to increases in share capital relating to the stock option
plan reserved for the Managing Director, which had been determined by shareholders in extraordinary meetings
on 30 April 1998, 29 April 2002 and 28 April 2005,

Options relating to a total of 719,500 shares were exercised during 2007 relating to the stock option plans
previously approved by shareholders in general meeting, with a consequent increase in share capital of
approximately 51 thousand euros; the rights enjoyed by these shares have effect from 1 January 2007.

As a result share capital on 31 December 2007 consisted of 300,293,560 shares each of par value 0.07 euros,
amounting in total to approximately 21 million euros.

Under the powers delegated to it by shareholders the company purchased a total of 1,671,300 treasury shares
during the year and sold 871,300 shares.
At the end of the year the company held 800,000 treasury shares at an average unit value of 10.05 euros.

Capital transactions in subsidiaries and associates

In addition to the matters reported in the paragraph relating to equity investments it is also noted that the
holding in the associate Opera SGR S.p.A. was reduced from 50% to 12.5% during the year, with a resulting
decrease in the investment from 500 thousand euros to 138 thousand euros.

As discussed in the Repornt of the Directors on Operations the liquidation of Bulgari Luxembourg 5.A.. was
formally completed in December.
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Events subsequent to 31 December 2007

The capital payment of 3 million euros to Butgari Accessori S.r.1. which had been subscribed in December 2007
was made in January.

Bulgari Ireland Ltd. was incorporated on 28 February 2008. This company will manage the supply chain and
integrated logistics of the Group. Bulgari Ireland Ltd. is fully owned by Bulgari S.p.A..

On 29 February 2008 the company’s Board of Directors approved a decision to submit to shareholders in an
extraordinary meeting — which will be held at the same time as the meeting called in ordinary session to
“approve the 2007 financial statements — a proposal to carry out a divisible increase in share capital through
the issue of 1,800,000 ordinary shares each of par value 0.07 euros, reserved pursuant to paragraph 5 of article
2441 of the Italian civil code to the Managing Director, Francesco Trapani.

There are no other significant subsequent events.

Qutlook for operations for the parent company

The latest forecasts published by the International Monetary Fund for 2008 indicate that there will be a more
modest level of growth in the year than in 2007 for those countries traditionally driven by the world economy,
such as the United States and Japan, the latter of which is an important country for the Group in terms of its
commercial interests,

Taken overall the emerging countries and those in the East in particular will be the power house of the world
economy, thanks to an increase of 6.7% in GDP in 2008; the Chinese economy will most likely grow by around
10%. which despite being lower than the 11.4% recorded in 2007 still represents an extraordinary figure when
compared to the rates to be found in America and Europe.

The GDP of the countries in the eurozone is forecast at less than 2%, with Italy (+0.7%) still below the EU
average. A scenario such as this could affect the sales performance of the brand licensee companies and as a
consequence the royalties received by Bulgari S.p.A.. Despite this the sales forecasts of these licensees are
indicating an increase in turnover and as a result if this is achieved our royalties should exceed those of 2007.
To sum up, with these expectations for dividend income we are in a position to forecast a positive economic
result also for 2008.




Proposal for the allocation of net income

Shareholders,

the Board of Directors submits for your evaluation the annual financial statements for 2007, audited by KPMG
S.p.A., together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2007, also audited by KPMG
S.p.A., and the related proposal for the allocation of net income for the year of 51,425,355 euros.

The Board proposes to distribute a dividend of (.32 euros per share for 2007 by distributing net income in full
and by using retained earnings and a part of available reserves for the remainder.

Payment of this dividend may be arranged from 22 May 2008 in accordance with the provisions of the
Regulations for the markets organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. by detaching coupon no. 4 on 19
May 2008.

Bulgan S.p.A.
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Paolo Bulgari
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Income Statement
at 31 December 2007 and 3| December 2006
{amounts in unit of euros)

Note V122007 OF which versus 311272006 Of which versus
related parties related parties
Royalties [} 82,246,772 68,491,698 70,392,236 58.296,089
Revenues for supply of services ) 3.836.,797 3,836,797 2,990,335 2,990,335
Total royalties and supply of services revenues 86,083,569 713.382,5M1
Other revenues (3) 7,708,613 6,552,333 1.716,102 7,165,476
‘Total revenues 93,792,182 21,098,673
Personnel cosis 4) 29,455,431 308,439 25,006,711 89,226
Services costs (5) 25.507.555 2049720 20329426 464,786
Advertising and promaotion expenses (6} 21,402,067 11.185.093 24,379,963 14,909,827
Amoriisation, depreciation, write-down and other accruals (W) 8,364,888 6,656,927
Other operating costs (8) 3051379 1,676,046
Total costs of production 87,781,320 78,049,073
Operating profit 6,010,862 3,049,600
Dividends 52,831,117 5283117 91.893.106 91,893,106
Other ftnancial income 4935612 3,920,198 3,616,914 3,462,341
Financial charges und interests (5.329,597) 1,715,856 (2,093,337) 336,438
Foreign exchange gains (losses) (247,222} 109,694
Tota! financia) goins (losses) 9 52,190,510 93,526,377
Revatuation (impairment) of financiul activities [} - (874,137)
Other non-operating income an 1,264 1.373
Net resuft before taxation 58,202,636 95,703,213
Current and deferred taxation (12) 6,777,281 15,849,689
7985354

NET RESULT OF THE YEAR 51,425,355

137




138

Bulgari S.p.A.

Balance Sheet
at 3| December 2007 and 3t December 2006
{amounts in unit of euros)

ASSETS Note 311272007 Of wiich versas 3122006 Of which versas
refated parties related parties

Property, plant and equipment (13) 4255 448 4,434,406

Intangible assets (14) 29,746,161 21,949,901

— Invesiments 211,781,860 211,644,360 191,251,442 191,251,442

—~ Other non-current financial assets 45,881 20,515

Total financial investments (135 211,827,741 191,271,957

Deferred tax assets (16) 818,259 243,257

Other non-cureent assets (17 7.097.169 5.898.690

Non-current finuncial receivables (18 2,354,552 2,208,578

Non-current assets 256,099,330 216,006,789

Non-current assets held for sate - -

Inventory (1M 9,508,953 8,412,485

Trade receivables (20) 53,879,933 48,686,285 51,051,033 45,762,894

~ Financial receivables 75,252,826 71,561,826 65,393,797 65,393,797

— Qther financial assers - -

Total financial assets (2n 75,252,826 65,393,797

— Tax receivables I4.981,437 8,159,069

— Other current ussets 18,757,178 16,246,278 17,996,798 16,657,724

Total other current assets (22) 33,738,615 26,155,267

Cash and cash equivalents (23) 479,417 3,626,933

Current assels 172,859,744 154,639,515

TOTAL ASSETS 428,959,074 380,646,304




SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 31/122007  Of which versus /22006 Of which versus
retated parties related parties

Shareholders’ equity 24

Share capital 20,964,549 20,970,184

Reserves 137,151,922 137,695,570

Retained earnings (losses) 9,997,780 17,020,733

Net income (loss) for the year 51,425,355 79,853,524

Total shareholders’ equity 219,539,606 255.540,011

Employees' benefit plans €] 5417987 4,010,847

Provisions for risks and charges (25) 1,071,188 968,112

Deferred tux liabilities {16} 5,260,430 4,164,568

Other non-current liabilities - -

Non-current financial payables to banks - -

Other non-current financial payables - -

Non-current lizbilities 11,749,605 9,143,527

Nen-current liabilities held for sale - -

Trade payables (26) 30,435,952 14,867,404 28,749,882 15,803,729

Current finzncial payables 2N 144,196,103 54,679,605 68,736,106 66,645,361

- Advances 2,396 114

— Curremt tax payables 52,421 277,976

— Other current liabilities 22,982,991 12,866,437 18,198,088 10,513,988

Onher carrent liabilities (28) 23,037,808 18,476,778

Current liabilities 197,669,863 115,962,766

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES 428,959,074 280,646,304
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Cash Flow Statement
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006
(amounts in unit of euros)

1007 Of which versus

2006 Of which versus

related partles related parthes
Cash flows from operating aclivities
Net income for the year 51,425,355 79,853,524
Depreciation. umontisation and impairment of fixed nssets 8,043,741 7.162,43%
Cash flows from operating activities 59,469,096 87,015,963
{Increase) Decrease in trade receivables in working capital (2,828,899) (2.923,391) (13,293,134) (11,910,780}
(Increase) Decrease in other receivables in working cupital {7.615.544) 411,446 (772,061) 16,474,175
(Increase) Decrease in inventory (1,096,468} (2.832,085)
Increase (Decrease) in trade payables 1,686,070 3,008,191 4,802,420
Increase (Decrease) in other payubles 4,561,030 2352443 (4.219,721) (5.536.948)
Cash flows from changes in net working capital (5,293,811 (18,108,810}
Other medium/ong-term assets
(including other non-current financiul assets) (1,798.847) 5.777.635
Crher medivm/Aong-term liabilities 1.638.275 2,454,520
(a) Cash flows from operaling activities 55,014,713 77,139,308
Cash Nows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(net of disposals) (1.370.830) (1,418,696}
Purchase of intangible assets (14,290,214) (10.737.494)
Purchase of financiul fixed assets
texcluding other non-current financial assets) (20.530,318) (20,392,918) (0011511 (70,011,511
(hher changes - -
(b) Cash flows from investing activities (36,191,462) (82,167,701)
Cash Mlows from financing activities
Change in sharcholders’ equity for increase in share capiial (5,633) 4111539
Dividends paid (B6,876,477) (74.528,550)
Other changes (543.648) 12,582,523
(c) Tota) changes in shareholders® equity (87,425,760) {57.834,488)
Change in medium/leng-term financial payables - -
Change in mediom/leng-term financial receivables (145.974) (450.32%) (450,325)
(d) Total change in medium/long-term financial assets (145,974) (450,325)
(e) Cash flows from financing activities (87.571,734) {58,284,813)
() Dilference in short-term net cash (debt) (a + b+ ¢) (68,748,482) {63,313,206)




2007 Of which versns

2006 Of which versus

related parties related parties

Cash (debt) at beginning of year (*) 2,493,202 65,356,08)
Change in short-term debt () (68.748.482) (63,313,206}
Change in long-term debt (e) 145,974 450,325
Cash (debt) at end of year (*) (66,109307) 2,493,202
of which:

~ liquid funds 479,417 31,626,933
~ cument financial payables {144,196,103) (68.736,106)
- cument financial assets 75,252,826 65,393,797
- non-current financial payables - -
- non-curvent financial receivables 2,354,552 2,208,578

(*} Including medivnilong-tenn cash (debi).
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Statement of changes in sharehoiders’ equity
years ended 3|1 December 2006 and 3| December 2007
(amounts in thousands of euros)

Share Share Legal Treasury shares
capliad premium rescrve  sales gain reserve
reserve
At 31 December 2005 16.859 114.496 5762 0
Allocation of 2005 net income:
- Distribution of dividends - ~ - -
— Retwained earnings - - - -
Sale of treasury shares (stock) 4.009 - - 1.808
Capital increase due to exercise of stock options 102 9.162 - -
Stock options reserve - - - -
Net income - - - -
At 31 December 2006 20.970 123.658 5.762 1.508
Allocation of 2006 net income:
— Distribution of dividends - - - -
- Retained earnings - - - -
Sale of treasury shares 6l 8.784 - 576
Purchase of treasury shares (117 (16.763) - -
Capital increase due (o exercise of stock options 51 4.935 - -
Stock options reserve - - - -
Net income - - - -
At 31 December 2007 20.965 120.614 5.762 2384
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Stock optlon Extraordinary ‘Taxed Galn on Retzlned Net Total
reseTve reserve reserve contribution camings income
reserve

2749 n 145 1.933 31448 59,102 233502
- - - - (14.417) (60.112) (74.529)

- - - - (LOID) 1.010 -

- - - - - - 5.817

- - - - - - 9.264
1.612 - - - - - 1.612
- - - - - 79.854 19.854
4.361 28 145 1.933 17.021 79.854 255.530
- - - - (1.023) (79.854) (86.87T)

- - - - - - 9.421
- - - - - - (16.880)

- - - - - - 4,986
1,925 - - - - - 1.925
- - - - - 51425 51425
6.286 28 145 1.933 9.998 51.425 219.540
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Notes to the financial statements
at 31 December 2007

145




T8



Bulgari S.p.A.

Financial statements
at 31 December 2007

Accounting principles and policies

Corporate information

Bulgari 5.p.A. (the “company”} is an entity organised under the [talian legislative code and is the Parent
Company that holds directly or indirectly through subholding companies investments in the capital of
companies heading the sectors in which the Bulgari Group operates.

The company has its registered office in [taly and is domiciled in Via Lungotevere Marzi 11, Rome,

Bulgari S.p.A. has in addition prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Bulgari Group at
31 December 2007 in its capacity as parent company.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for publication by the Board of Directors on 11 March
2008.

Statement of compliance

Bulgari S.p.A. has prepared its separate financial statements (also referred to in the following as its annual
financial statements) at 31 December 2007 in accordance with international accounting standards
{International Accounting Standards - 1AS or International Financial Reporting Standards - IFRS) and the
related interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and
the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC). as adopted by the European Commission (also referred to
overall in the following as “IFRS™), and the provisions issued implementing article 9 of Legislative Decree
no. 38/2005.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements at 31 December 2007 consist of the balance sheet, the income statement, the cash flow
statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and these notes, The financial statements are
accompanied by the Report of the Directors on Operations, prepared in accordance with article 2428 of the
Ttalian civil code.

Current and non-current assets and liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet as this classification
is used for internal reporting and corresponds to the way in which the business is managed. Costs are presented
in the income statement based on their namre, which differs from the classification used in the consolidated
income statement where they are presented on the basis of their function.

No income or expense in 2007 arose from events or facts which were or a non-recurring nature. The cash flow
statement is presenting using the indirect method.

The financial statements have been prepared on a cost basis, adjusted as required for the measurement of
certain financial instruments, and are presented in euros. The amounts stated in the financial statements
themselves are expressed in single eures, while those stated in the notes are expressed in thousands of euros
unless otherwise stated. Additional columns have been included in the balance sheet, income statement and
cash flow statement to show related party transactions and balances as per Consob Resolution no. 15519 of
27 July 2006.

By related parties are meant all the directly and indirectly held subsidiaries of Bulgari S.p.A..

No abnormal or unusual transactions took place during the year as these are defined by Consob in its
Communication of 28 July 2006.

Changes have been made to the classification of certain items in the financial statements at 31 December
2006 compared to those approved by shareholders in ordinary general meeting on 24 April 2007, in order
to achieve a more meaningful presentation. These changes are not significant and are discussed in these
notes.
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Foreign currency

Revenues, costs, assets and liabilities included in the financial statements are expressed in euros, which is the
functional currency of Bulgar S.p.A.. All transactions denominated in a currency different from the functional
currency are recorded at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency different from the functional currency are subsequently transtated using the exchange rate at the
balance sheet date of the period presented, with any exchange differences arising being recognised in the
income statement. Any net gains are accrued in a non-distributable reserve established for the purpose until
such gains are realised.

Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency and stated at cost are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the initial recognition of the transaction.

Receivables and payables in foreign currency that are specifically hedged against currency risk are measured
by using the exchange rate defined through the hedging arrangement.

Business combinations

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Under the purchase method the
cost of acquisition is the fair value at the date of exchange of the assets given and the liabilities incurred or
assumed plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The cost of a business combination is then
allocated to the acquiree’s identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at their
foir values. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities so recognised is accounted for as goodwill. If the net fair
value exceeds the cost of the acquisition the excess is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

{iv) Ohwned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, including any directly attributable incidental expenses.

They are included as assets only in the case it is probable that future economic benefits will result from their
use and that cost may be retiably determined.

Cost includes:

¢) purchase price (including any import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes), after deducting trade
discounts and rebates;

d) any costs incurred directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Costs incurred subsequent to purchase are recognised as an increase in the accounting value of the component
to which they relate, if future benefits resulting from the cost incurred for the replacement of a component of a
building or plant and machinery are probable and if the cost can be reliably estimated. All other costs are
recognised in the income statement for the period in which they are incurred.

If significant components of buildings, plant or machinery have different useful lives, these are accounted for
separately by applying the cost method described above.

(v} Depreciation

Subsequent to its initial recognition, owned property, plant and equipment is stated net of depreciation and any
impairment losses are determined under the method described in the following. Depreciation commences when
property, plant or machinery becomes available for use and ceases when an asset is sold or when it is no longer
expected to generate future benefits; it is calculated systematically on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of assets.




The estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed at least on an annual basis.

The following table sets out the main useful lives of assets:

Assel catepory Usefal [ife (years)
Plant and machinery 34
Industrial and commercial equipmem 67
Odfice fumniture and fixtures 8
Fittings 67
Elecuonic office machines 5

Motor vehicles

Improvements made to leased properties are stated at cost and depreciated over a period equal to the lower of
the lease term and their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets

(iv) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised as such only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and if the cost of an asset can be measured reliably, and are stated at cost, including
any directly attributable incidental expenses.

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense in the income statement when it is incurred. Development
costs are capitalised as assets only if it can be demonstrated that they are capable of producing future economic
benefits.

Subsequent costs incurred for intangible assets are capitalised as part of the asset to which they relate when
future benefits are probable and if the cost can be reliubly estimated. All other subsequent costs are recognised
in the income statement when incurred.

(v} Amortisation

Subsequent to their initial recognition, assets with a finite useful life are stated net of accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses are determined in the manner described below. Amortisation of an asset begins when
it is available for use and ceases when it is sold or if it is not expected to produce future economic benefits, and
is allocated systematically on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life which is reviewed on an annual
basis.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised but are stated net of any impairment losses
determined in the manner described below.

The following table sets out the main useful lives of assets:

Asset category Usefud Life (years)
Development costs max. 5
Industrial patents and intellectual property rights 37
Concessions, trade marks and licences max. 3
Assets in progress -
Fees for taking over the lease of premises and other conlract term
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Impairment

At the end of each period presented, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments in
subsidiaries are reviewed to assess whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.

The recoverable amount of intangible assets having an indefinite useful life, if present, is in any case
determined at least once a year.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an asset less costs to sell and its value in use.

In the absence of a binding sales agreement, fair value is estimated on the basis of values obtained from an
active market or from recent transactions or on the basis of the best information available that reflects the
amount that the company could obtain from the sale of the asset.

Value in use is defined as the present value of future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived from the use of
an asset, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks of the related activities. If an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent, its
recoverable amount is determined in relation to the cash generating unit to which it belongs.

An impairment loss for an asset is recognised in the income statement if its carrying amount, or that of the cash
generating unit to which it allocated, is higher than its recoverable amount. The impairment losses of a cash
generating unit are firstly allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on the basis of their carrying amounts.

Impairment losses are reversed such that the increased carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised if the reasons which ted to
the loss no longer exist or if there have been changes in the estimates made to determine the recoverable
amount.

Financial instruments

{v) Investmenis in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all those companies for which the company is in a position to determine, either directly or
indirectly, the financial and operating policies for the purpose of obtaining the benefits resulting from its
activities. In assessing whether contro! exists, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are also taken into consideration.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less any reduction for impairment.

The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company’s interest in the fair value of the investee's net assets
is therefore included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Investments in subsidiaries are subject to an annual impairment test; this is carried out more frequently if
necessary. When there is evidence that these investments are impaired the investment is written down by the
impairment loss which is recognised in income. If the company’s share of the investee’s losses exceeds the
carrying amount of the investment, the investment is reduced to zero and the company’s share of any additional
losses is recognised as a provision. If, subsequently, the impairment no longer exists or is reduced, the
investment is reinstated up to cost, with the reinstatement being recognised in income,

{vi) Other financiul assets
Financial assets for which there is the intention and ability to hold to maturity are recognised at cost
(represented by the fair value of the initiaf consideration given) to which are added transaction costs {such as




)

commissions and advisors’ fees). Measurement subsequent to initial recognition is at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Trade receivables are stated at amortised cost net of any impairment losses. Impairment losses are determined
on the basis of the present value of expected future cash flows, using a discount rate based on the original
effective interest rate,

Trade receivables whose due date is based on normal commercial terms are not discounted.

Cash and bank balances consist of those balances which are payable on demand or within a very short period
and which may be withdrawn without incurring costs.

(vii) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including trade payables, are stated at amortised cost using the original effective
interest method.

(iv) Treasury shares
Treasury shares are stated at cost and presented as a reduction of shareholders’ equity. Any gains or losses
resulting from subsequent sale are recognised directly in equity.

Inventories

Inventory is stated at the lower of the cost of acquisition or production and estimated net realisable value, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Finished product stocks, consisting of single items, are stated on a specific cost basis.

In order to estimate net realisable value the value of obsolete and slow-moving goods is written down on the
basis of an estimation of their future use or realisation by creating a specific adjustment provision to reduce the
value of the inventories.

Provision for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made from the available
evidence.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material and the payment dates of the obligations can be reliably
estimated, the amount of provisions is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows at & pre-tax
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and, where applicable, the risks
specific to the liability.

Changes in estimate are recognised in the income staternent of the period in which they occur.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and social security contributions, compensated
absences and annual leave, where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the balance
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sheet date, and all other benefits in kind are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered by the
employee.

Benefits guaranteed to employees which are payable on or after the completion of employment through defined
benefit plans or defined contribution plans are recognised in the period in which the right matures.

Liabilities relating to defined benefit plans, net of any plan assets, are recognised on the basis of actuarial
assumptions using the projected unit credit method and on an accrual basis consistent with the service provided
to cbtain such benefits; the determination of these liabilities is made by independent actuaries.

Any actuarial gains or losses resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions or changes in the conditions of a
plan are recognised in the income statement if, and to the extent that, the unrecognised net amount at the end
of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10% of the obligation relating to the plan and 10% of
the fair value of any plan assets at that date (the so-called corrider method).

On first-time application of IFRS, the company elected to recognise all cumulative actuarial gains and losses at
1 January 2006, despite opting for the corridor method for subsequent actuarial gains and losses.

Costs for defined contribution plans are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

The following changes have taken place with respect to the accounting treatment of the employees’ leaving
entitlernent (the TFR) following the amendments introduced by Law no. 296 of 27 December 2006 and
subsequent implementing decrees and regulations issued in the first few months of 2007 (the “Pension
Reform™):

- the TFR accrued to 31 December 2006 continues to be considered as a defined benefit plan. Given the
changes introduced by the reform, the component relating to expected future salary increases is
excluded from the calculation to discount the liability from 1 January 2007. The difference between the
TFER liabitity at 31 December 2006 determined under the revised assumptions introduced by the
Pension Reform and the carrying amount of the liability in the balance sheet at that date is recognised
in full as personnel costs in the income statement in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 109
of IAS 19;

- the TFR accruing from I Janvary 2007 is considered to be a defined contribution plan and accordingly the
contributions accruing during the year are recognised in full as a cost in the income statement and presented
as a payable in the item “Employee benefit plans”, after deducting any contributions already paid over.

The result is therefore that the TFR liability has been recalculated, with the consequent non-recurring income
(arising from a curtailment) being recognised as a reduction in personnel costs for 2007, in accordance with the
accounting treatment recommended by the competent accounting bodies.

Revenues and costs

Revenues from sales and services are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the respective economic
benefits will flow to the company and when it is possible to measure the fair value of the consideration
reliably.

In particular revenues from sales and services are recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer and when the services have been rendered.

Financial income and expense are recognised on an accrual basis recognising the interest matured on the net
value of the respective assets and liabilities using the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the shareholders have the right to receive payment and namely at the time that
shareholders in general meeting resolve the distribution.




Taxation

Current income taxes are determined on the basis of a realistic estimate of the tax charge for the period of every
company included within the scope of consolidation, in compliance with tax rates and tax laws that are in force
or substantively in force in each country at the balance sheet date.

The expected liability is recognised in the balznce sheet under the item “Provisions”, offset by any advance
payments made, or under the item “Other current tax receivables™ if an asset results from the offsetting process.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined from the temporary differences between the book value of
assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated balance sheet and their corresponding tax values, taking into
account the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on those rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised; the recoverability of deferred tax assets in this
manner is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Deferved tax liabilities are always recognised. In particular, deferred tax liabilities are recognised on
undistributed profits at the balance sheet date in the event that such profits wiil be taxed on distribution.
Taxation that could arise on the transfer of the undistributed profits of subsidiaries is only recognised if there
is the real intention to transfer such profits in the foreseeable future.

Taxation not connected with income is included as operating costs.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when income taxes are levied by the same tuxation
authority and when there is a legally enforceable right of set off.

Tax conseolidation

Pursuant to the provisions of Legislative Decree no. 344 of 12 December 2003, which introduced the group
taxation rules known as the “Tax Consolidation”, Bulgari S.p.A. concluded agreements with its subsidiaries
Bulgari Italia S.p.A., Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A., Bulgari Parfums Italia S.p.A., Bulgari Retail USA S.rl., Crova
S.p.A. and Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. regarding the joint exercise of the option to use “National Consolidation™
tax rules for the three year period 2007-2009, in which all mutual obligations and responsibilities are defined
(the so-called “Regulations™).

As a consequence, the company’s financial statements reflect the new items resulting from this change, with
amounts relating to current taxes and, potentially, deferred corporate income tax (IRES), arising from
subsidiaries being included in “Other current assets™ or “Other current liabilities”, and the results of the tax
consolidation in “Current tax receivables™ or “Current tax payables”, which therefore represent the tax position
vis-3-vis the tax authorities of all the companies that participate in this consolidation.

There is no change in the presentation of current or deferred IRAP, the regional tax on production.

Share-based payment

The company provides stock options to specific categories of employees and to the Managing Director as a
form of remuneration for services rendered.

The cost of these services is measured at the fair value of the options at the date on which they are granted.
This cost is determined by taking into account the best estimate available of the number of options that will be
exercised and is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, that is the
period from the grant date to the date on which the option matures, with the counter-entry being made directly

to equity.




Changes in fair value subsequent to the grant date have no effect on the initial measurement.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the directors and managers of the Group to make estimates
and assumptions which affect the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the
disclosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. These estimates and
assumptions are based on accumulated experience and other factors considered reasonable in the circumstances
and have been adopted to determine the accounting value of those assets and liabilities which is not easily
obtainable from other sources. Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed and any changes are
recognised in the income statement of the period of the change, if the change affects that period only, or the
income statements of the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. The actual results
could differ from these estimates, as a result of the uncenainty inherent in the assumptions and conditions on
which they are based.

In particular, estimates are used in the recognition of provisions for accounts receivable collection risks, in
the measurement of any impairment of tangible and intangible assets, for depreciation and amortisation, in
the measurement of employee benefits and stock option plans, in the recognition of taxation, in the
measurement of provisions and other contingent liabilities and in the measurement of derivative financial
instruments.

Risk management

{i) Credit risk

The company is not exposed to significant credit risk given the nature of its business, whereby risk of this nature
is limited to the collection of royalties from third parties. Trade receivables are stated in the financial statements
net of a write-down determined on the basis of the risk that a customer will not fulfit his contractual obligations;
this write-down is made by taking into consideration all the information that is available regarding the solvency
of the customer and by taking into account historical data.

(ii) Ligquidity risk

The company is not exposed to liquidity risks. The company’s cash flows, funding requirements and liquidity
are monitored and managed centrally under the supetvision of the Group's Treasury Department with the aim
of ensuring that funds are effectively and efficiently managed.

(iiij Interest rate risk and currency risk

The company is exposed to various market risks in carrying out its activities and in particular to the risk of
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and the price of gold.

To minimise these risks, the company acquires derivative financial instruments available on the market to hedge
the risk of both specific operations and complex exposures.

In particular, to reduce the risk of changes in the value of assets, liabilities and expected foreign currency
cash flows to be generated by expected future operations, forward and option contracts are mostly used. To
minimise the risk connected with interest rate fluctuations interest rate swaps and option contracts are
used.

The company does not enter into speculative transactions in managing its finance and treasury and has adopted
specific procedures which require that prudent criteria be followed.




Consistent with 1AS 39, derivative instruments acquired for hedging purposes qualify for hedge accounting as
described in that standard only if:

a) at the inception of the hedge there is a formal designation and documentation of the hedging
relationship;

b} the hedge is highly effective;
¢) the effectiveness can be reliably demonstrated.

If an instrument is designated to offset the exposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged item (for
example, the hedging of the changes in fair value of floating rate loans or foreign currency receivables and
payables), it is recognised at fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value being recognised in the income
statement; in a consistent manner, hedged items are adjusted to reflect the changes in fair value attributable 10
the risk being hedged.

If an instrument is designated to offset the exposure to variability in cash flows of a transaction (a cash flow
hedge; for example the hedging of the variability in cash flows of forecast transactions due to foreign exchange
rate fluctuations), the effective portion of the gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in equity (the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement under the item foreign exchange gains (losses)).

The amounts recognised in equity are subsequently reclassified into the income statement in the period in which
the forecast contracts and transactions affect profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives which do not meet the conditions for recognition as hedging instruments
are recognised in the income statement.

Derivates are accounted for on the trade date.

Recently issued accounting standards and interpretations (approved as of 31 January 2008)

(fii) Adopted in 2007

— on 18 August 2005 the IASB issued IFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures; this standard has no
effect from the standpoint of the measurement or classification of items in the financial statements but
requires additional disclosures for financial instruments;

- on 3 March 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation /FRIC 9 - Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives; this
interpretation specifies that a company must assess whether any embedded derivatives contained in a
contract need to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivatives when becoming party
to the contract. Subsequent reassessment of the conditions is prohibited unless there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract. Adopting this interpretation did not have any accounting effect on the company’s financial
statements;

— in November 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 11 - IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share

Transuctions which specifies the accounting treatment to be followed for share-based payment
arrangements which an entity must settle by purchasing treasury shares and payment arrangements based
on the shares of one Group company and assigned to other companies of the Group. Adopting this
interpretation did not have any accounting effect on the company’s financial statements.
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(iv) Not adopted or not yet applicable

in September 2007 the IASB issued an amendment to JAS | — Presentation of Financial Statements which
is effective (and which will be applied by Group companies) from | January 2009; this new version of the
standard requires a company to present as part of a statement of changes in equity all transactions with
equity holders. All transactions with other parties must instead be included in a statement of comprehensive
income or in two separate statements;

in March 2007 the IASB issued a revised version of JAS 23 — Borrowing Costs. The option for an entity to
recognise as an expense in the period the borrowing costs incurred on the acquisition, construction or
production of assets for which a substantial period of time is normally needed to get the asset ready for its
intended use of sale has been removed from the new version. The new standard is effective (and will be
applied by Group companies) from 1 January 2009,

in November 2007 the IASB issued [FRS 8 — Operating Segments which is effective (and which will be
applied by Group companies) from | January 2009 and which will replace 1AS 14 Segment Reporting. The
new standard requires entities to base their segment information on the elements used by management to
take business decisions and to identify operating segments, therefore on the basis of internal reporting. The
introduction of the new standard will have no effect on the measurement of items in the financial
statements;

in July 2007 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction, which is applicable (and hence applied by Group
companies) from 1 January 2008; the interpretation provides general guidance on how to assess the limit
in TAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognised as an asset and also explains how the
pensions asset or liability may be affected when there is a statutory or contractual minimum funding
requirement;

in January 2008 the TASB issved an amendment to IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations which is effective (and which will be applied by Group companies) from 1 January 2009; the
amendment clarifies that only service conditions and performance conditions are the conditions that must
be satisfied for a party to be entitled to receive equity instrurments on the basis of a share-based payment
agreement;

in November 2006 IFRIC issued the interpretation IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements which
is effective from | January 2008. The issue discussed by this interpretation is not applicable to the
company.




Contents and main changes
Income statement
1. Royalties

Royalties may be analysed as follows:

(thousands of eur;

2007 2006

Royalties from related parties 68,492 58,296
Royalties from third parties 13,755 12.09
Tota! royalties 82,247 70,392

Revenues from the concession of the trademark increased by 11,855 thousand euros, up by 17% over the
previous year, which reflects the rise in sales volumes recorded by the Bulgari trademark licensees.

Royalties from third party companies include revenues from exclusive Bulgari franchisee stores, from Luxottica
S.p.A. for the sale of glasses and from Rosenthal Italia S.r.L..

2, Revenues from services

Revenues from services performed for related parties solely regard Group companies and are all governed by
specific agreements. These revenues increased by 847 thousand euros over the previous year and amounted to
3,837 thousand euros. The item consists of services of a legal, fiscal and financial nature, personnel

management services and accounting and administrative services.

The following table provides an analysis of these revenues by company:

(thousands of eumw)

2007 2006

Bulgari lalia 8.p.A. 732 97
Bulgari Gioietli S.p.A. 660 775
Bulgari Japan Lid. n -
Bulgari 5.A. 20 -
Bulgari Dewschland GmbH 13 -
Bulgan France S.A. 26 -
Bulgari Parfums §5.A. 55 52
Bulgari Parfums ltalia S.p.A. 299 270
Bulgari South Asian Operations Pre. Lid. 4 -
Bulgan UK, Ltd. 29 -
Bulgari Asia Pacific Lid. 24 -
Bulgari Taiwan Lid. 16 -
Bulgari Retail USA S.rl, 120 53
Bulgari Commercial Shunghai Company Lid, 14 -
Bulgari Hotels und Resonts Miluno S.c.l. 49 43
Bulgari Collection Internationale S.A. 1,754 1,100
Total revenues from services to related parties 3837 2,990
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Segment information

As the company is involved in managing the Group’s equity investments the following segment information
setting out an analysis of revenues by geographical area is provided as required by the respective laws and
regulations.

Revenues for the sale of goods und provision of services by geographical area are as follows:
{thousands uf euros)

lialy Other EU Restof  Americs Middle Far Jupan Otber ‘Total
countries Europe East East
Revenues from trademark licensing:
~ from related parties 2,395 K | 48,621 3073 3916 6,831 335 68492
— from third parties 9,490 292 461 276 2,221 984 3 13,755
Total revenues from trademark
licensing 11,885 3613 49,082 3M9 2221 4,900 6,831 366 82,247
Revenues from the provision of services:
- from related parties 1,793 66 1,829 68 60 2] 3,837
Total revenues from the provision
of services 1,793 66 1,829 68 60 21 3,837
Total revenues from licensing and
the provision of services 13,678 3679 50,5911 3417 2,221 4,960 6,852 366 86,084
3. Other income
Other income may be analysed as follows:
{thousarxts of curos)
2007 2006
Other income from related parties 6,352 7.165
Onher income from third parties 1,156 551
Total other income 7,708 1.716

Other income decreased by 8 thousand euros over the previous year. Other income from related parties of 6,552
thousand euros mainly comprises recharges of applications software costs and the related development and
implementation costs, amounting in total to 5,748 thousand euros, income of 451 thousand euros from
agreements to sublet premises for office use entered into with Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A., Bulgari Parfums Italia
S.p.A., Bulgari Retail USA S.rl. and Bulgari Italia S.p.A., and income of 353 thousand euros from the
provision of miscellaneous services. All agreements with related parties are governed by specific contracts.

Other income from third parties of 1,156 thousand euros relates mainly to prior period income anising from the
release of accruals for costs of 975 thousand euros made in previous years and no longer needed.




The following table provides a detail of other income from related parties:

tthonsands of euros)

2007 2006

Bulgari ltalia S.p.A. 492 450
Bulgar Giocielli $.p.A. 460 527
Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. 36 5
Bulgan Corporation of America Inc. 66 58
Bulgari Time (Switzerland) S.A. 448 391
Bulgari Jopan Lid. 371 2,092
Bulgari S.A. 113 E1l
Bulgari (Deutschiand) GmbH 208 217
Bulgari France S.A.S. 170 156
Bulgari Montecarle 5.A.M. 7 16
Bulgari Espana S.A. Unipersonal 175 158
Bulgari Parfums S.A. 213 204
Bulgari Parfums ltalia 8.p.A, 236 48
Bulgari Jewels 5.A. - 44
Bulgari South Asian Operations Pre Lid. 169 144
Bulgari (UK) Ltd. 195 129
Bulgari Belgium S.A. 21 21
Bulgari Australia Pry. Lid. 53 51
Bulgari {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd 19 20
Bulgari Global Operations §.A. 946 776
Bulgari Collection Intermationale S.A. 64 26
Bulgari Asia Pacific Lid. 142 133
Butgari (Taiwan) Lid. 128 117
Bulgari Korea Ltd. 143 147
Bulgari Saint Barth 5.a.5. 4 3
Butgari Parfums Deutschland GmbH 2t n
Bulgari Reail USA S.c.l. 791 657
Crova S.p.A. 206 63
Bulgari Commercial {Shanghai) Company [td. - 3
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 55 4
Opera SGR Lia, - 4
Bulgari Parfums Theria 28 -
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.rl. 2 1
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japan Led. - 177
Total other income from related parties 6,552 7.165
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4. Employee benefits

The following table sets out changes in the workforce during the year, analysed by category:

31 December Jotners Leavers Chonge In 31 December Avernze Average

2006 category 2007 1007 2006

Managers 3 ] (4) 3 3o 34 k]
Intermediates “ 10 4 5 55 49 44
White-collar 186 72 (19) &3] 232 214 184
Blue-collar 14 2 N (1) 8 12 S
Total 275 % () - 3 £ 273

Employee benefits
The cost of employee benefits may be analysed as follows:
tthousands of cura)
007 2006
Wages and salaries 19,257 16,956
Social and pensions charges 6,028 4,989
Churge for employees’ leaving entitlement 1156 79
Compensation component of stock option plans 1,925 1611
Oher personnel cosis 1,089 T2
Total employee benefit costs 29455 25,007

Employee benefit costs totalled 29,455 thousand euros, representing an increase of approximately 18% over
2006. Part of this increase is due to the increase in wages and salaries paid and incentive bonuses to be paid,
part to the stock options reserved for certain categories of employee and part to the rise in the average number
of employees from 273 in 2006 to 309 in 2007.

The charge for the employees’ leaving entitlement is made up of 1,154 thousand euros for the portion accruing
on wages and salaries of the year and 2 thousand euros for the portion accruing on deferred remuneration. The
counter-entry for this latter item is to be found in *Third party other current liabilities™.

The remuneration component of stock option plans refers to those with underiying Bulgari S.p.A. shares.

Employee benefit plans
Employee benefit plans amounted to 5,418 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, net of advances of 683
thousand euros, (4,011 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) and consist of the following:

— Defined benefit plans amounting to 4,489 thousand euros net of advances; and
— Defined contribution plans amounting to 929 thousand euros,

In connection with “Employee benefit plans” following the changes introduced by Law no. 296 of 27 December
2006 and subsequent decrees and implementing regulations issued in the first part of 2007 (the Pension Reform
or Riforma Previdenziale) the following changes have taken place:

— the TFR continues to be a defined benefit plan for amounts accrued up to 3t December 2006. Given the
changes introduced by the reform the component relating to expected future salary increases has been
excluded from 1 January 2007 in calculating the present value of the obiigation. The income of 81 thousand
euros arising on the recalculation of the TFR accrued up to 31 December 2006 in accordance with the new




assumptions introduced by the Pension Reform (which has the nature of a curtailment) has been recognised
in the income statement in full under the item “other personnel costs™;

— from | January 2007 the TFR is considered as a defined contribution plan and accordingly the amounts
accruing from that date are recognised fully as a cost and presented as a payable under the item “employee
benefit plans”, net of any contributions already paid over. A receivable of the sume amount is recognised in
other current assets and at 31 December 2007 these balances both amounted to 1,759 thousand euros.

The obligation due for the employees’ leaving entitlement net of advances made, amounting to 5,418 thousand
euros, has the nature of a defined benefit obligation and has been determined on the basis of prevailing
legislation, regulations and labour contracts and a valuation made by an independent actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

The changes that took place during the year in this obligation are as follows:

{thousands of euros)

2007 2006

TFR & | January 4011 3,786
Com recognised in income (helow) 1,366 838
To pension funds 172 -
Utilisation (133) (613)
TFR at 31 December 5418 4,011

The changes taking place during the year which are recognised in the income statement are as follows:
{thousands of curos)

2007 2006
Service costs 1,155 670
Curtailment effect (81) -
[nterest on discounting TFR 212 168
Total cost recognised in the income statement 1,366 168
The principal assumptions made in the actuarial estimate are as follows:
Annua! discount rate 5.50%
Annun! inflation rate 2.00%
Annual rate of increase in the cost of labour 3.00%

Share-based paymenis

The company has stock option plans in place in favour of the Managing Director and certain categories of
manager.

The options are granted at the average officially quoted price of the thirty duys preceding the grant date. The
vesting period is variable, ranging from two to four years. The options may be exercised within a period ranging
from six months to five years and six months from the date that they have vested.

Decree Law n0.223 of 4 July 2006, converted into law by Law no. 248 of 4 August 2006, and Decree law no.
262 of 3 October 2006, converted into law by Law no. 286 of 24 November 2006, have made changes to the
way in axation and social security contributions are calculated on employment income deriving from the
exercising of stock options,
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The law converting Decree Law no.223 establishes that stock option income, which is liable to taxation in the
case that exemption to the taxation of employment income does not hold, is liable to social security charges for
those plans approved by sharcholders on or after 5 July 2006, the date on which the decree became effective.

Considering the fact that all the plans have similar characteristics, the information provided below is presented
in an aggregate manner.

The item *Compensation component of stock option plans” consists of costs of 1,925 thousand euros relating
to all the stock option plans in existence at 31 December 2007. This cost has been determined at a fair value
ranging between 1.31 and 2.20 euros per share using the method described in “Accounting principles and
policies™.

The parameters used in the determination of this cost, namely the determination of the fair value of the options
at the grant date, are as follows:

Dividend yield: from 2.5% to 3.02%
Stock price volatility: from 23% 0 44%
“Risk free™ interest rate: from 2.6% o0 4.7%
Average expected option waiting period: 3.23 years

In compliance with the resolution passed by shareholders in a general meeting of 28 April 2005 and on the basis
of a resolution of the Board of Directors taken in a meeting of 27 March 2006, on 20 June 2007 300,000 stock
options were granted to the Managing Director which may be exercised from July 2008 and a further 300,000
options which may be exercised from July 2009, all at a price of I 1.66 euros.

In addition on 20 June 2007, 492,000 options were granted to certain members of management, which may be
exercised from 20 June 2010 at a price of 11.66 euros.

Information relating to changes taking place in stock option plans during 2007 is set out in the following table:

Number Average

of options exercise price

Rights at 1 January 2007 5,580,100 135
Change for persennel arriving from other companies 163,000 8.61
(1) Total rights 5,743,100 7.38
(2) New rights granted in the year 1,092,000 11.66
(3) (Rights exercised in the year} (312,000} 7.22
(4) {Rights expiring in the year) (277,000} 11.64
(5) Rights at 31 December 2007 6,246,100 7.96
{6} Of which exercisuble at 31 December 2007 4,173,600 6,85

Note: {5) = (£} + (2) + (3) + (4}
(*) Market price represents the annaal average for the number of options at (3) and {4) and the exact number for (1), (2) and (5).




The following table provides an analysis of the exercise price band and residual term

subdivided between the Managing Director and other employees:

of the agreement,

Price band Residual term of agr
< 1 years > 2 yeurs Total
M.D. Othets Total M.D. Others Total
=20 - - - - - - -
<20>50 900,000 101,500 1,001,500 300,000 232,500 532500 1,534,000
»350 200,000 261,600 461,600 2,400,000 1,850,500 4,250,500 4,712,100
Total 1,100,000 363,100 1,463,100 2,700,000 2,083,000 4,783,000 6,246,100
Price band Of which exercisable at 3171272007
M.D. hers Total
<=20 - - -
<20>50 1,200,000 334,000 1,534,000
»5.0 1,700,000 939600 1,639,600
Total 2,900,000 1,273,600 4,173,600

5. Cost of services

Cost of services may be analysed as foltows:

(thousands of cums)

2007 2006
Cost of relmed party services 2.050 465
Cost of third party services 23,458 19,865
Total cost of services 25,508 20330

Service costs for the year ended 31 December 2007 amounted to 25,508 thousand euros, showing an increase
over the previous year of 5,178 thousand euros, of which 3,593 thousand euros refers to third party services and

1,585 thousand euros to related party services.
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Cost of related party services

The cost of related party services refers principatly to recharges of operating costs incurred by subsidiaries. The
increase over 2006 is mostly due to the recharging of costs of prototypes and models relating to product
development incurred by Crova S.p.A. and Bulgari Accessori S.r.l..

The following table provides an analysis of this item:

(thovsands of enros)
1007 2006
Bulgari lialia S.p.A. 17 il
Bulguri Gioielli S.p.A. 39 -
Bulgari Corporation of America Inc. 53 13
Bulguri Japan Ltd, 128 at
Bulgari S.A. 2 -
Bulgari {Deutschland) GmbH n 60
Bulguri Purfums 5.A. - 2
Bulguri Purfums [talia S.p.A. i 1
Bulgari (UK} Lud. 3i 75
Bulgari Global Cperations S.A. 35 2
Bulgari Asia Pacific Ltd. 6 -
Bulgari (Taiwan} Ltd. 47 4
Bulgari Luxembourg 5.A. 13 -
Crova 5.p.A. 1,013 -
Bulgari Retail U.S.A. S.cl. 3 -
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 538 195
Bulgari Hotels and Resons B.V. } -
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.r.l. 13 15
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Japan Lid. 9 -
Total cost of related party services 2,050 165
Cost of third party services
The following table provides an analysis of the cost of services provided by third parties:
Description 2007 2006
External technical, organisational, legal, fiscal and administrative consultancy services 6,101 5.043
Fees to corporate bodies 4,237 3,805
Services for personnel and administrative bodies 3199 3501
Costs of preotection and registrution of trademarks and designs 1444 1,036
Renta) instalments 1,770 1.547
Maintenance instalments and maintenance and repair costs 1,830 1.484
Lease instalments 2,755 1.943
Energy, telephone and communications costs 877 846
Securily services 316 85
Insurance , 233 ié
Technical Observation Office costs 210 202
On-site cleaning costs 174 192
Ohher services 310 65
Total cost of third party services 23458 19,865




Third party service costs amounted to 3,593 thousand euros in 2007, an increase of approximately 18%, and
principally relate to the following:

— costs for external services of 6,101 thousand euros, which increased by 1,058 thousand euros over the
previous year and consist of costs for tax, legal, commercial and administrative consultancy services and
additionally include consultancy costs for the organisation and development, training, selection and
recruitment of personnel;

— fees to members of corporate bodies of 4,237 thousand euros (3,805 thousand euros in 2006), which consist
of fees to directors of 4,061 thousand euros, gross of social security charges, and fees to the members of the
Board of Statutory Auditors of 76 thousand euros, fees to the Remuneration Committee of 30 thousand
euros and fees to the Internal Control Committee of 70 thousand euros. The table below provides a list of
the directors and statutory auditors and their respective compensation;

— costs for services to employees and administrative bodies of 3,199 thousand euros (3,501 thousand euros in
2006) decreased by 302 thousand euros. These consist of the costs and reimbursement of business travel
expenses for employees and members of the Board of Directors;

— costs of 1,444 thousand euros for the protection and registration of trademarks and designs, compared with
1,036 thousand euros in the previous year, representing an increase of 408 thousand euros;

- hire costs amounting to 1,770 thousand euros (1,547 thousand euros in 2006), representing an increase of
223 thousand euros, relating mainly to the rental of electronic machines such as servers and computers and
the rental of company cars and office machines;

- maintenance instalments and maintenance and repair costs of 1,830 thousand euros, which have risen by
346 thousand euros over the previous year. In particular, instalments for the maintenance of applications
software amounted to 1,134 thousand euros, while maintenance instalments relating to computer hardware
totalled 277 thousand euros. This item additionally includes costs of 232 thousand euros for the matntenance
and repair of office machirery and equipment;

- lease instalments of 2,755 thousand euros for the buildings used as the company’s registered office,
headquarters and administrative offices and the related accessory costs, which rose by 812 thousand euros
over the previous year.
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Compensation paid to Directors and Statutory Auditore in office at 31 December 2007 (¥)

(thousarxt of euros )
Person Description of office held Compensation
First and last name Office held Term Fees for Bonus and other  (Other compensation (')
of office office Incentives

Paolo Bulgari Chairman 2007-2000 213 52 (a)
Bulguri 5.p.A.

Nicola Bulgari Deputy Chairman 20072009 137 52 (a)
Bulgari S.p.A.

Francesco Trapani Managing Director 2007-2009 3530 See stock
Bulgari 5.p.A. options table 82 (a)

Varvaro Vilo (**) Director 2007-2009 45 10 (c)
Bulgar S.p.A. 20 (d)

Giulio Figarolo Di Gropello Director 2007-2009 5 10 (©)
Bulgan S5.p.A. 20 (d)

Castamagna Claudio Directer 2007-2009 45 30 (d)
Bulgari S.p.A.

Sposito Claudio Director 20071-2009 45 10 (c)
Bulgari S.p.A.

Maurizio De Magistris Chairman of Board of 2005 - 2007 32 27 by
Statutory Auditors Bulgart S.p.A,

Siefania Libori Swanding Auditor 2005 2007 22 17 {b)
Bulgari 5.p.A.

Francesco M. Bonifacio Standing Auditor 2005 - 2007 22 17 {b)
Bulgari S.p.A.

(*) The amounts shown in the table refer 1o the compensation recognised or accrued during the year and is accondingly shown on an accrual basis.
**) Resigned as of 15 January 2008. The director Paoto Cuccia has been coopted as an independent and non-executive director until the next general sharehoklers” meeting,

which will be that called to approve the 207 financial statements.

(1) Orher compensation paid for the position as:
(a) Director of other companies of the Bulgari Group:

(b) Chairman of the Beard of Statutory Auditors or Standing Auditor of other companies of the Bulgar Group;

{¢) Chairman or ber of the

(d) Chairmnan or memiber of the control committee.

6. Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertising and promotion expenses may be analysed as follows:

commitiee;

(thovsands of curos )

2007 2006

Related party advertising and promotion expenses 11,185 14,910
Third party advertising and promotion expenses 10.217 9470
‘Tota) advertising and promotion expenses 21,402 24380

Advertising and promotion expenses of 21,402 thousand euros, compared with 24,380 thousand euros in the
previous year, decreased by 2,978 thousand euros. This decrease is principatly due to lower subsidies for
advertising and promotion paid to related parties, which fell by 3,725 thousand euros against an increase in

advertising costs incurred with third parties of 747 thousand euros.

Bulgari S.p.A., the owner of the Bulgari trademark, makes contributions on the basis of specific agreements, or
in some cases on the basis of additions to the trademark licensing agreement, to the advertising and promotion
costs or certain other costs incurred by related party companies in managing the “Flagship Stores™, which are




stores located in areas which are amongst the most prestigious in the world or which are of specific interest for
the image of the BVLGARI brand or from a strategic standpoint.

The subsidies are based on promotional investment criteria and parameters and on the turnover achieved by the
related parties and this led to the recognition of a total overall subsidy for 2007 that was lower by 2,931
thousand euros.

The following table provides details by company of this item:

{thousaruds of curvs)
At 311122007 At 311272006
Advertising Other Total Advertising Other ‘Total
subsidy  stpport budpel subsidy  support budpet
Bulgari ltalia S.p.A. 789 10 799 599 216 815
Bulguri Corporation of America [nc. - 60 60 - 61 6l
Bulguri Japan Ltd, 1401 - 1.401 1,455 45 1,500
Bulgari S.A. - 5 5 - 6 6
Bulgari (Deutschland) GmbH 623 - 623 729 14 743
Bulgari Frunce S.a.5. 493 22 515 584 5 589
Bulgari Espana 5.A. Unipersonal 521 - 521 47 - 747
Bulgari Parfums S.A. - 58 58 - 0 20
Bulgari South Asian Operation Ltd. 99 - 9 - i9 19
Bulgari (UK} Ltd. 2.181 93 2,274 2,363 59 2422
Bulgari Belgium S.A. 3 - 3 - - -
Bulgari Australia Pty. Ld. 93 15 108 101 - 101
Bulgari {Mulaysia) Sdn Bhd 5 - 5 18 13 3
Bulgari Global Operutions S.A. - 57 57 -~ 28 28
Bulgari Asia Pacific Lid. 415 - 415 449 1?7 466
Bulgari (Taiwan) Lad. 213 - 213 418 25 443
Bulgari Korea Lid. 242 15 257 301 - 30
Bulgari Suint Barth S.a.5. - - - 9 - 9
Bulgari Parfums Germany GmbH - l l - - -
Crova S.p.A. - 24 24 - - -
Butgari Retail USA S.rl. 3376 36 3412 6.563 7 6,570
Bulgan Commercial (Shanghai) Ltd. 239 - 239 - 29 29
Bulgan Accessori S.r.l. - kY 37 - - -
Bulgari Austria GmbH 22 - 22 - - -
Bulgari Thailand Led. 3o - 36 - - -
Bulgan Hotels and Resorts Milano S.rl. - | | - 10 10
Total advertising and promotion
expenses with related parties 10,751 434 11,185 14,336 574 14,810

Advertising and promotion expenses with third parties which increased by 747 thousand euros over the
previous year relate to the costs incurred for sponsorships and international events, the purchase of
advertising space in national and international magazines and promotional activities developed through
national and international film productions zimed at promoting and publicising the BVLGARI brand
throughout the world.
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7. Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and other accruals

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and other accruals may be analysed as follows:

{thousands of eurns)

007 2006

Amortisation of intangible assets 6,494 4,675
Depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment 1.550 1613
Other accruals 21 369
Total depreciation, amortisation, impairment and other accruals 8365 6,657

There was an increase of 1,708 thousand euros in “Amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses and other
accruals™ in 2007 due mainly to a rise of 1,819 thousand euros in the amortisation of intangible assets, arising
mostly from the increased amortisation charged on applications software licenses and the related development
eXpenses.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment decreased by 63 thousand euros over 2006.

Other accruals of 321 thousand euros refer to probable future costs to be incurred in connection with disputes
with staff leavers, measured on the basis of the best estimates available which take into account the opinions of
external legal counsel engaged by the company to manage this litigation.

8. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses may be analysed as follows:

{thousands af ceres)

200 2006

Related party other operating expenses .- -
Third party other operating expenses 3.051 1,676
Total other operating expenses 3,051 1,676

“Other operating costs” increased by 1,375 thousand euros over 2006 and relate wholly to costs incurred with
third parties.

These costs, amounting to 3,051 thousand euros for the year, consist of those operating costs having a general
nature, such as postal and despatch costs (186 thousand euros), costs for stationery and consumables (149
thousand euros) and the cost of running company cars (140 thousand euros). Also included in this item are prior
period expenses recognised in the year of 1,345 thousand euros, the commissions and fees payable to Monte
Titoli and its depositaries (94 thousand curos), listing fees (136 thousand euros) and the costs incurred in
connection with the termination of franchisee licensing agreements.




9. Financial income {(expense)

Financial income (expense) may be analysed as follows:

(thousands of curos)

2007 2006
Dividends received 52832 91,893
Other financial income 4,935 3,617
[nterest expense and financial charges (5.330) (2,094)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) (247) 110
Total financial income {expense) 52,19 93,526
Financial income

(thousands of eurvs)

2007 2006
Dividends received 52832 91,893
Other related panty financial income:
— Interest income 3,797 3,280
— Surety commission income 123 165
- Other financial income - 17
Total other related party financial income 3920 3462
Other third party financial income
- Interest income from bank uccounts ko) 99
— (nher interest from the public administration 52 15
— Premium income on forward financial transactions 76 41
— Gains on the sale of equity investments 860 -
Total other third party financial income 1,015 155
Total financial income 51,767 95,510

The company received dividends of 52,832 thousand euros during the year, a decrease of 39 million euros over
2006.

These dividends were received from the following subsidiaries:

— Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V.: 49,060 thousand euros;

— Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A.: 1,072 thousand euros;

— Crova §.p.A.: 2,700 thousand euros.

Related pany interest income represents income accruing on balances with the Group’s centralised treasury
management and loans granted by Bulgari 5.p.A. to its subsidiaries.
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The following table provides an analysis of related party financial income by company:
{(thoasamds of curms)

2007 2006
Butgari [talia S.p.A. 2392 1,786
Bulgani Gioielli S.p.A. 747 509
Bulgari Japan Lid. 38 67
Bulgari France S.A. 2 -
Bulgari Parfums lialia S.p.A, 2 42
Bulgart Global Operations 5.A. b6 671
Bulgari Operational Services A.p.S. 11 88
Crova S.p.A, - 1
Bulgani Retail USA S.rl. 95 84
Bulgari Commerciul (Shanghai} Ltd, 106 22
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 197 27
Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. - 18
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. 59 35
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.r.l, 135 112
Total retated party financial income 3,920 3,462

Other third party financial income amounting to 1,015 thousand euros, an increase of 860 thousand euros over
2006, relates to premiums earned on financial transactions, interest income on bank current accounts and gains
on the sale of securities.

Financial expense
Financial expense may be analysed as follows:
(thousands of curns)

2007 2006
Other related party financial expense:
— Interest expense 1.716 319
- Other financial charges - 17
Total other related party financial expense L76 36
QOther third party finuncial expense:
— Interesi expense on bank accounts 36 -2
— Interest expense on loans 3.137 1.326
— Commissions on third party sureties 79 95
— Bank charges and commissions 59 2
— Premium expense on financial operations 91 75
— Employees’ leaving entitlement discount interest 212 168
Total other third party Enancial expense 3,614 1LI57
Total other financial expense 5,330 2,093

Other financial expense increased by 3,237 thousand euros over 2006, principally as the result of the company's
increased borrowing requirement in 2007 needed to fund the investments made during the year and to pay
dividends to shareholders,

Other related party financial expense relates to interest expense arising from the Group’s centralised treasury
management and interest on loans granted to the company.




The following table provides an analysis by company of this item:

{thouxunds of ety

007 1006
Bulgari Gioielli 5,p.A. 9 -
Bulgari Internationa) Corporation (BIC) N.V. 1.129 46
Bulgari Parfums Maliu S.p.A. 11 i
Bulgari Global Operations 5.A. 469 185
Crova S.p.A. 98 86
Bulgari Retail USA S.cl. - 17
Total related party fnancial expense 1,716 336

Other third party financial expense increased by 1,857 thousund euros over the previous year mainly as the
result of higher interest expense.

As discussed above in order for the company to satisfy its borrowing requirements in 2007 it was necessary for
it to take out short-term bank loans, leading to an increase in interest expense. The rise in interest rates over the
year has also made a contribution to this increase.

Exchange gains (losses)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) may be analysed as follows:

(thousands of eunss}

1007 2006

Exchange gains 1,338 2,718
Exchange losses (1.585) (2.608)
Total foreign exchnage gains (losses) (247} 110

There were net exchange gains in 2007 of 247 thousand euros compared to net gains of 110 thousand in the
previous year, representing an increase of 137 thousand euros.

Exchange differences arise principally from commercial activities and financial transactions. The company has
a very attentive policy towards the hedging of currency risks arising from receivables and payables in foreign
currency which is implemented through the use of derivative hedging instruments.

The figures for exchange gains and losses appearing in the above table are also connected with financial
transactions having the scope of hedging the currency risk arising from foreign currency royalty receivables and
financial receivables and payables, again through the use of derivative instruments.

11. Other non-operating income

Other non-operating income amounted to | million euros and relates to discounts and rebates.
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12. Current and deferred taxation

Current and deferred taxation may be analysed as follows:

{thousands of euros)

2007 2006

Current IRES taxation - 1.280
Separately taxed income 3 -
Currens IRAP wxation 1.553 1,404
Tax on income produced abroad 1.263 1,221
Deferred taxution 521 5.201
Tax consolidation 3041 528
Prior year taxes 365 215
Total current and deferved taxation 6,777 15,849

The total charge for current and deferred taxation for 2007 amounted to 6,777 thousand euros, as shown in
detail in the table above.

Tax income and expense transferred to the company by subsidiaries taking part in the national tax consolidation
amount in total to a net expense of 3,041 thousand euros.

The deferred tax charge for the year of 521 thousand euros (5,021 thousand in 2006) arises from the difference
between book and fiscal depreciation.

IRAP tax of 1,553 thousand euros has been charged compared to 1,404 thousand euros in 2006.

Separately taxed income amounted to 34 thousand euros and relates to LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.a.r.l., white
tax on income produced abroad of 1,263 thousand euros (1,221 thousand euros in 2006) relates to tax withheld
and paid definitively outside Italy.

Prior year taxes of 365 thousand euros are reported in this item (215 thousand euros in 2006). In this respect
the item tax on income produced abroad has been reclassified from “QOther operating costs” to “‘Current and
deferred taxation™ in 2007 for a more meaningful presentation.

A reconciliation between the tax charge recognised in the income statement and the theoretical tax charge
calculated on the basis of the prevailing theoretical tax rate is as follows:

Reconciliation hetween urdinary ond effective tax rites

2007 2006
Ordinary IRES rate applicable 30% 1.00%
Effects leading to an increase (decrease) in the rme
— Non-deductible costs 4.11% 130%
- Exempt income and other deductible costs (1.57%) (0.58%)
= Dividends (28.46%) (21.38%)
— Utilisation of accumulated tax losses - (0.19%:)
- Taxation of income produced abroad 217% 1.28%
— CFC compantes liable to taxation 0.06% 0.00%
— Adjustments to prior year income taxes 0.63% 0.22%
~ Adjustments to deferred tax liabilities calculated on accumulated temporary differences (1.29%) 0.22%
IRES effective rate 1.65% 14.86%
IRAP effect fcurrent and deferred) 2.99% 1L.70%
Total effective tax rate 11.64% 16.56%
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Balance sheet

13. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and changes for the year are set out as follows:

{thousands of curou}
Plant and  Industrial and Leasehold Ebectronic  Assets under  Other pssets Total
machinery cial kmpr chin construction
equipmeni

Year 2004
Cost 1,406 519 4,224 5.149 1838 13.136
Accumulated depreciation (968) (424) (2.318) (3.562) (142D (8,699}
Net book value at 31 December 2004 438 95 1,906 1,587 411 4,437
Changes in 2005
Purchases 262 4 778 955 165 2.164
Disposals (19 (4] Q2n
Depreciation (252) (22) (499) {753} (141} 11.667)
Write-downs (299 (299
Uiilisation of accumulated depreciation (15) (15)
Total changes in 2005 10 (18) [p-1)] 168 z 1mn
Year 2005
Cost 1.668 523 4,703 6.085 - 2.001 14,980
Accumulated depreciation (1,220 (446} (2,817 (4,300} - (1.568) (10,350
Net book value at 31 December 2005 448 77 1,886 1,785 - 433 4,629
Changes in 2006
Purchases 78 239 1,055 46 1418
Disposats
Depreciution (239} (3] (445) (790) (120) (1,613)
Write-downs
Utilisation of accumulated depreciation
Total changes in 2006 {161) [45] (206) 165 - (7d) (19%)
Year 2006
Cost 1,746 523 4,942 7.140 - 2,047 16,398
Accumulated depreciation {1,459 (465) (3.262) (5.090) - {1.688) (11.964)
Net book value at 31 December 2006 287 58 1,680 2,050 - 359 4434
Changes in 2007
Purchases 88 40 1.076 84 83 1,371
Disposals (56} (4) (60)
Depreciation {167 (18) (462} (792) (i (1.550)
Write-downs
Utilisation of accumulated depreciation 56 4 60
Total changes in 2007 (7 (i8) {422) 172 B34 {36) (299)
Year 2007
Cost 1,834 523 4,982 8,160 84 2126 17,709
Accumulated depreciation (1.626) (483) (3.724) (5.826) - (1.79%) (13.454)
Net book value at 31 December 2007 208 40 1,258 PR ] 84 s 4,255
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Property, plant and equipment amounts to 4,255 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 and shows a net decrease
of 179 thousand euros over 31 December 2006.

The item is made up as follows:

Plant and machinery of 208 thousand euros, which decreased by 79 thousand euros and which refers to alarm
and communication systems.

Industrial and commercial equipment of 40 thousand euros, which decreased by a net amount of 18 thousand
euros and which refers to equipment and accessories for setting up stands at shows and fairs and store window
displays.

Leasehold improvements of 1,258 thousand euros, which decreased by 422 thousand euros and which refers to
costs incurred to restructure and adapt the offices in Lungotevere Marzio 11 in Rome,

Electronic machines of 2,334 thousand euros, which have increased by a net amount of 284 thousand euros and
which consists of the costs incurred to purchase electronic equipment, servers and printers.

Chher tangible fixed assets of 331 thousand euros, which have decreased by a net amount of 28 thousand euros
and which refer to furniture, fittings. mopeds and assets of less than 516.46 euros.

At 31 December 2007 a total samount of 84 million euros was deferred for construction in progress, relating to
the rebuilding of certain equipment and restructuring works being carried out at the new offices in Rome.

Investments of 1,371 thousand euros in property, plant and equipment were made during the year, while
depreciation of 1,550 thousand euros was charged.

The annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Impianti ¢ macchinari %-30%
Attrezzature industriali e commerciali
Alri beni materiali:

— Macchine elettoniche d°ufficio 20%
— Mobili e dotazioni d'ufficio 12%
— Automezzi 25%
- Ampdi 15%

p——

Improvements to rented offices are measured initially at cost and are depreciated over the lesser of the residual
term of the rental contract and their estimated future useful lives.

The different depreciation rates used for plant and equipment refer respectively to special communications
systems and alarm systems.

There are no charges or liens on the companies property, plant and equipment.

In addition, there are no restrictions on the company’s ownership of, or title to, property, plant and equipment
that secure its liabilities.

There was no fully depreciated property, plant or equipment still in use at 31 December 2007.

14. Intangible assets

Intangible assets have all been acquired externally and there are no intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives.




The following table sets out an analysis of intangible assets by major category and provides details of the

composition of the item and changes for the year:

(thousands of eurcs)

Concessions and  Indusirial patents Assets under Deferred Total
licences and intellectual formation expenses
property

Year 2004
Cost 15 24,829 1.460 516 26,820
Accumulated amortisation (3 (17,606) - (100) (17,709
Net book value at 31 December 2004 12 7,223 1,460 416 9,111
Changes in 2005
Purchases 70 9.326 2,563 12,259
Reclassifications (2,239) (2,239
Amortisation ] (2,988) (43%) (3,038}
Write-downs (27¢) (270)
Utilisation of accumulated amortisation 65 65
Total changes in 2005 61 6,005 624 {43 6,647
Year 2005
Cost 85 33,885 2,084 516 36,570
Accumutated amortisation (12) 120,527} - (143) (20.682)
Net book value at 31 December 2005 73 13,358 2,084 Rrx] 15,888
Changes in 2006
Purchases 10,122 3.508 13,930
Reclassifications (3,193 (3.193)
Amortisation (10) (4.622) 43 (4,675)
Write-downs -
Utilisation of accumulated amortisation -
Total changes In 2006 (10) 5,500 615 {43 6,062
Year 2006
Cont 85 44007 2.699 516 47.307
Accumulated amortisation 4] (25,149 - {186) (25,357
Net book value at 31 December 2006 63 18,858 2,699 33 21,950
Changes in 2007
Purchases 13,733 673 14,406
Drecreases (117 (1n
Reclassifications 2,086 (2.086) -
Amortisation (10) (6.441) (43) (6.494)
Write-downs -
Utilisation of accumulated amortisation ! 1
Total changes in 2007 () 9,260 (1,413) 43 7.794
Year 2007
Cost BS 59709 1,286 516 61,596
Accumulated amortisation (32) (31,589) - (229) (31.850)
Net book value at 31 December 2007 53 28,120 1,286 287 29,746
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Intangible assets amount to 29,746 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 and show a net increase of 7,794
thousand euros over 31 December 2006.

Amortisation of 6,494 thousand euros was charged during the year while increases amount to16,492 thousand
euros, of which 2,086 thousand euros relates to assets which were under formation at 31 December 2006 and
which entered use during 2007. Increases principally regard “Industrial patents and intellectual property rights”
which rose by 15,819 thousand euros.

“Concessions, trade marks and licences” of 53 thousand euros refer to costs incurred for the purchase of the
creation and design rights to a specific model of watch.

“Industrial patents and intellectual property rights” of 28,120 thousand euros, consist of integrated
applications software rights. Use of this software is also to the benefit of related parties, and is recharged on a
proportional basis under specific agreements,

“Assets under formation and advance paymenis™ of 1,286 thousand euros refer to costs incurred for the
development of integrated applications software regarding procedures that were still at an implementation stage
at the balance sheet date.

“Deferred expenses to be amortised” of 287 thousand euros refer principally to costs incurred in taking over
the lease of new premises for the headquarters and administrative offices in Lungotevere Marzio 11, Rome in
2002.

15. Financial fixed assets

Financial fixed assets may be analysed as follows:

{thousands of euros)

2007 2006

investments in subsidiaries 211,644 190.701
Investments in other companies 138 550
Other non-current financial assets 46 21
Total financizl fixed assets 211,828 191,212




Equity investments
Details of this item are set out in the following table:

Itsvestinents In subsidiaries Percenttage Balance at Increases Decreases Halznce at

ovwned at 311272006 3121007

Jizzom

Bulgari zlia $5.p.A. 100% 22,520 22,520
Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 100% 2.593 2,593
Bulgari Parfums ltalia S.p.A. 100% 2,035 2035
Bulgari Intemnational Cerporation (BIC) N.V. 100% 50,675 50,678
Bulgari {Luxembourg) S.A. 100% - -
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Miluno S.rl. (') 3.25% 244 244
Bulgari Hotels and Resonts B.V. 65% - 830 830
Bulgar Portugal Accessorios de Luxo Lda, 100% 93 93
Bulgari Retail USA S.l. 100% 36,896 10,000 46,896
Crova S.p.A. 100%: 18,969 18,969
Bulgari Accessori S.c.l. 100% 685 3000 3.685
Bulgari Comm. Shanghai Co. Ltd 100% 5973 7013 13.086
Bulgari Holding Europe BY 100% 50,018 50,018
‘Total subsidiaries 190,701 20,943 - 211,644
Opera Sgr S.p.A. 125% 550 412 138
Total other companies 550 - 412 138
‘Total investments 191,251 20,943 412 211,782

1) A company owned indirectly through Buigar Howls & Resorts B.V. as 1 61.75% (95% * 65%., the investment of Butgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. in Bulgari Hotels
& Resont Milano S.r..) and dircctly by Bulgan S.p.A. s to 3.25%.

The total amount of investments in subsidiaries of 211,644 thousand euros increased by a net amount of 20,943
thousand euros over 31 December 2006, due principally to the effect of the capital contributions made to
Bulgari Retail U.S.A. S.r.l.,, Bulgari Commercial Shangai Co. Ltd. and Bulgan Accessori S.r.l. for a total of
20,113 thousand euros, as shown above. These payments were made to provide these companies with adequate
funding to carry out their operations. In addition, 65% of Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. was purchased at a
price of 830 thousand euros; this company holds a 95% investment in Bulgari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.rl..
Finally, the company’s 37.5% holding in the subsidiary Opera SGR S.p.A. was sold at a price of 412 thousand
euros and as a consequence the carrying amount of the investment in this company, amounting to 138 thousand
euros, is classified as investments in other companies.

Bulgari Luxembourg S.A. was formally wound up at the end of December.

The following table sets out a list of direct investments in subsidiaries, the amount of shareholders’ equity held
in each, accounted for using the equity method, and the respective difference with the carrying value. No write-
downs have been made of investments in companies where the company’s share of equity is less than the
carrying amount of the investment as analyses carried out at the end of the year did not evidence any
impairment.

Reference should be made to the Report on Performunce for the list of investments in indirectly held
subsidiaries.




List of direct investments in subsidiaries at 3| december 2007
(thousands of euros)

Share At3l [ocreaws  Decreases At31  Percentage Equity st Net income Corrispos- Equity Carrying Dilference
capital | December Decerbher owned December hoss) ding method amount  {B)=~{A)
2006 2007 3, 1006 for year equity If positive
Subsidiaries: (*)
Buigari ftalia S.p.A. 12.000 22,520 22,520 100% 15,106 5,153y 15,106 15,106 22,520 TAL4
Vi1 dei Condotti, 10 - Rome
Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 2,580 2,593 2593 100% 4815 1,468 4815 4,815 2593
Via Lungotevere Marzio, 1§ - Rome
Btdgari Parfums lmlia S.p.A. 1.020 2035 2035 100% 2,756 9 2756 2.156 2035
Via Lungotevere Marzio, 1t - Rome
Bulgari Retails U.5.A. S.cl. 50 36,896 10.000 46,896 1% 12953 (10897 12953 12,953 46,896
Via Lungotevere Marzio, 11 - Rome
Bulgari fotem. Corp. N. V. 18,301 50,675 50,675 100% 202,873 93617 202873 202873 50,675
WTC Simwinskylaan 113)
Amsterdam (Holland)
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts 100 244 244 325% 385 :5% 13 13 x5! 231
Mitano S.rl.
Via Privata Fratelli Gabba - Milan
Buigari Portugal Acess.de fuxe Lda 93 93 93 100% (1)) (N n (n 93 9
Funchal - Rua Arriaga 30
Mudeira (Portugal)
Crova S.p.A. 2,700 18,969 18969 100% 5,288 1,609 5,288 5288 18,969
Valenza Po (Alessandria)
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 50 685 3,000 3.685 100% 3.043 (49 3043 3041 1,685 642
V:a Le Plessis Robinson, 6/12
Bagno a Ripoli (FE)
Bulgari Comm. (Shanghai) Co. Lid, 3197 3973 1113 13.086 100% 8276 (1,786} 3276 8276 13.086 4,810
Pechino (China)
Bulgari Holding Evrope B.V. i8 50018 50,018 100% 46,668 (3269) 46668 46668 50018 3350
Armsterdam
Batgari Hotels and Resorts B.Y, i} 830 830 65% {2334} (9n (LS (LS 830 2347
Opera SGR 5.p.A. 1,100 550 {550) i} -
Milan
Total subsidiaries 191,151 20,94 {550) 211644
{*) The positive differences shown in this column are deemed not to be of a penmanent nature and therefore the inve in these panies have not been written down.




Other non-current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets at 31 December 2007 amount to 46 thousand euros (21 thousand euros at 31
December 2006) and relate principally to guarantee deposits for rent and various utilities.

16. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation may be analysed as follows:

(thousants of earos}

2007 2006

Defemred tax assets 818 243
Deferred tax liabilities (5,260 {4,165)
‘Total deferred taxation (4,:442) (3,922)

There were net deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2007 of 4,442 thousand euros,

Deferred tax liabilities of 5,260 thousand euros increased by 1,095 thousand euros over the year and arise from
the difference between tax and book accumulated depreciation

Deferred tax assets of 818 thousand euros arise from the unused tax losses of Bulgari S.p.A. and the
subsidiaries which participate in the “Tax Consolidation™ pursuant to the provisions of Legislative Decree no.
344 of 12 December 2003. The increase in the year of 575 thousand euros over 2006 reflects the effect of the
tax losses incurred in 2007,

The following table sets out a calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Temporary Tax effect Tax rate Temporary Tax effect Tax rate
differences differences
Deferred tax Liabilities:
— Fiscal depreciution (*) 15,710 4,933 3 A% 10,224 3309 37.25%
— IAS/IFRS adjustments (TFR) 1,191 327 27.50% 5,080 356 13.00%
‘Total deferred tax liabilities 16,901 5260 11304 4,165
Deferred 1ax assets:
— IFRS adjustments (write-down of
deferred expenses) (384) (o 31.40% (653 {243 37.25%
— Deferred tax assets on tax losses
for the year (2,531 (698) 27.50% - - -
Total deferred tax assets 2921 (818) (653) (243)
Net total 13,980 4,442 10,651 3922

(*) Includes the effect of the tax ¢lean-up.
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17. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets may be analysed as follows:

{thousxids of eutok)

2007 2006

Receivable for requested VAT refunds 6.895 5.766
Accrued interest on VAT receivable 202 133
Total other non-current assets 7,087 5899

Other non-current assets totat 7,097 thousand euros and relate to VAT for which an application for a refund has
been made; there has been an increase of 1,198 thousand euros in the balance over 31 December 2006.
During the year a refund of 1,786 thousand euros was received relating to 2000 VAT and an application was
made for a refund of 2,916 thousand euros regarding 2006 VAT,

18. Non-current financial receivables

This balance amounting to 2,355 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 (2,209 thousand euros at 31 December
2006} refers to subordinated loans made to Bulgari Hotels & Resorts B.V. for a total of 877 thousand euros,
inclusive of accrued interest charged ar a rate of 5.50% (787 thousand euros at 31 December 2006), and to
Buigari Hotels & Resorts Milano S.r.1, for a total of 1518 thousand euros, inclusive of accrued interest charged
at a floating rate of three-month EURIBOR plus 3% (1,422 thousand euros at 31 December 2006), granted in
connection with agreements made with the Marriott Group.

The carrying amount of non-financial receivables reflects their fair value as they include the interest accrued on
the capital.

19. Inventory

This balance amounts to 9,509 thousand euros (8,412 thousand euros at 31 December 2006), an increase of
1,097 thousand euros, and consists of the costs incurred to set up the collection of jewellery and watches known
as the “Bvlgari Museum”, purchased from third parties and Group companties and representative of present and
past Bulgari production.

The increase is due to the purchases made in 2007 to enrich this collection further.

20. Trade receivables
Trade receivables may be analysed as follows:
{thousanch of eizros)

2007 2006
Third party trade receivables 5.261 5355
Provision for bad debits (67) 67)
Total 5,194 5288
Related party trade receivables 48,686 45,763
Total trade receivables 53,880 51,051

There have been no changes in the provision for bad debts during the year.

Trade receivables are all due within one year and are stated at fair value.




Third party trade receivables

This balance amounts to 5,194 thousand euros (5,288 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) and consists
entirely of receivables falling due within one year and relating mostly to royalties earned with the licensees of
the BVLGARI trademark. There was a decrease of 94 thousand euros in this item over the year, which is
presented in the above table net of a provision for bad debts of 67 thousand euros. No additions were made to
the provision in 2006.

Related party trade receivables

Trade receivables of 48,686 thousand euros relate mostly to receivables for royalties earned from licensing the
trademark and show an increase of 2,923 thousand euros over the balance at 31 December 2006.

The following table sets out these trade receivables by individual refated party:

{thoosands of euros)

2007 2006

Bulgari lalia 5.p.A. 2732 2474
Bulgari Giodelli 5.p.A. 622 825
Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. 36 5
Bulgari Corporation of America Inc. 66 58
Bulgari Time S.A. 448 391
Bulguri Japan Lad. 5.365 6.378
Bulgari S.A. 612 583
Bulgari Deutschland GmbH 588 587
Bulgani France S.a.s. 740 616
Bulgari Montecarlo S.A.M., 105 99
Bulgari Espana 5.A. 957 908
Bulgari Parfums §.A. 5,769 5581
Bulgari Parfums ltalia S.p.A. 289 340
Bulgai Jewels S.A. - 45
Bulgari South Asiun Operutions Pre. Lid. 420 363
Bulgari UK. Ltd. 648 554
Bulgari Belgium S.A. 63 63
Bulgari Australia Pty Lid. 249 21
Bulgari Malaysia Sdn Bhd 138 B3
Bulgari Global Operntion S.A. 19,515 18.003
Bulgari Collection [nternational S.A. 3.509 2412
Bulgari Operational Service A.p.S. - 23
Bulgar Asia Pacific Ltd. 926 673
Bulgar Taiwan Ltd. 546 402
Bulgari Korea Lid. 415 519
Bulgari Saint Barth S.a.s. 37 125
Bulgari Parfums Germany GmbH 21 1
Crova S.p.A. 206 64
Bulgari Retail USA S.r.l. 2429 2,497
LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.a.rl. 7 133
Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai) Company Ltd. 812 314
Bulgari Asia Pacific (Macau Branch) Lid, 70 -
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l, 142 20
Bulgari Austria GmbH 52 18
Bulguri Thailand Lid. 43 27
Opera SGR Lda. - 4
Bulgari Parfums Iberia 28 -
Bulgari Holding Europe B.V. - 18
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.r.l. 72 158
Bulguri Hotels and Resorts Japan Lid. 9 177
Total trade receivables from Group companles 48,686 45,763
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The following table sets out trade receivables by geographical area:

{thousands of eeroc)
Itaty Other EU Rest of America Middle Far Other Total
countries Europe East Euast
Trade receivables:
~ third parties 2638 226 259 236 1,319 537 46 5.261
- related parties 4,062 KRE]] 29.965 253 - 8,745 249 48,686
Total trade receivables 6,700 3357 30,224 1,70 L399 9,282 295 53,947

21. Financial assets

Financial assets consist of receivables from related parties of 75,253 thousand euros, a decrease of 9,858
thousand euros over the balance at 31 December 2006. The receivables are all due within one year and mainly
consist of Italian subsidiary intercompany current account balances deriving from the Group's centratised
treasury management and short-term loans to subsidiaries. It is recalled that in 2004 Bulgari S.p.A. entered a
European centralised treasury management agreement with an important bank and with Bulgari Global
Operations S.A.. Under this agreement, a part of the Group’s liguidity is managed by Bulgari Global Operations
S.A. through intercompany current accounts held with certain European companies of the Group. An average
interest rate of 2.80% was charged on these accounts during 2007,

The following table provides an analysis by company of financial receivables from related parties at

31 December 2007:

(thousambs of cunm)
2007 2006
Bulgari Italia S.p.A. 50,249 38,925
Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 10,103 13,504
Bulgari Parfums Tlia S.p.A. 2.966 3.195
Bulgari Retail USA S.r.l, 399 3.768
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l. 6,147 1,229
Bulgari Global Operations S.A. - 286
Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai) Ltd. 1,698 1898
Bulgari Operational Services A.p.S. - 2,589
Total financial receivables from Group companies 71,562 65,394
22. Other current assets
Other current assets may be analysed as follows:
{thousaads of eans)
2007 2006
Tax receivables 14,981 8159
Other third party current assefs 3511 1,318
Other related party current assets 16,246 16,658
33,738 26,155

Total other current assets




)

Tax receivables
Tax receivables may be analysed as follows:
{thousands of etros)

007 2006
IRES receivables 4,566 4401
IRES advances 3.280 -
VAT receivables 6,090 3,087
Withholding tax receivubles on income produced abroad 537 559
Various tax receivables 453 42
Tax receivables as per law no. 662/96 55 70
Total tax receivables 14,981 8,159

Tax receivables at 31 December 2007 have increased by 6,822 thousand euros over the balance at the end of

the previous year. The year end balance is mainly made up of the following items:

— IRES receivables of 4,566 thousand euros consisting of prior year balances;

- IRES advances of 3,280 thousand euros;

— VAT receivables of 6,090 thousand euros, which represent the current receivable and the Group VAT
seftlement receivable;

— withholding tax receivables of 5337 thousand euros for withholding tax on income preduced abroad,
comprising the receivable due from the tax authorities for withholding tax paid abroad on the royalty income
earned by the company.

Other third party current assets

The balance of 2,511 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, which represents an increase over the year of 1,173
thousand euros, consists principally of prepaid third party expenses of 848 thousand euros (841 thousand euros
at 31 December 2006) arising from the prepayment of rental instalments, insurance premiums and maintenance
and hire instalments, advances to suppliers of 339 thousand euros (236 thousand euros at 31 December 2006),
receivables from social security organisations of 933 thousand euros and minor balances.

Receivables from social security organisations include a receivable of 929 thousand euros from the Italian national
soctal security body INPS to which the increase over 31 December 2006 is mainly due; an equal balance is
recognised as a payable under “Employee benefit plans”. This amount represents the portion of the employees’
leaving entitlement, the TFR, which following the “Pension Reform™ is considered to be a defined contribution plan.

Other related party current assets
Other related party current receivables may be analysed as follows:

(nisnds of )

2007 2006

Advances to suppliers - 7
VAT receivable as fiscal representative 2i9 215
Receivables for transfers of Group VAT 10,516 10516
Tax consolidation receivables 5,408 5,715
Intercompany accrued income 103 &5
Total other related party current receivables 16,246 16,658

This balance, which has decreased by 412 thousand euros over 31 December 2006, consists mainly of the VAT
receivables of 4,910 thousand euros from Bulgari Parfums Italia S.p.A. and an amount of 5,606 thousand euros
due from Bulgan Italia S.p.A. for the payables transferred as part of the Group VAT settlement.
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The tax consolidation receivables refer to transfers for IRES taxation made by the subsidiartes taking part in
the National Tax Consolidation scheme, as provided by prevailing tax regulations. The following table provides
a detail by company of these receivables:

(thousands of curos}

2007 2006

Bulgari ltalia S.p.A. - 1,095
Bulgari Gioielli 5.p.A. 1,137 894
Bulgari Parfums Italia S.p.A. 734 430
Crova S.p.A. 3.200 3273
Bulgari Accesson S.rl. 337 83
Total tax consolidation receivables 5,408 5,775

The VAT of 219 thousand euros receivable as a fiscal representative relates to the VAT payable transferred from
Bulgari Parfums S.A..

23. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents may be analysed as follows:

(housznds of curus)

2007 2006

Bank deposits 462 3.617
Cush and valuables on hand 17 10
Total cash and cash equivalents 479 3627

Cash and cash equivalents amount to 479 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, a decrease of 3,148 thousand
euros over the balance at 31 December 2006.

24. Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity may be analysed as follows:

{thousands of euros)

2007 2006

Share capital 21,621 20,970
Part of capital for treasury shares owned (56) -
Total capital net of treasury shares 20,965 20,970
Reserves 137,152 137.695
Retained earnings (losses) 9,998 17,021
Net income (loss) for the year 51425 79.854
Total shareholders’ equity 219,540 255,540

Share capital

Share capital at 31 December 2007 consisted of 300,293,560 shares each of par value (.07 euros, fully
subscribed and paid, amounting in total to 21,021 thousand euros. A total of 719,500 new ordinary shares were
issued during the year in connection with the stock option plans reserved for certain employees with the
resulting increase of 51 thousand euros in share capital.




The amount of 56 thousand euros shown as a reduction in the table represents the part of share capital relating
to the 800,000 treasury shares held in portfolio at the end of the year.

Reserves
Reserves may be analysed as follows:
(thousands of curm)
2007 2006
Legal reserve 5,762 5.762
Taxed extraordinary reserve 28 28
Gain on 198 Iconiribution reserve 1.933 1,933
Taxed reserve1983 145 145
Reserve for gains on sale of treasury shares 2,384 1,808
Share premium reserve i20.614 123,658
Stock option reserve 6,286 4,361
Total reserves 137,152 137,695

The decrease for the year of 543 thousand euros arises from the following changes in the individual reserves:

— reserve for gains on sale of treasury shares: the balance of 2,384 thousand euros represents the gain realised
on the sale of treasury shares during the year and has increased by 576 thousand euros;

— share premium reserve: the decrease of 3,044 thousand euros is due to the combined effect of a net decrease
of 7,979 thousand euros from the purchase and sale of treasury stock and an increase anising from the above-
mentioned issue of 719,500 new shares;

— stock options reserve: the increase of 1,926 thousand euros represents the cost recognised in the income
statement in 2007 (4,361 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) for the stock options on Bulgari S.p.A.
shares granted to employees and the Managing Director, which are measured at their fair value at the grant
date.

Retained earnings (losses)

Retained earnings amounted to 9,998 thousand euros at 31 December 2007. The decrease of 7,023 thousand
euros relates principally to the distribution to shareholders of residual retained earnings relating to 2001 and the
whole of 2007 profits. A dividend of 0.29 euros per share was distributed in May 2007.
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Classification of reserves at 31 December 2007 according to their availability for use

Natureidescriptlon Amount Availabitly Amount Summary of usage
for use avallable itr the three prior tiscal years
To ahsorh Te pay
lasses dividends

Share capital 20,965
Capital reserves:
- Treasury shares sales gain reserve 2,384 A.B.C 2,384
— Stock options reserve 6,286 - -
— Share premium reserve 120,614 A B C 120,614

Revenue reserves:

- Legal reserve 5,762 B -

- Extraordinary reserve 28 A, B, C 28

— Taxed reserve 145 A.B.C 145

~ Gain on contribution reserve 1,933 C 1,933

~ Retained camnings 9998 A B, C 4,893 30,261
Total 129,997 30,261
Amount not available for distribution 2,384

Remainder available for distribution 127,613

Key:

Al for capital increases,
B: to absorb losses.
C: for distribution to shareholders.

(1) Of which 7,023 thousand eurons in 2007, 14,416 thotusand ewos in 2006 aod 3,821 thousand euros in 2005,

Ner income (loss) for the yvear

Net income for 2007 amounts to 51,425 thousand euros. Dividends received from subsidiaries contributing to
this result totalled 52,832 thousand euros and relate to Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V., Bulgari
Gioielli S.p.A. and Crova S.p.A.. Reference should be made to note 9 for details of these dividends.

25, Provisions
Provisions may be analysed as follows:
(thoosands of curn)
2007 2006
Provisions for fiscal risks 514 514
Provisions for miscellaneous risks 557 454
Total provisions 1,071 968

The provision for fiscal risks consists of a prudent accrual made in respect of formal notifications for
adjustments to taxable income for fiscal years 1988 and 1989, which are curvently the subject of dispute with
the tax authorities. These disputes are still pending resolution following appeals made by the authorities to the
Supreme Court.




The provision for miscellaneous risks which at 31 December 2007 amounted to 557 thousand eurovs, an increase
of 103 thousand euros compared to 31 December 2006, refers to accruals made for disputes and litigation with
former employees for which the risk of losing is considered probable. More specifically an amount of 218
thousand euros of the fund was used in 2007 and additionat accruats of 321 thousand euros were made at year
end.

(thousands of curos)

Batance at 31/12/1006 Increases Decreases Balance st 3/112007

Provision for miscellaneous risks 454 k| 218) 557

26. Trade payables

Trade payables may be analysed as follows:

{thousands of curcs)

2007 2006

Third punty trade payables 15,569 12,946

Related purty rade payables 14,867 15,804

Total trade payables 30,436 28,750

Third party trade payables

Third party trade payables amounted to 15,569 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, an increase of 2,623
thousand euros over the balance at 31 December 2006. The balance represents payables of a commercial nature
and includes amounts for invoices to be received that relate to the year.

Related party trade payables

Related party trade payables amounted to 14,867 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, a decrease of 937
thousand euros over the balance at the end of the previous year.

The amount includes payables to subsidiaries for invoices to be received that relate to the year.
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The following table provides an analysis of this

item:

(thoyranda of euron}

2007 2006
Bulgari [talia S.p.A. 860 B28
Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 29 L
Bulgari International Corporation (BIC) N.V. 559 46
Bulgari Corporation of America Inc. 153 170
Bulgari Japan Ltd. 1.554 1.526
Bulgari 5.A. 9 6
Bulguri Deutschiand GmbH 693 809
Bulgari France S.a.s. - 605
Bulgari Montecarlo S.AM. 525 -
Bulgari Espana $.A, 52 47
Bulgari Parfums S.A. 2 3
Bulgari Parfums ltalia S.p.A. - -
Bulgari Seuth Asitn Operations Pte. Lid. 17 57
Bulgari U.K. Lid. 2,305 2,498
Bulgari Belgium S.A. 3 -
Bulgari Australia Pry Lid. 107 101
Bulgari Malaysia Sdn Bhd 2 18
Bulgari Global Operations S.A. 442 174
Daniel Roth et Gérnld Genta Haute Horologerie 5.A. - -
Bulgari Asia Pacific Ltd. 449 464
Bulgari Taiwan Lid. 260 421
Bulgari Korea Ltd. 512 302
Bulgan Saint Barth - 9
Bulgari Parfums Germany GmbH 1 -
Crova S.p.A. 1,081 58
Bulgari Retail USA Sxl. 3,459 6,617
Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai} Company Lid. 265 9
Bulgari Accesson S.rl. 872 292
Bulgari Austria GmbH 22 -
Bulgari Thailand Lid. 36 -
Bulgari Hotels und Resorts B.V, | -
Bulgari Hotels und Resorts Milano S.r.l. 1 13
Bulgari Hotels und Resorts Japan Lid. 8 -
Total trade payables to related parties 14867 15804




The following table provides an analysis of payables by geographical area:
{thousamds of euros)

1taly Other EU Other Anwerica Middbe and Other Total
countries Europe Far Enst

Payables:
‘Third party suppliers
Related parties: 13,823 798 614 278 56 15569
— Irading 2,843 4,113 969 3612 3,223 107 14,867
— financial 2,130 18,500 34,050 54,680
Total related parties 4,973 22,613 35,019 3612 3,223 17 69,547
Other payables 5,830 5 7.031 12,866
Total 24 626 23416 35633 10,921 3279 107 97,982

27. Current financial payables

Current financial payables may be analysed as follows:
{tursanuls of curos)

007 2006
Third party financial payables 81,298 ‘ 193
Bank overdrafts 8,218 1,898
Related party financial payables 54,680 66,645
Total current financiat payables 144,196 ‘ 68,736

Current financial payables amounted to 144,196 thousand euros at 31 December 2007, an increase of 75,460
thousand euros over the balance at 31 December 2006.

Third party financial payables relate mostly to short-term loans taken out with various banks having a series of
repayment dates, totalling 81,298 thousand euros (193 thousand euros at 31 December 2006) and bearing
interest at an average of 4.91%.

Bank overdrafts relate to current accounts held by the company at 31 December 2007 and amount to 8,218
thousand euros (1,898 thousand euros at 31 December 2006).

Related party financial payables, which have decreased by 11,965 thousand euros over the balance at the end
of the previous year, consist principaliy of a loan of 18,500 thousand euros from Bulgan International
Corporation (BIC) N.V,, repayable on 30 June 2008 and bearing interest at 4.668%, and of a loan of 37 million
Swiss francs (equivalent to 32,360 thousand euros) from Bulgari Global Operations S.A., repayable on 30 June
2008 and bearing interest at 2.95%. This latter loan was repaid in advance in January 2008 by using the funds
received from the billing of royalties for the second half of 2007. Related party financial payables also include
payable balances of 3,818 thousand euros on intercompany current accounts arising from the centralised
treasury management, of which 1,689 thousand euros relates to Bulgari Global Operations S.A. and 2,129
thousand euros to Crova S.p.A..

189




28. Strumenti finanziari derivati

The following table provides an analysis by type of the notional value and fair value of derivatives at 31

December 2007:
{thousands of curos)
Notlonal vatue Fair value Notional fatr vatue
3/ roat 3122006 /122007 U206 Difference Difference
Cash Flow Hedge Derivatives
- Foreign Exchange 160 273 9 {H 87 10
Fair value Hedge Derivatives
- Foreign Exchange 22,361 23,680 76 (168) (1.319) 44
Total 22,721 23,953 85 (16%9) (1,232) 254

Fair value - sensitivity analysis

The fair value of currency derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was 8,680 thousand euros at 31 December
2007. An unfavourable change of 10% in the spot foreign exchange rate alone compared to the official exchange
rates at 31 December 2007, applicable to all currencies, would have led to a total negative theoretical fair value
of 31,213 thousand euros. Vice versa, a favourable change of 10% in exchange rates would have led to a profit
of 41,319 thousand euros. This sensitivity analysis excludes outstanding derivatives at 31 December 2007 for
which there are receivables and payables recognised in the financial statements. Any changes in the values of
these balances arising from exchange rate trends would be equal and opposite to the changes in value of the
derivatives designated as hedges, with a corresponding nil effect on the result.

Derivatives transactions entered into for treasury purposes, meaning the hedging of financial receivables and
payables in foreign currency through fair value hedges, are excluded from the fair value sensitivity analysis for
the same reason.

Currency hedging
The company is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the rates of exchange with its functional currency. Its
principal exposure is to the Swiss franc, the Japanese yen and the US dollar.

In order to reduce this risk, the net foreign currency exposure arising from trade receivables and payables is
held to an acceptable level by entering derivative contracts (principally forward contracts and residually option
contracts) having terms not exceeding 12 months.

Determination of fair value

Derivative contracts are measured at market value (marked to market) by using quoted prices if they are listed
or by discounting future cash flows and comparing these to current market prices. The term market value refers
to official fixings (by central banks and associations of banks) or quotations made by brokers as published by
providers of financial information. Fair value models also use these quotations as references.
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29. Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities may be analysed as follows:

{thousancs of earos)

2007 2006

Advances 2 -

Payable for current taxation 52 . 2i8

‘Third party other current liabilities 10,117 8.011

Related party other current liabilities 12,866 10,514

Total other current liabilities 23,037 18,503
Advances

Advances amount to 2 thousand euros at 31 December 2007. There was a nil balance at 31 December 2006.

Payable for current taxation
The balance on this item at 31 December 2007 of 52 thousand euros relates entirely to the accrual for the IRAP
tax charge for the year of 1,602 thousand euros net of advances paid of 1,550 thousand euros.

Third party other current liabilities
Third party other current liabilities may be analysed as follows:

{thouasnds of ewros)

1007 2006

Due to personnel for wages und salaries 3407 2,940
Due to directors and statutory auditors 1,618 1,577
Due to sociul security and pensions organisations , 1,341 947
Charges on wages and salaries 10 be paid 870 7719
Due to tax authorities for IRPEF personal taxation 900 681
VAT payable on fiscal representative Bulgari Parfums S.A. 219 275
Payable to shareholders for dividends 238 238
Other payables 976 334
Accrued expenses 548 40
‘Total third party other current liabilities 10,117 8,011

Amounts payable to personnel at 31 December 2006 total 3,407 thousand euros, an increase of 467 thousand
eurvus. The balance relates to deferred remuneration consisting of the accruals made for leave not yet taken,
fourteenth month’s wages and salaries, incentive bonuses and the accrual for the employees’ leaving entitlement
on these amounts.

Amounts payable to directors and statutory auditors of 1,618 thousand euros increased by 41 thousand euros
over 31 December 2006 and regard accrued emoluments payable to the members of the company’s managing
and control bodies for 2007.

Amounts payable to social security and pensicns organisations amount to 1,34} thousand euros, all payable
within one year, and retate to the portions of social security contributions payable by the company, by its
employees and by its self-employed collaborators, due on wages, salaries and compensation paid in December
2007. The contributions were paid over in January 2008.

Social security contributions to be paid on wages and salaries amount to 870 thousand euros, an increase of 91
thousand euros. This balance relates to the company’s portion of social security contributions to be paid on
deferred remuneration,
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Personal taxation (IRPEF) payables amount to 900 thousand euros, an increase of 219 theusand over 31
December 2006. The balance relates to withholdings of personal tax in December 2007 on wages and salaries
and compensation paid to collaboraters and self-employed workers. This liability was settled normally in
January 2008.

VAT of 219 thousand euros payable as fiscal representative of Bulgari Parfums S.A. represents the outstanding
VAT balance at 31 December 2007 as fiscal representative for that company. At 31 December 2006 there was
a VAT payable of 275 thousand euros.

Dividends of 238 thousand euros payable to shareholders regard declared dividends not yet collected by
shareholders.

Other payables of 976 thousand euros consist mainly of payables and accruvals relating to the emoluments of
members of corporate bodies, payables for employee travel expenses and commissions and fees to be settled
with the securities depositary Monte Titoli,

Accrued expenses of 548 thousand euros at 31 December 2007 consist entirely of interest accrued to the end
of 2007. '

Related party other current liabilities
Related party other current liabilities may be anatysed as follows:
(thwusands of euroe)

2007 2006
Payable for ransfers of Group VAT 1,190 2976
Tax consolidation payables 8.627 7,500
Related party deferred income 37 38
Other payables to related parties 3012 -
Total related party other current liabilities 11,866 10,514

The payable for transfers of Group VAT amounts to 1,190 thousand euros, representing a decrease of 1,786
thousand euros over the year. This item consists of VAT receivables yet to be refunded by the tax authorities
which have been transferred by ltalian subsidiaries as part of the Group VAT settlement. The decrease in the
year is due to the receipt from the authorities by Bulgari Italia S.p.A. of a refund of the VAT receivable and
interest relating to 2000.

The tax consolidation payables of 8,627 thousand euros increased by 1,127 thousand euros over 31 December
2006. These relate to the transfer of unused tax losses, net of advance tax paid, by the Italian companies taking
part in the National Tux Consolidation scheme.

Other payables to related parties relate mainly to the amount due in connection with a capital contribution of 3
million euros made to Bulgan Accessori S.r.l. which was paid over in January 2008.

The following table provides an analysis by company of related party other current liabilities:

(rhwmsands of eurns)

2007 2006

Bulgori lalia S.p.A. 2,760 3257
Bulgari Gioelli 5.p.A. 38 1,03¢
Bulgari France §.A. 5 -
Bulgari Retail USA S.rl 7.031 6,222
Bulgar Accesson S.cl, 7 -
Bulgari Hotels and Resons Milano S.r.l. 5 5
Total other current payables to Group companies 12,866 10,514
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30. Guarantees, commitments and other contingent liabs,

2007 1006
Guarantees pledged
Sureties pledged for subsidiaries 104,700 110,016
Lease instalments not yet due 13.723 12,797
Total guarantees pledged 118,423 : 122,813
Guarantees received
Sureties pledged by subsidiaries 3.829 2424
Sureties pledged by third parties 31,547 28.100
Total guarantees received 35376 30,524
Other:
Other commitments 22,018 20,665
Total other 22018 20,665
Total memorandum tecounts 175,817 174,002

This item relates to guarantees pledged against amounts payable to banks and other obligations and against
other commitments undertaken by the company with third parties, There has been an overall increase of 1,815
thousand euros in the item over the year.

“Guarantees pledged” refer to sureties given to banks in favour of related parties for credit facilities granted to
them.

The following table sets out an analysis of this item by related party:

(thorsands, of ean)

2007 2006

Bulgari Italia S.p.A. 6,909 5,582
Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A. 11,468 14,968
Bulgari Corporation of America [nc. 11,548 32,329
Bulgari Jupan Led. 15,158 15931
Bulgari France S.A. 1,759 6,436
Bulgari Espana 5.A. 2,000 2,000
Bulgari South Asian Operations Pre, Lid. 2,835 -
Bulgari U.K. Ltd. 2,454 6,36)
Bulgari Australia Pty Ltd. 3,000 3.012
D, Roth & G, Gents Haute Horlogerie S.A. 1,209 -
Bulgari Asia Pacific Lid. 3,000 -
Bulgari Taiwan Ltd. 10,723 11,810
Bulgari Retil USA Sl 510 569
LB Diamonds & Jewelry S.arl 5,774 6,454
Prestige D'or §.A, 616 635
Bulgari Commereial (Shanghai) Company Lid, 10.000 1.000
Bulgari Accessori S.r.l, - 100
Bulgari Thailand Lid. 5,708 -
Bulgari Panama Inc. 1359 ' -
Bulgari Hotels and Resorts Milano S.rl. 2.670 2.827
Total guarantees pledged to Group companies 104,700 110,016
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Lease instalments not yet due of 13,723 thousznd euros relate to the instalments payable by the company for
renting its headquarters and administrative offices and those payable for the long-term hire of company cars.
The increase is mostly due to the renewal of the rental agreement for the Lungotevere Marzio offices.

The following table sets out the due dates of these instalments:

(thousands. of esros)
Instalments faiting due in (years) Within 1 1ta$ Bevond 5 Total
135 10,288 3.300 13,723

Guarantees received totalling 35,376 thousand euros consist of the following:

— related party lease instalments not yet due of 3.829 thousand euros, which more specifically regard Bulgari
Italia S.p.A., Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A., Bulgart Parfums Italia S.p.A. and Bulgari Retail U.S.A. S.rl;

— sureties pledged by third parties regarding guarantees given by banks to third parties. These relate mainly
to sureties in favour of the tax authorities for VAT refunds, sureties in favour of the customs authorities
for the temporary importation of goods and sureties in favour of lessors as guarantees for lease
agreements.

“Other commitments™ of 22,018 thousand euros regard unexpired financial agreements for hedging the
exchange risk deriving from receivables and payables in currency which were outstanding at 31 December
2007.

J1. Significant non-recurring transactions

The company has not carried out any significant non-recurring transactions during the year ended 31 December
2007 as the term is defined by Consob in its Communication of 28 July 2006.

32. Abnormal and unusual transactions

The company has not carried out any abnormal or unusual transactions in the year ended 31 December 2007 as

the term is defined by Consaob in its Communication of 28 July 2006,

Summary of trading, financial and miscellaneous transactions and balances with related parties as of and for
the year ended 31 December 2007

ithousads of euros)
Nature Recelvables % Payables %
Royalties for trademark licensing 37.865 21.7% - -
Services 9,667 T 1% 12,218 14.8%
Goods und products not intended for sale - - 1,632 20%
Financial 72716 53.3% 55,710 67.6%
Group VAT settlement 10,735 79% 1,190 1. 4%
Tax consolidation 5,408 4.0% 8,627 10.5%
Other 103 0.1% 3,037 37%
Total 136,494 10.0% 82414 100.0%
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{thousands of earoe)
Nature Inceme R Expense %
Royalties for wademark licensing 68,492 49.5% - -
Information services 5182 4.2% - -
Technical and administrutive services 1,258 0.9% - -
Legal, fiscal and design services 399 0.3% - -
Interest, commissions and financial income/expense 3.92i 2.8% 1,716 8.3%
Research and development/protorypes and models - - 1,551 5%
Subletting of premises 451 0.3% 1 0.1%
Other income/expense 2499 1.8% 922 44%
Income/expense from tax consolidation 2,788 2.0% 5,829 28.1%

Dividends
Advertising subsidies

52,832 38.2% - -
- - 10.750 51.7%

Total

138,422 100.0% 0,779 100.0%

There were no additional transactions with refated parties as the term is defined in Consob Communication no.
2064231 of 30 September 2002, other than those described.

At 31 December 2007 the company had 13 direct holdings in companies (of which 5 having their registered
offices outside Italy) and 37 indirect holdings, ali with their registered offices outside Italy.

33. Information pursuant to article 149-duodecies of the Consob Regulations for Issuers

The following table, which has been prepared pursuant to article 149-duodecies of the Consob Regulations for
Issuers, sets out the fees relating to 2007 for auditing services and services other than audit rendered by the
auditing company and by members of its network.

(thonsands of curos)
Type of service Provided by Provided to Fees 2007
Audit KPMG S.p.A. Bulgari S.p.A. 121.6
Tux advisory services KPMG S.p.A. Bulgan S.p.A. 36
Other services KPMG S.p.A. Bulgari $.p.A. (") 11.5

{1) Kimberley Process compliance,

Bulgari S.p.A.
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Paolo Bulgari
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Summary of key data for directly held subsidiaries

Bulgan ltalia S.p.A.
Registered office: Rome

Bulgari Gioielli S.p.A.
Registered office: Rome

Share capital: euro 12,000,000 Share capital: euro 2,580,000

Key Mgures in thousands of enros: INZ200T  IV122006 Key flzures in thousands of euros: V122007 31/122006
Revenues from sales and services 83.307 88.821 Revenues from sales and services 68,581 60,901
Personnel costs 9,368 8,322 Personnel costs 2537 4,741
Deprectation and amortisation 3181 3.099 Depreciation and amortisation 153 117
Financial income (expensc), net (2.557) {1,858} Financial income {expense), nct (20) (551)
Net income (loss) (51811 (744} Net income (loss) 1,468 44
Investments in fixed assets 3,146 5375 Investments in fixed assets 479 169
Intangible assets 5.283 5.970 Intangible ussets 124 147
Property, plant and equipment 16.631 15,446 Property, plant and equipment 549 264
Cash (borrowings), net (50024 (3217 Cash (borrowings). net (10.018)  (11.241)
Shareholders' equity 15,106 20,259 Shareholders’ equity 4.8i5 4,418
Bulgari Parfums [talia 5.p.A. Bulgari Intemarionl Corp. (BIC) N.V.

Registered office: Rome Registered office: Amsterdam

Share capital: euro 1,020,000 Share capital: euro 18,301,200

Key fzures in thousands of ettros: IIz2007  IV1L2006 Key fizures in thousands of euros: MAZ0T  31/122006
Revenues from sales and services 32,610 29,548 Dividends 4,152 43,944
Personnel costs 1.374 1.191 Other general and adminstrative costs 1,288 710
Depreciation and amortisation 51 90 Financial income {expense}, net 1,881 168
Financial income (expense}, net (100) (78) Net income (loss) 93,617 92.289
Net income (loss) 469 313 Invessments in fixed assets - -
investments in fixed assets 238 44 Financial fixed assets 143,292 129,080
Intangible assets 1% 29 Other long-term invesiments 241 367
Property, plant and equipimnent 133 135 Write-ups (write-downs) of equity investments - -
Cash (borrowings}, net (2,910} (3,181 Cash (borrowings), net (9.522) (10.656)
Sharcholders’ equity 2,756 2,288 Shareholders” equity 202,873 158,316
Bulguri Portugal Acessorios de Luxo Lda Bulgari Retail USA S.rl.

Repistered office: Funchal (Madeiru) Registered office: Rome

Share capital: euro 92,873 Share capital: euro 50,000

Key figures in thousands of euros: V122007 311272006 Key Mptres In thausands of euros: IVIZI00T  MAL2006
Revenues from sales and services - - Revenues from safes and services 82032 61,146
Service costs 7 2 Personnel costs £5.709 12,996
Bepreciation and amortisation - - Depreciation and amortisation - -
Financial income (expense), net - () Financial income (expense), net {941) {565}
Net income (loss) (7} 23 Net income {loss) (10,897 (7.479)
Investments in fixed assets - - lnvestments in fixed assets - -
Intangible assets - - Imangible assets - -
Property, plant and equipment - - Property, plant and equipment - -
Cash (borrowings), net - 6 Cush (borrowings), net 3.553 (2,801)
Sharcholders’ equity h 6 Sharcholders’ equity 12,953 14,639




Bulgari {Luxembourg} S.A. Crova 5.p.A,

Registered office: Luxembourg Registered office: Valenza (Alessandria)

Share capital: eurc 100,000 Share capital: euro 2,700,000

Key figures in thousands of euros: 31/1272007 317122006 Key figutes in thousands of evros: IN2200T 3122006

Revenues from sales and services - - Revenues from sales and services 35402 35,407

Service costs 19 10 Personnel costs 13,155 11,764

Depreciution, umortisation and other gen.costs 17 7 Depreciation and amortisation 972 864

Financial income (expense}, net - - Financial income {expense). net 92 44

Wet income (loss) (13) {n Net income (loss) 1.609 3.06%

Investments in fixed assets - - Investments in fixed assets 1.137 2014

Intangible assets - 17 Intangible assets k){] 418

Property, plant and equipment - - Property, plant and equipment 4,695 4428

Cash (borrowings), net - - Cash (borrowings), net 2,200 (6.271)

Sharcholders’ equity 834 857 Shareholders® equity 5,288 6,379

Bulgar Hotels and Resons Milano S.r.l. Bulgari Accessori S.r.l.

Registered office: Rome Registered office: Bagno a Ripoli {Florence}

Share capital: euro 100,000 Share capital: euro 50,000

Key Rgures in thousands of euros: 311272007 3AN22006 Key {igures In thousands of curos: 3VINZ00T 22006

Revenues from sales and services 19,630 17,202 Revenues from sales and services 10,921 3368

Personne! costs 4,370 4339 Personnel costs 1.567 802

Depreciation and amortisation 673 752 Depreciation and amortisation 15 52

Financial income (cxpensc), net (250) (289) Financial income {expense), net {206} (38)

Net income (loss) 84 {1,107y Net income (loss) (49) 297

Investments in fixed assets 160 929 [nvestments in fixed assets 1.797 40

Intangible assets 2017 2,846 [ntangible assets 12 -

Property, plant and equipment 3s 920 Property. plant and equipment 1814 44

Cash (borrowings}), net - (352 Cash {borrowings), net 2 1

Sharcholders” equity 385 1,408 Shareholders’ equity 3.043 93

Bulgari Commercial (Shanghai} Co. Lad. Bulgari Holding Europe B.Y.

Registered office: Beijing Registered office: Amsterdam

Share capial: USD 17,000,000 Share capital: euro {8,000

Key figures in thousands of euros: MAL00T 31112006 Key fgures (n thousands of euros: MA00T 3171272006

Revenues from sales and services 16.775 5.142 Dividends L -

Service costs 2,636 1519 Onher general and adminstrative costs 48 12

Depreciation, amortisation and other gen.costs 2,861 [.748 Financial income {expense), net 13.221) (69)

Financial income {expense), net (122) 28 Net income (loss) {3.269) (81)

Net income {loss} 1.786 2507 Investments in fixed assets - -

Invesiments in fixed ussets 4,297 2079 Financial fixed assets 125,926 104,100

Intangible assets 53 ] Other long-term investments - -

Property, plant and equipment 5.267 1,783 Write-ups (write-downs} of equity

Cash {bommowings). net (2,732) £1.293) investments - -

Shareholders® equity 8.276 3375 Cash (borrowings), net {78,087)  (50.652)
Shareholders® equity 46,668 49,937

Bulgar Hotels and Resorts B.V.

Registered office: Amsterdom

Share capital: euro 18,000

Key Agures in thousands of eyros: /1272007 272006

Revenues from sales and services -

Service costs -

Depreciation, amortisation and other gen.costs 44 47

Financial income (expense), net (153 (1.144)

Net income (loss) (197) (1,19

[nvestments in fixed assets - -

[ntangible assels - -

Property, plant and equipment - -

Cash (bomrowings), net - -

Shareholders’ equity (2,334) (2,138)
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Representation on the annual financial statements pursuant to article 8-ter of Consob
Regulation no. | 1971 of 14 May 1999 as subsequently amended and supplemented

L. The undersigned Francesco Trapani, in his capacity as managing director, and Alberto Nathansohn, in his
capacity as manager-in-charge of the preparation of the accounting records of Bulgari S.p.A., represent,
taking also into account the requirements of article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree
no. 58 of 24 February 1998, that during the year the administrative and accounting procedures in place to
prepare the annual financial statements:

« were adequate in relation to the company’s characteristics and
« were effectively applied.

2. Representation is further given that the annual financial statements:

a. comrespond to the accounting books and entries;

b. have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the
European Union and the provisions issued to implement Legislative Decree no. 38/20035 and that to the
best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned are suitable for providing a true and fair view of the
financial position and results of operations of the issuer.

Date: 11 March 2008

Signed: Managing Director Signed: Manager-in-charge of Preparing
the Corporate Accounting Records
{Francesco Trapani) (Alberto Nathanschn)
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Bulgari S.p.A.

Report of the Auditors in accordance with article 156
of legislative decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998

e

KPMQ 8 pA. Tolofono 08 BOSG1E

| L] L - Tolatax 08 BOTA7S
Via Entors Petrokn, 2 amail it imauditoh-Gkpmyg it
00197 ROMA RM

Relazione della socicta di revisione ai sensi dell’art. 156 del D
febbraio 1998, n. 58

Agli Azionisti della
Bulgari S.p.A.

1 Abbiano svelto la revisione contabile del bilancio d'cscreizgh, costituito dallo stato
patrimoniale, dal conto cconomico, dal prospetto dei mov ti del patrimonio netto, dal
rendiconto finanziario e dalla relativa nota al bilancie, dyfia Bulgari S.p.A. chiuso al 31

2 1 nostro esame & stato condorle sooondo § pri
raccomandati dalla Conscb. In conformita aj
pianificata ¢ svolta al fine di ncquisire
bilancio d’csercizio sia viziate da crrorifignilicativi e se risulli, nel suo complesso,
attendibile. 1l procedimento di revisiogl comprende |'csam, sulla base di verifiche a
campione, degli clementi probativi pporto dei saldi ¢ delle informaxion contenuti nct
bilancio, nonché la valutazione dgf” adeguatezza e della correnteizzn dei criteri contabili
utilizzali ¢ della ragionevole lle stime effetiuate dagli amministratori, Riteniamo che
il lavoro svolto fornisca una rgkionevole base per |'espressione del nostro givdizio
professionale.

1pi ¢ § criteri per {a revisione contabile
redetti principi ¢ criteri, la revisione é stata

Per il giudizio relativo
fini comparativi, si fo

ilancic dell*esercizio precedente, i cui dati sono presentati ai
ferimento alla relazione da noi emessa in data 6 aprile 2007,

imenti cmanati in attuazione dell’ant. 9 del D.Lys, n, 38 del 28 febbrio
anto & redalto con chiarezzn ¢ rappresenta in modo veriticro ¢ correita la
atrimoniale ¢ finanziaria, il risultato economico, le variazioni del patrimonio

Arrigo Parisi
Socio

Secet aw snnn
Covede muwe
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Cucann fapowy T
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Lincser Mt Hgmag #rmmey RI A Migrm N 3T
KPMIG 5 DA, an Rl oreecd Tatalty b Pomazs Pt P I 83 Ml S
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